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About us

Founded in June 1995, China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (referred to as “China VAST Development”,
stock code: 6166.HK) is one of the pioneer providers in the planning, development and operation of large-scale industrial town
projects. Riding on its experience in property development accumulated in the initial stage, China VAST Development was
transformed into a pioneer in new urbanization construction in 2005. The Company has been committed to developing large-
scale industrial town projects in the strategic planning areas under the integration of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei and "Two Horizontal
& Three Vertical Urbanization Plan”, demonstrating its four comparative advantages including: unique abilities in industrial town
planning, designing & positioning, abilities in infrastructure investment and construction, abilities in marketing & promotion, and
related auxiliary facilities for logistics, residential & commercial properties. Through cooperation with local governments under
long-term agreements, unlike other ordinary property developers, industrial towns are designed to provide a wide spectrum
of comprehensive and professional services for regional industrial development and development in towns, including planning
and designing, industry positioning, land preparation, infrastructure construction, marketing and promotion and related auxiliary
facilities for logistics, residential and commercial properties. Currently, China VAST Development has over 70 subsidiaries
including Langfang VAST Urban Development Co., Ltd., Shijiazhuang Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Shijiazhuang Gaocheng
Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Ezhou Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Zhangjiakou Vast Industrial Urban Development Co.,
Ltd., Wuhan Aviclub Vast Aviation Urban Development Co., Ltd. and Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd., all of which are
responsible for construction and development service of different industrial towns. China VAST Development is working together
with local government of Langfang, Zhangjiakou and Shijiazhuang of Hebei province, Ezhou and Wuhan of Hubei province in
respect of development of 10 industrial town projects with project planning areas of approximately 141.9 sg. km. Focusing on the
optimization of infrastructures in the abovementioned regions, transformation of industry and construction of urbanization as well
as building and realizing full integration of working and living communities for its residents, China VAST Development will spare no
effort to become a leading provider and operator of industrial town in China.
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Forward Looking Statements

This annual report includes forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking
terminology, including the terms “believe”, “estimate”, “anticipate”, “expect”, “intend”, “may”, “will" or “should” or, in each case, their
negative, or other variations or similar terminology. These forward-looking statements include all matters that are not historical facts. They
appear in a number of places throughout this annual report and include statements regarding our intentions, beliefs or current expectations
concerning, among other things, results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, prospects and growth strategies of the Group, and the
industry in which the Group operates. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to
events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. We caution you that forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and that our actual results of operations, financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the
industry in which the Group operates may differ materially from those made in, or suggested by, the forward-looking statements contained in
this annual report. In addition, even if our results of operations, financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the industry in which
the Group operates are consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in this annual report, those results or developments may
not be indicative of results or developments in subsequent periods.
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Financial Highlights
HERE

(in RMB'000 A E#Fr)
Revenue Gross profit
WA EF
3,995,224 2,431,320
1,870,668
2,670,007
2018 2019 2018 2019
Profit before tax Profit for the year
DL N2 ML
RRBE AT AR FF
1,121,347
1,779,388
828,406
1,287,108
2018 2019 2018 2019
For the year ended 31 December
BE12 A3 BILEE
2019 2018 Approximate
RMB RMB Change %
AR AR BV 8%
Revenue LON 2,670.0 million B& 3,995.2 million B & -33.2
Gross profit EF 1,870.7 million B8 2,431.3 million & -23.1
Profit before tax FRAR AT 7 1,287.1 million B8 1,779.4 million &8 277
Profit for the year REHF 828.4 million & 1,121.3 million B & -26.1
Interim dividend per share SR ERE - HK$&#0.05 7T N/A i@
Proposed final dividend per share  ZEFRAHRE HK$38%0.20 T HK$B%0.11 T 81.8

PEEGEEMAZEEABR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Financial Highlights
HHERE

(in RMB'000 A £ #F 5t )

Segment revenue

7 ERUA

90.0%
RMB2,401.0 million \

AR¥2,401.088

FY19
19 EE

RMBZ2,670.0 million
AR¥2,670.088

RMB214.7 million

AR#214.788 RMB54.3 million
AR¥54388

Segment gross profit

2 HPEF

96.8%
RMB1,809.7 million
AK¥1,809.788
FY19

19 BIREE

RMB1,870.7 million
AR¥1,870.768

1.5% \

RMB28.8 million
ARM28.8HE

1.7%
RMB32.2 million
AR¥32.258

Industrial town development @ Property development

EERMHEER

A
8.0%
°,}.-ﬁo%

05

70'1%ﬁ

RMB2,801.5 million
AR¥2,801.588

FY18
18 BIEE

RMB3,995.2 million
AR¥3,995.288

28.5%
RMB1,139.8 million
AR¥1,139.858
1.4%
RMB53.9 million
AR¥539HE
73.2%
RMB1,779.1 million
ARM1.779188 FY18
18 BIBFE
RMB2,431.3 million
AR#2,431.388
1.4%
25.4% RMB34.6 million
RMB617.6 million AR#34.65E
AR¥617.65E

@ Property leasing
MERE

Annual Report 2019 %
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Chairman’s Statement

FEHF
Dear Shareholders,

For 25 years, we have been dedicating and committing to pursuit of
dreams relentlessly. Facing the tremendous changes and challenges of the
external operating environment over the past year, China VAST persisted in
deepening transformation and upgrade and explored the path of international
development. Leveraging on its diversified layouts, we moved forward
step-by-step, and made steady progress in the industrial operations and
construction of industrial park, attaining new achievement on and on. May |
take this opportunity to express our greatest gratitude and best wishes to all
shareholders, investors and friends on behalf of the board of directors of the
Company and myself!

The year of 2019 witnessed a complex and complicated external environment
and slow growth of global economic trade. Under such macro-background
and the challenge of increasingly intensified industry competition, China VAST
insisted on innovation and optimization of investment landscape by targeting
the core enterprises in the upstream and downstream industry chain, actively
expanding the global marketing network and steadily promoting the stable
development of each business. The operating revenue of the Company
reached RMB2.67 billion, with a gross profit of RMB1.87 billion, net profit of
RMB0.83 billion and basic earnings per share of RMB0.50.

Competitive strengths and industry resources accumulated
through establishing global marketing network. By capitalizing on
its own advantages and with an international vision, China VAST sped up
the development pace and actively integrated global industry resources
and capital force. The Company negotiated for cooperation with various
central enterprises, state-owned enterprises and renowned international
enterprises such as China First Highway Engineering, CRCC, CRCEG, CDB
Capital, POWERCHINA, CR Land, Gemdale, CSSD, RENAFAN GmbH, Dassault
Systemes, German Research Center for Artificial Intelligence, PVCP, Formula
One World Championship Limited, Promotional Partners Worldwide Group,
and acquired a batch of large scale investment projects with notable results.
The opening of Sino-Europe Industrial Cooperation Promotion Center (s
BREE A E(REAH L), which is jointly established with China Investment
Promotion Agency (CIPA) of Ministry of Commerce, has allowed the
establishment of the representative office of the Company in Hungary,
which further enhanced our abilities regarding international marketing and
promotion. The gradual improvement in ancillary facilities including road
transportation facilities, primary schools, parks, and hotels in Longhe Park,
the upgrade of our Technology Regeneration Park to a technology incubator
of national standard, the introduction of supporting projects of hi-tech and
education such as GDS, ESR, and Guangcheng International School (&2
R E4%) have all drove the quality economic development of the region.
Construction of infrastructure facilities as well as marketing and promotion in
Shijiazhuang and Hubei regions have made remarkable progress. The opening
of VAST Nanjing-Jiangbei Tron Space Open Space (EZE R IItHZEe R
£llz=f8) and establishment of The New Materials Professional Committee of
Innovation Service Alliance under Beijing Enterprise Technology Centre (it
R ERMTR O EIFTARISHE BT M L H 3 Z §]), where Beijing Tron Space
involved in its operation, have widened the domestic and overseas marketing
channels, injecting new energy to the industry development in the future.

Bl RS EETEZE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE

Fruitful results borne from cooperation with different parties
through in-depth integration of industry-university-research. Building
an industry-university-research platform is crucial for improving the essential
competencies of the industry and the level of industrial chains as well as
for driving economic development. The Company and National Technology
Transfer Center of Chinese Academy of Sciences (CAS) jointly established the
CAS-VAST Research Institute (%72 2= = #85tbr) to practically promote
the transfer and transformation of advanced technologies and improve
the quality and efficiency for the rendering services to the real economy
through exploring industry-university-research collaborative innovations
and the cooperative development of all fields. We actively participated in
the construction of Beijing Daxing International Airport Economic Zone
by inviting Langfang Airport Economic Construction Company (B Egze
32 7)) and John Kasarda, the first man who promoted aviation-driven
economic development and the President of Aerotropolis Institute China
jointly initiated the establishment of Hebei Airport Economic and Industrial
Development Think Tank (r] 4k & Ze 4875 &= £ 25 R 29 &), in a bid to urge the
commencement of research on policies regarding airport economic zones
and planning for industrial cluster, so as to explore new business, new model,
new economy, new city, and new environment for the development of the
airport economic zone and promote the development of regional aviation-
driven economy in-depth. We engaged Srini Srinivasan, the President of the
World Design Organization, as our exclusive special consultant in China,
introduced resources from almost a hundred of renowned design academy
and enterprises across the globe, and imported internationally advanced
concepts, technologies, and talents of industry design to provide advice and
guidance for the development of industry design. As such, we have initially
built up our capacity for the integration of design and services that focus on
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region.

Making our debut on the international stage, and demonstrating the
glamor of our brand. Leveraging on the high-end event platform “Xu Shang
Xu Xiang (Zm&18)," the branding influence of China VAST was enhanced
significantly. The Company took part in all the events at the 2019 Boao
Asia Forum in the capacity of a Platinum Partner for the first time, and had
received warm greetings from our Premier Li Kegiang. We were also deeply
involved in certain major events including the Second China International
Import Expo and the IASC Global Cluster Conference as a Platinum Member
to the China International Import Expo and Honggiao International Economic
Forum, capturing the attention from domestic and foreign merchants
and guests. We actively organised the Second China International Airport
Economic Development Forum, which ignited the new engine for the
development of airport economy in Langfang. Furthermore, the Company
also participated in a series of world-class and major branding and promotion
activities, such as the Sino-German Economic Advisory Board Forum and
2019 China International Digital Economy Expo, successfully building up a
good reputation.
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Chairman’s Statement

FEEE

In 2019, the Company took the honor to rank second place among China's
top 30 industrial real estate developers, and was elected as the vice-president
entity of the General Aviation Branch of the China Information Industry
Association. The Longhe Park, which is being operated by the Company, was
selected among the Top 10 Golden Projects of 2019 China Industrial Parks.
Meanwhile, the Company donated 25 units (sets) of AED smart emergency
stations and service vehicles for the collection of hematopoietic stem cells,
at an aggregate value of RMB1,150,000 to help improve the wellbeing of the
public. With its robust development, coupled with its refined brand image,
China VAST managed to gain extensive recognition from the government
and society, ranging from the domestic market to the international arena and
from corporate development to social responsibility.

Challenging, vet full of hope, 2020 marks an extraordinary year. As always,
China VAST is determined to follow through the development strategies of
China and expedite its innovative transformation. Being humble and decisive,
we are ready to deliver another strong result by deepening the cooperation
and striving for innovation.

Giving clear strategic guidance, and expanding China VAST's
geographic footprint. We will not only continue to develop Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei region, but also capitalize on the major opportunities from
the construction in Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and the “Belt and
Road” initiative, with the objective to step foot in the developed areas such
as Yangtze River Delta and Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area.
Focusing on the industries-oriented layout and scientific plot, we seek to
make our industrial parks more refined, precise and pragmatic by establishing
our micro-park zone.

Optimizing the mindset of development, and adopting asset-
light model. We will continue to explore the transformation from asset-
heavy investment to asset-light operations, while focusing on marketing,
investment, servicing, operations. Emphasizing on “working on familiar
things, and investing in familiar projects,” we aim at creating greater value by
utilizing the Company’s experience in construction of industries and industrial
parks operations, and professional services.

TEEFEXTHEEREGRA

YA China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

20195 » RNAIKEFENEFEMEICRIEEE —
CEEGEEEHERAMEsIBRIERE
NRIELENSHMEAE2019FEHEE
¥EESBEHI0% - B ARIBRAEBEAR
115 BITMAEDE se L 258 () A RIS
BAMRERBERAE - BHIRARRER - #
ﬂWﬁ%ﬂl%%; %ﬁ%%@ﬂﬁ@ﬁE’

SIS

HE'EHZ%%@J T Eﬁ(ﬁ*ﬂﬁ@ﬂ’ﬂ%é%ﬂ °

2020 REASEN—F  RRAE LR
£ PRZARERMSBRETEDL  EEZRE
RERBEE  TEHNREHEE  SH5AR K
ERIT - HERMEEIE - WFWREN - BAE

% |

RTEESIE  BARERE - RAOBEERM
TEE  RARKERILESER %K)
%iﬁ%‘% CAR=A - BEBRRNEEFKAN
BEE  WEFTEEXANSBHE  MERI - E
AME EL R BEREAE - A ME -

BLRRBE  EBREEEN - RAZEERR
WEEEREEREEEES  TEMHERD M
RE - HIRTE - HEE - BRIHATNE K
AEHIRER ] MAAREXER BRELKE
B AREEIRBAREE RHEE -



Chairman’s Statement

EFE

Accelerating transformation and upgrade, and working on financing
and mergers and acquisitions. We will have to take the initiative to
communicate with central enterprises and state-owned enterprises, while
continuing to integrate domestic and international IP, and to implement
high-quality industrial projects such as cultural tourism, healthcare, airport
economy, and industrial design. The Company will continue to explore capital
investment, promotion of major funds, financing and asset securitization,
and look for mergers and acquisitions opportunities. Capitalizing on the
leverage of capital in order to achieve transformation and upgrade, we aim to
facilitating the Company's diversified and sustainable development.

Hard as the road may be, where there is a will, there is a way. Birds cling to
the sky, while fishes dwell in the ocean. Warriors embrace courage, and the
results can only be delivered with diligence. In 2020, we seize every moment
and have no time to waste. We will continue to explore new areas and
new rooms with an aim to achieve new breakthroughs against challenges,
manifest new achievements, and write a brand new chapter in our innovative
development.

Wang Jianjun
Chairman
27 March 2020, Hong Kong
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 was substantially
generated from: (i) land development projects/arrangements, representing
our fee income derived from development of industrial town projects; (i) the
sales of properties; and (iii) property leasing. The table below sets forth a
breakdown of our revenue:

g E)]

A

HMBZE2019F12A31H EFEHRAEZER
B (O)LFEEE T ERMEREXET
SIRRMBERWA  (WREE  (iVEEE -
RGO AR

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31B1LEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT

Fee and service income relating to/arising from THbFIE B E S THHERE A K

land development projects / arrangements BRI U A 2,401,004 2,801,516
Revenue from the sales of properties PISEHE A 214,699 1,139,813
Revenue from property leasing MERERA 54,304 53,895
2,670,007 3,995,224

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to RMB2,670.0 million, representing a decrease of 33.2% compared with
RMB3,995.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The decrease in
revenue was mainly because a higher revenue from the sales of properties
was recorded in 2018 as a result of the delivery upon the completion of a
property project during that period. In addition, the auction of a piece of
residential and commercial land located in Longhe Park with an area of 74,728
sg.m., which was originally scheduled for auction in 2019, was postponed to
the first quarter of 2020. The aforementioned land parcel was successfully
sold by auction on 25 March 2020 at a land premium of RMB746.0 million,
and a portion of the land premium will be recognised as revenue of the Group
after the relevant land use right contract has been entered into.

As for the land development business, we recorded a revenue of RMB2,401.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing a decrease of
14.3% compared with RMB2,801.5 million for the same period in 2018.

R RZREE MBI R AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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FREMHARES 99528 & 7T 2 33.2% © W AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, an aggregate of 694,082 sg.m. of
land in Longhe Park was sold by the relevant local government at a total land
premium of RMB4,422.0 million. Compared with the aggregate of 404,842
sg.m. of land in Longhe Park sold by the local government at a total land
premium of RMB2,608.4 million for the same period in 2018, there were
significant increases in the area of land sold and the land premium. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, we recorded a fee income of RMB2,091.3
million from Longhe Park, representing an increase of RMB217.8 million
compared with RMB1,873.5 million for the same period in 2018. The fee
income recognised from sales of land was RMB1,945.8 million as compared
with RMB1,521.6 million for the same period in 2018. In addition to the
fee income recognised from sales of land, we received from a successful
land buyer a land preparation service income of RMB91.8 million and other
comprehensive services fee income of RMB53.7 million (for the same period
in 2018: RMB65.1 million). Other comprehensive services fee income was
calculated and charged with reference to a certain proportion to the tax
imposed on Longhe Park resident enterprises during the year.

In addition, we also recorded revenue from land development projects in
other parks. For Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park, the
Group recognized a revenue of RMB44.4 million from land preparation and
investment services and industrial development service, representing a
decrease of 90.2% as compared with RMB453.1 million of the same period
in 2018. The revenue of RMB44.4 million included the revenue of RMB25.8
million from land preparation and investment services and the revenue
of RMB18.6 million from industrial development service. For Shijiazhuang
Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park, the Group recognized a revenue of
RMB89.2 million from land preparation and investment services, representing
a decrease of 43.4% as compared with RMB157.7 million of the same
period in 2018. For VAST Ezhou Industrial Park, the Group recognized a
revenue of RMB174.1 million from land preparation and investment services,
representing a decrease of 22.6% as compared with RMB224.8 million of
the same period in 2018. The revenue of land preparation and investment
services of the above three parks was calculated under the cost-plus method,
and the revenue of industrial development service in Shijiazhuang General
Aviation Industrial Town Park was calculated with reference to 45% to the
amount of investment in park establishment. The decrease in the revenue
of the above three parks was due to the reduced investments for balanced
development in these parks.

For the property development business, we recorded a revenue from the
sales of properties of RMB214.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing a decrease of RMB925.1 million from RMB1,139.8 million
for the same period in 2018. This was mainly due to the fact that for the year
ended 31 December 2019, we delivered the area of commercial, residential
and industrial properties of 14,927 sg.m., representing a decrease of 80,355
sg.m. as compared with the area of property delivered of 95,282 sq.m. for
the same period in 2018, which resulted in a decrease in the overall property
sales revenue.
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Cost of Sales and Services

Our cost of sales and services consists of (i) cost of land development
projects, (i) cost of properties sold, and (iii) direct operating expense of
property leasing. For the year ended 31 December 2019, our cost of sales and
services amounted to RMB799.3 million, representing a decrease of 48.9%
as compared with RMB1,563.9 million for the same period in 2018, which
was primarily due to the decrease of investment in outbound parks and the
decrease of property sales area for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2019, our gross profit amounted to
RMB1,870.7 million, which represented a decrease of 23.1% as compared
with RMB2,431.3 million for the same period in 2018. Our gross profit margin
was 70.1% during the current period, which increased from 60.9% for the
same period in 2018, mainly because the income from the sales of land use
rights in Longhe Park during the current period was higher than that of the
same period last year, while the corresponding gross profit was higher than
that of other industrial parks and property sale projects.

Other Income

Other income decreased from RMB170.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB160.9 million for the same period in 2019, representing
a decrease of RMB9.6 million, which was primarily because the government
grants decreased by RMB11.3 million.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses increased from net loss of RMB16.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to net loss of RMB74.3 million for the same
period in 2019, which was mainly attributable to RMB25.8 million in the loss
on disposal of subsidiaries recorded during the year, while a gain on disposal
of subsidiaries of RMB3.0 million was recorded for the same period last year.
In addition, a change in estimate of non-current receivables of RMB36.8
million was recognized during the year.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2019, our administrative expenses
amounted to RMB366.6 million, representing a decrease of 14.9% as
compared with RMB430.9 million for the same period in 2018. Such decrease
was primarily due to share-based payment expense of RMB57.8 million
recognized as a result of the extension of the exercise period of share options
in 2018, whereas the share-based payment expense for the year accounted
for RMB9.3 million.

PEEGEEMAZEEABR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Finance Costs

Finance cost increased by RMB62.0 million (or 31.9%) from RMB194.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB256.4 million for the same
period in 2019. The increase in finance cost was mainly due to an increase in
our average outstanding balance of bank loans and other loan facilities and
an increase in average capital Costs.

Profit Before Tax

Profit before tax decreased by RMB492.3 million (or 27.7%) from RMB1,779.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB1,287.1 million for the
same period in 2019.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by RMB199.3 million (or 30.3%) from
RMB658.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB458.7 million
for the same period in 2019, which was primarily due to a decrease in profit
before tax and deferred tax for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Profit

As a result of the foregoing factors, the net profit of the Group decreased
by RMB292.9 million (or 26.1%) from RMB1,121.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to RMB828.4 million for the same period in 2019, which
was primarily due to the decrease in revenue from sales of properties, which
offset the decrease in cost of sales and services and administrative expenses.

Earnings Per Share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMBO0.50, while the diluted earnings per share was RMBO0.48 (for the year
ended 31 December 2018: basic earnings per share was RMB0.67 and diluted
earnings per share was RMB0.62). The above basic and diluted earnings per
share were calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,651,237,000 shares and 1,742,146,000 shares, respectively.
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Cash Position

Our cash and cash equivalents decreased by RMB649.2 million from
RMB1,346.2 million as at 31 December 2018 to RMB697.0 million as at 31
December 2019, principally attributable to: (i) the net cash inflow of RMB347.5
million from our operating activities; (i) the net cash outflow of RMB181.3
million from investing activities, which was primarily a result of the withdrawal
of RMB389.8 million from restricted bank deposits, the placement of RMB51.6
million in restricted bank deposits, the withdrawal of deposits with original
maturity over three months of RMB296.0 million, placement of deposits
with original maturity over three months of RMB453.6 million, the payment
of RMB420.9 million to purchase and build self-use assets and investment
properties and the payment of RMB121.8 million to invest in funds and the
receipt of RMB157.8 million from disposal of subsidiaries; (i) the net cash
outflow of RMB839.3 million from financing activities, which was primarily
due to the repayment of bank loans and other loans of RMB2,530.8 million,
the payment of interests of RMB569.9 million, the payment of dividend of
RMB164.5 million, the repayment of borrowings from related parties of
RMB268.0 million, the repayment of convertible bonds and notes of RMB444.8
million, and partially offset by new bank loans and other loans of RMB1,939.8
million and the newly issued senior notes of RMB1,237.4 million.

Right-of-use Asset

The right-of-use asset mainly refers to payments for land use rights and the
rights of use of rental properties recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position, with a total amount of RMB190.6 million as at 31 December
2019.

Financial Assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL increased from RMB34.0 million as at 31 December
2018 to RMB149.2 million as at 31 December 2019, which was mainly due to
investments in limited partnership funds.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables increased from RMB2,363.4 million as at 31 December 2018
to RMB2,712.7 million as at 31 December 2019, which were mainly due to the
trade receivables of each park from local governments, including RMB602.8
million from Longhe Park, RMB427.6 million from VAST Ezhou Industrial
Park, RMB459.0 million from Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town
Park, RMB1,150.6 million from Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town
Park and RMB61.1 million from Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation
Industry Comprehensive Demonstration Zone.

R RZREE MBI R AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Prepayments and Other Receivables

Prepayments and other receivables increased from RMB554.8 million as
at 31 December 2018 to RMB646.3 million as at 31 December 2019, which
was mainly due to the other receivable of RMB136.1 million from the two
subsidiaries disposed during the year.

In Progress Land Development Arrangements

In progress land development arrangements increased from RMB3,579.3
million as at 31 December 2018 to RMB4,127.3 million as at 31 December
2019. Such increase was mainly due to the investment in newly-added land
development in Longhe Park for the year.

Properties under Development for Sale

Properties under development for sale decreased from RMB2,114.0 million
as at 31 December 2018 to RMB1,519.5 million as at 31 December 2019.
Such decrease was mainly because a total cost of development projects of
RMB648.6 million was dealt with through disposing four related subsidiaries.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables decreased from RMB1,628.5 million as at 31
December 2018 to RMB1,052.6 million as at 31 December 2019, which was
mainly attributable to trade payables and construction payables settled by
the Group in part.

Bank and Other Borrowings

The Group's total bank and other borrowings decreased by RMB594.5 million
from RMB5,180.5 million as at 31 December 2018 to RMB4,586.0 million as at
31 December 2019. Secured bank loans increased from RMB2,947.3 million as
at 31 December 2018 to RMB3,118.3 million as at 31 December 2019, while
other secured loans decreased from RMB2,233.2 million as at 31 December
2018 to RMB1,467.7 million as at 31 December 2019.

Convertible Bonds, Notes and Senior Notes

The Group issued convertible bonds and notes amounting to USD50 million
and USD110 million respectively on 9 January 2018. The terms of convertible
bonds and notes are 3 years and 1 to 3 years respectively. The coupon rates
of both are 6% with interest payable semi-annually. The convertible bonds
can be converted to the shares of the Company at the initial conversion price
of HKD4.75 per share before maturity. The conversion price is subject to
adjustments according to terms of the agreement. The prevailing conversion
price as at 31 December 2019 is HKD4.29 per share. As of 31 December 2019,
the Group redeemed notes of USD64 million.

Additionally, the Group issued senior notes of USD180 million with a term
of two years on 28 June 2019. The coupon rate is 13% with interest payable
semi-annually.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks and non-bank financial institutions
which granted mortgage loans to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. As at 31 December 2019, such mortgage loan guarantees
amounted to RMB954.2 million compared to RMB966.4 million as at 31
December 2018. Such guarantees would be released upon the earlier of: (i)
the transfer of the relevant building ownership certificates to the purchasers;
or (ii) the satisfaction of obligations under the mortgage loans by the
purchasers.

Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and non-bank financial institutions to secure certain loans and
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's principal financial instruments are comprised of bank and other
borrowings, convertible bonds, notes, senior notes and bank balances and
cash. The main objective for the use of these financial instruments is to
maintain a continuity of funding and flexibility at the lowest cost possible.

As at 31 December 2019, bank balances and restricted bank deposits were
RMB1,338.4 million, among which RMB744.0 million was denominated in
Renminbi, RMB591.5 million in USD and RMB2.9 million in HKD.

As at 31 December 2019, our total bank and other borrowings were
RMB4,586.0 million, among which RMB4,570.6 million was denominated in
Renminbi and RMB15.4 million in HKD, with maturity terms as follows:
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Among the RMB4,586.0 million of bank and other borrowings, RMB2,150.5
million was borrowed at a floating rate, whereas RMB2,435.5 million was
borrowed at a fixed rate.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group's gearing ratio (total liabilities to total
assets) was 60.5%. The Group will continue to adopt more conservative
financial policies and control its gearing ratio at the industry average level.

Key Risks and Uncertainties Facing by the Group

The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

We do not decide on the exact timing of the sale of land use rights in the
industrial town projects we develop; the selling price of such land use rights
is subject to market factors through the public auction, tender or listing for
sale process; and the percentage of fees payable to us may fluctuate due to
changes in the relevant law, regulation or government policy.

The demolition of buildings and relocation of incumbent residents and
businesses on the sites where our industrial town projects are built may
result in delays in our development of projects and/or increase in our
operating costs.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s business is principally denominated in Renminbi. Apart from
certain cash, bank deposits, amounts due from/to related parties, bank
and other borrowings, convertible bonds, notes and senior notes which are
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group is not subject to any significant
risk from fluctuations in exchange rates. No currency hedging arrangement
had been made by the Group during the year. The Group will closely monitor
and manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.
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Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals
The Group entered into equity transfer agreements with independent third
parties in respect of the disposal of the entire equity of four subsidiaries at
a total consideration of RMB198.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Group has recognised a loss of RMB25.8 million through profit and
loss.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies and significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Employee Remuneration and Relations

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 938 employees (31
December 2018: 1,148 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
provides various training courses to enhance the employees’ skills and
capabilities in all aspects.

FRZREEEMEZEREAR QT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Business Review

Industrial Town Development

We are one of the pioneer service providers in planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns in China. Our primary business
focus, being industrial town development business, significantly differentiates
us from a traditional property developer. When we commenced development
of Longhe Park, our first industrial town project, in 2005, there were very few
market players in the PRC offering a similar range of services, and industrial
towns only became a development model to drive China’s urbanization
process in the recent decade. We currently co-operate with certain local
governments in Hebei and Hubei provinces in relation to development of
ten industrial town projects. As one of the pilot models to drive China’s
urbanization process, an industrial town typically hosts a cluster of
enterprises with a selected common industry theme, together with relevant
supporting facilities such as logistics, residential and commercial properties,
creating a fully integrated working and living community for its residents. In
addition to our industrial town development business, we develop and invest
in residential, commercial and industrial properties in both our industrial
town projects and other areas in Hebei province, which accounted for only
a portion of our total revenue. As a key part of our industrial town business,
we (i) plan and design industrial towns and position industrial towns with
selected industry themes, (i) convert land planned for development into land
suitable for sale by the local governments in accordance with our cooperation
agreements, (iii) promote the sale of such land to attract target customers to
set up businesses in our industrial town projects, and (iv) provide follow-up
management and operation services to enterprise customers in our industrial
towns.

With the expansion and diversification of the business of the Company, we
currently provide planning, development and/or operation services in ten
different-themed industrial town projects, consisting of: (i) Longhe Park; (ii)
Longhe Resort; (i) Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park, (iv) Yongging
VAST Industrial Town Park, all of which are located in Langfang City, Hebei
province; (v) VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park; (vi) Zhangjiakou
City Modern Industrial Park, both of which are located in Zhangjiakou City,
Hebei province; (vii) Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park; (viii)
Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Industrial Town Park, both of which are located
in Shijiazhuang City, Hebei province; (ix) VAST Ezhou Industrial Park in Ezhou
City, Hubei province; and (x) Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation
Industry Comprehensive Demonstration Zone in Wuhan City, Hubei province.
After over 10 years of development, Longhe Park is progressing towards its
maturity in a fast development stage. The remaining nine projects are in the
early stage of planning and development. However, with the improvement
and betterment of the terms of cooperation agreements signed between
the Company and local governments, some of our cooperation agreements
enable us to record revenue in the early stage of development, thus providing
support for developing project on a rolling basis.
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The following map shows the locations of the cities where our industrial town LA T #1[Bl 88 R B PIR EE £ T A 18 B BT i RIfL
projects situated. i

Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration
and Development
FTREBRRRE

2 f;Q

e

C?Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
BIIERE

B R 2R E E T IAEEE A R A 7] China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

Langfang City, Hebei Province
AL E BT

RETESHE/RETERE
From Longhe Park/Longhe Resort
AL R A RS

@ Airport #35
(@ port 0
High-speed
Railwaéswtion
EREE
Beijing
Bl -3
Beijing Capital International Airport @D

b E MER S

Beijing Daxing @D
International Airport V\
ERA BB S \

Regeneration Park
SRR

Longhe Park and
Longhe Resort,
Langfang
EAEHER
RS RS PR

ERE

To Beijing Capital International Airport 70km/A 2
AEREEEEERES

To Tianjin Binhai International Airport 70km/A 2
AT R BB 5

To Beijing Daxing International Airport 26km/AE
RIERES

To Tianjin Port 100km/A 28
EGNEELE

From Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park

Ikl N=F e S

To Beijing Capital International Airport 70km/AE
AIEREE SRS

To Tianjin Binhai International Airport 75km/R B
AL A BB 5

To Beijing Daxing International Airport 15km/2 &
RIEREE

To Tianjin Port 105km/A

Geographical Advantage

e Praised as “the Pearl of the Corridor between Beijing and Tianjin”,
Langfang is situated in the Bohai Coastal Metropolises, one of the major

economic growth regions in China

— Located in the central east of Hebei Province, with “Beijing, the capital,

lying in the north and Tianjin in the east”.

— Eight expressways, five major railway lines as well as eleven national

and provincial highways crossing this area.

— Beijing Daxing International Airport was open to aviation in 2019.

e Driven by the national strategy of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration and
Development Plan”, Langfang is well positioned to seize opportunities

arising from the economic growth of Beijing

— As a result of the significant increase in the lands and properties price in
Beijing, population and certain industries have migrated to surrounding

areas.

— The coordination development in the region requires the integration
planning and construction in respect of transportation, public service

and environmental protection.

— The strategic location of Langfang enables itself to capture opportunities
arising from the economic growth of Beijing. Coupled with the
integration development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Langfang is expected
to further its economic growth, land appreciation and property price

increase.

BluES

ERE] -

B8 BB E R o

BREROES

ARETEXEBVEREMMR -

g -

BEREER Lk -

—N\EEERR - RIREEBRAR T

— KB RIS 20195 A ©

o EIFERBRFE]FERMAEE - BRBEH
BT - BHTWENEFNLEILELR
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Zhangjiakou City, Hebei Province
AEBRROT
RESHEAE

Inner Mongolia
Autonomous

Beijing

Shanxi

(I} 1

Geographical Advantage

e |ocated in the transport hubs of Beijing, Hebei, Shanxi and Inner Mongolia,
Zhangjiakou is the intersection of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Metropolises and
Hebei-Shanxi-Inner Mongolia Metropolises.

e Thanks to the national strategy of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration and
Development Plan”, the Beijing-Zhangjiakou high-speed railway will
accelerate growth from Beijing to Zhangjiakou.

e The joint host of zhangjiakou and Beijing for 2022 Winter Olympics will
bring new development opportunities.

B R 2R E E T IAEEE A R A 7] China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province

AMEEARED
, RE
35? Chengde
Zhangjiakou
3
Beijing
Tangshan y
Tianjin
AR L3 L
Shijiazhuang
H;ngshui ¢
ma
Xingtai
Geographical Advantage ENES
« Shijiazhuang City is the capital of Hebei Province and one of the important ¢ AXREMETILEE S - LR R X EMES
and major cities in Beijing and Tianjin region, as well as the political, EHF LT 22— TIEAEREUE & -
economic, technological, financial, cultural and information center of Bt &8 EMEEFR L - R
Hebei Province. Shijiazhuang City is a city where the implementation of its HEE eS8 R EGR A& B SN R o

coastal open-door policy and open financial market was approved by the
State Council.

« Shijiazhuang is the transport hub of the nation-wide rail transportin which ¢ AXEE2EEKERMEZEM - =E

four railways lines, namely Beijing-Guangzhou, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan, AKX A PEOGHEBEIERL -
Shijiazhuang- Dezhou and Shuo Huang, converges. Expressways such A AR -AE - AXSRABEEAR
as Beijing-Shijiazhuang, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan, Huanghua-Shijiazhuang, HT AR SR - AR R B IREEH6,400
Shijiazhuang-Linzhang intersects at Shijiazhuang City with an aggregate RE -

mileage of highway of over 6,400 kilometers.

e Shijiazhuang clearly puts forward to develop into the second major city in ~  AREABEREITEKN AR ZESEZHEF

Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area and the economic center of the southern region. DT AE S EESLER L - SO BRZE
It strives to become a new economic growth pole of the Beijing-Tianjin- HERIGFTHEELRIE o
Hebei region.

Annual Report 2019 %
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Ezhou City, Hubei Province
L& SN

EEE %E Wuxue
Xlanmng Huangshi
thsEu HonghL@ Chibi ‘@\
’ AW
A
Geographical Advantage EBuES

FRZREEEMEZEREAR QT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
RIBER

Ezhou City is located in the eastern part of Hubei Province and the south
bank at the mid-stream of Yangtze River. Neighbouring with Wuhan in the
west, Ezhou City is the core city of the Wuhan Metropolises, the major city
of the Edong Cities, the regional logistic center and the transport hub.

Ezhou City is an important node of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone.
As the new Reform and Opening of the PRC transits to the development
strategy of implementation of opening of new regions, the Yangtze River
Delta Economic Zone, Ezhou City can leverage on the Golden waterway to
promote the development of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and
thus creating a new Chinese economic support belt.

The construction of Hubei Province made Wuhan as the center and linked
other cities like Ezhou, Huangshi, Huanggang in a radial intercity transport
network. The fastest train from Wuhan Station to Ezhou Station only takes
22 minutes.

The Shun Feng airport locating in Ezhou specializes in high-end express
delivery on an all-cargo basis. The airport will become the fourth in the
world and the first in Asia cargo airport distributing center, which is only
20 kilometers from the park.

]

Huanggang
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Wuhan City, Hubei Province
LB ED

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
RIBER

“,\/‘EEL@

Shishou

Geographical Advantage

Wuhan is located in the middle of China and is the mega city at the mid-
stream of Yangtze River, the capital of Hubei Province, an important
industrial, scientific and educational base, as well as a comprehensive
transportation hub in China.

Pursuant to the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone strategy, Wuhan is
included as a core development city. It shall play the role of radiation for
cities at mid-stream of Yangtze River and establish itself as the growth
pole at mid-stream of Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone.

Wuhan is the center of China’s high-speed railway with only five hours
of high-speed train ride to cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging,
Shenzhen and Hong Kong. As an aviation hub in the middle of China,
Wuhan owns 40 overseas direct routes and is the only city in central China
with direct routes to four continents.

&

Huanggang

L& &h
Xvanmng Huangshi

Hongh cmb. B
)

BluES
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The following table sets forth our project status, industry themes, scope
of services and fee arrangement for each industrial town project as of 31

December 2019.

Industrial town

TREHBRMSEZEMEIEE RNEE2019512A
3THMEN EXXE - REHERERTH

project® Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEEA" EXIE R €8 BRARY B
Langfang,

Hebei province

S E B

0]
(0]

Longhe Park
R

Planned site area:
REGHEAE ¢

28.0 million sg.m.
28088 F K

() Longhe Resort,
Langfang

() EREEeA i REE
REM

Planned site area:
RERHETE -

9.5 million sg.m.
958 T K

PREREXTHEEREGRA

¢ Information
technology, advanced
manufacturing,
modern services and
property development

o BB - RS -
BRI R R

e \acation home and
facilities, business
headquarters and
culture business
subject to finalization

o ERERBZIE - EELE
BRXEB(FEE)

Planning and design, e
industry positioning,

land preparation,
infrastructure
construction,

marketing and follow-

up services to manage e
and operate the

project

HE - REt EETE
1~im%@~%%f
MBIERR  TIHTTIHM K
aﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁm%&
AR

Planning and design, e
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction,
marketing and follow-
up services to manage
and operate the

project

RE Rt EETE
fir « iiﬁﬁ‘i@ - B
MERERR  MIHTTHHM K

E‘@&i‘“%ﬁﬁ B 1R
AR

YA China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Calculated with
reference to a certain
percentage of land
sale proceeds and
taxes paid by resident
enterprises
}zziiﬂzﬁuzeﬁﬁ’a IR
Ao RERDER
METIESHE

Calculated with
reference to a certain
percentage of land
sale proceeds and
taxes paid by resident
enterprises
R R TS SIEED
B REREES
MEFIESTE

e Progressing towards
an active development
stage, and contributed
to our income during
the year
IEBERAR IR GA 21 A
PEER - WHEARFERF
WA BB

¢ Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced
BEITANR IO
AR N} e i - S YN
A SRR
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Industrial town

27

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status

EXmEEAO EXTE B 7% &5 & BERTH B

(I Guangyang e Under planning e Planning and design, ¢ Aportion of the net ¢ Binding agreement
Technology o 3HE|h industry positioning, land sale proceeds signed; land
Regeneration Park@ land preparation, representing the preparation and

() EEREEEER infrastructure sum of our actual infrastructure

construction, investment amount construction not yet
Planned site area: marketing and follow- with a pre-agreed commenced

RENMEIOETE

15.0 million sg.m.
15.08&FHK

(IV) Yongging VAST
Industrial Town Park

(V) KBRFEFETIE
£

Planned site area:
REMEHEE

14.0 million sg.m.
1408 EF 7K

o Intelligent equipment
manufacturing, new
energy, new material
industry

o BhefipElE
EEER « FIMRIE S

up services to manage
and operate the
project

WA FREt EETE
fir « iﬁ’ﬁkiﬁ - B
MERERR  TIHTTERA K
E‘IE)SW%IE AHEE
AR

¢ Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

WA R EETE
7~ THoETE - HAR
R R TS TiH

return and a portion
of the remaining net
land sale proceeds
in accordance with
our equity interest in
the relevant project
company
T EMAGROE R
B—&5 - mAEREFIE
ERMOERZRERIE
(BiELME 2 EH) -
ARE S AT 8y L
EATSTIRER (R
MREEERRFZR
RS E) BviaRn

e Commission services

income, which is
calculated based on a
certain proportion of

a fixed return and the
aggregate investment
in the park
ZIERBWA - ZEE
13 & B [E 18 & 425
—ELLHIEE

« EETANF N
AR LHEER
AR

¢ Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced

BRI ALNR IO

P ARFB T EIE K
% RS
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEEA" EXTE B 7% &5 BRARH BiR
Zhangjiakou,

Hebei province

MEERFRA™

(V) VAST Zhangjiakou
City New Industrial
Park

V) RROTHRBERE

*E
Planned site area:

REGMETE

1.6 million sg.m.
1.6B&FHAK

(V) Zhangjiakou City
Modern Industrial
Park

V) RRATRAREEE

=)
(o]

Planned site area:
RENEHETE

17.3 million sg.m.
17.388F K

PEERELTRE

ARARD

o Under planning
o &P

¢ Service equipment
manufacturing industry
and medical service

industry

o RBREREEXRE

BRS %

e Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing
RE - Rt EET

i~ T EETE - R

HoE R AR P57 8

e Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

o BRE| - FJET EXTE

i ~ T EETE - EHER

TR RIA R TT51 T34

YA China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Both one-off income
and recurring income,
which is calculated
based on a percentage
of the fixed return and
part from ancillary
areas of operating
land premium, and

the percentage of tax
paid by the resident
enterprises of the park
— IR A BRI
AXAF - REFEEHR &
BRE A M 1 40 R AT
FHAAD L RAR R
EHWNHIER A E

Commission services
income, which is
calculated based on a
certain proportion of

a fixed return and the
aggregate investment
in the park
ZREBRBEA - REE
13 & B B 15 & 25
—ELPIEtE

Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced

BRI AHR IO
& KRR EER
B R iR

Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced
BEFTANRIOH
& ARBIHERER
B eER
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEEAO EETE B 7% &5 & BERTH R
Shijiazhuang,
Hebei province
TEARET
(VIl) Shijiazhuang General e General aviation e Planning and design, e Commission services e Binding agreement
Aviation Industrial industry, modern industry positioning, income, which is signed; land
Town Park services and property land preparation, calculated based on preparation and
V) BERFEAMTES development infrastructure a certain proportion infrastructure
TEE R o MAMZEESX - HMAMR  construction and of a fixed return and construction
BRI marketing the aggregate cost commenced, and
Planned site area: o HRE - F/ET EEF incurred in the park contributed to our
FRENEHE TS - iz~ T EEIE - EEER o ZIEMRBUA - #EIE  income during the year

e R AT O35 & B R ELEKA o

BN —ELPIEE

[RECIESSOE k)i
& DRI BIER
AMREER - XER
FEBGRAER

20.0 million sg.m.
200B88FHK

(VI Shijiazhuang ¢ Healthcare industry, e Planning and design, ¢ Commission services e Binding agreement

Gaocheng VAST eldercare industry and industry positioning, income, which is signed; land
Industrial Town Park tourism land preparation, calculated based on a preparation and
VINAREERRREE » EFEE BZEZEK  infrastructure certain proportion of infrastructure
TEE @ g construction and a fixed return and the construction
marketing aggregate investment commenced, and
Planned site area: FRE - Rt EET in the park contributed to our
RENLMETS i~ L3 #ER - EHR o ZIRBMA - ZEE  income during the year
HERERR R 51T 88 B LEREELTEN o BETRAORNNG

—ELHIFE & B tmRE L
AW REER - XER

FEBSKRAER

27.0 million sg.m.
2708 8K

Annual Report 2019 43§
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmRERO EETE B 7% &5 E BERTH iR
Ezhou,

Hubei province

M & ST

(IX) VAST Ezhou Industrial e Intelligent

¢ Planning and design,

Park manufacturing, industry positioning,

(IX) RRPMEER electronic information land preparation,
and strategic emerging  infrastructure
Planned site area: industries construction and
RENMGHETE - o VERE  BFREE marketing
BUMS IR B * B REt - EETE
4.3 million sg.m. i ~ £ ERTE - Efgk
43EEFTK MR KR T 1T 3
Wubhan,
Hubei Province
LA R ED
(X) Wuhan Development e General aviation e Planning and design,
Zone General industry industry positioning,
Aviation Industry s BAMZERE land preparation,
Comprehensive infrastructure
Demonstration Zone construction and
(X) BUERZEBMESE marketing
A TER o RE| - BE EXETE
fif ~ LRI - EAEER
Planned site area: MeIEER KI5 1T
IRENE TS -
5.2 million sg.m.
5288 AR
Notes:
(1) Our Longhe Park, Longhe Resort, Yongqing VAST Industrial Town Park, VAST

PEEE

Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park, Zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park,
Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park, Shijiazhuang Gaocheng
VAST Industrial Town Park and VAST Ezhou Industrial Park are developed by our
wholly-owned subsidiaries. Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation Industry
Comprehensive Demonstration Zone is developed by our controlling subsidiary.

We entered into a co-operation agreement with the local government for the
development of Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park on 27 April 2011.
Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park is in close vicinity to Beijing Daxing
International Airport, whereas the development plan of the surrounding area of
the airport, including Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park, is under review
by the local government. As such government planning has not been released, we
have not commenced development of Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park
as of 31 December 2019. The industry positioning and our scope of services for
Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park are subject to changes.

REZETHERARRD

e Commission services
income, which is
calculated based on a
certain proportion of
a fixed return and the
aggregate investment
in the park

o ZHERBENA - REE
ClR M EREE B o

—EHPIEFE

e Commission services
income, which is
calculated based on a
certain proportion of
a fixed return and the
aggregate investment
in the park

o RRERBAN - REE
B35 1 2 % & 4 ER

—EHBIEFE

Mo

¢ Binding agreement

signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction
commenced, and
contributed to our
income during the year
BETTENR 8%
BRI EER
AR - WER
FEBGHAER

Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction
commenced
BEITABLORNH%
# o BRI EBER
M*nﬁmg

() HEAREASHE  BHEIEEREERE

o KBERFREXETRERS -
RRAMBRREXEE - AFHEMA
AFHEREREETREE

EXE -
EEXMEERE -

REXATHEESR

AR EFSINEXEREHRFANZERBE AT
g RERBRBMERFA THERNMER
HPIRREBARLE -

2  FHFNR20N1MEAR27 BB H BT A ER
Z - AEERREECE - BRI R
bR K BB ERES - M5 EEE(BEES
RHEEE) MBI R BB it BUTHEITER
B - R BERNBUTREID AR - HIFI742019
FNRANBLAHARESR BB CENFRE -
BERERCENEEEM RREBEDNEFE

2R e

YA China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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)

Longhe Park ()]
After years of development, an accumulated land of 6,658,996 sg.m.
(accounted for 34.2% of saleable land) was sold by the local government

of Longhe Park. For the year ended 31 December 2019, fee income
derived from our development of industrial town projects at Longhe

Park was RMB1,945.8 million. The table below sets forth selective
information about the classification of land, planned site area and site

area sold of Longhe Park as of 31 December 2019.

31

e E
KBZFNERE  BAmT R T BFER
ST HIE 116,658,996 F 5 3K (5 0] g £ it
34.2%) ° EZE2019F12831R IEFE 5K
EAEMENREEEMHBEBEENGE
BUWABARE19458EETT © FXRHT
PR2019F 12 A3 A A S EE B LD
oAb EERE HEE N EENE

Planned site
Classification g ] area® Site area sold®@ Saleable land unsold
HEGH
g B HEAEE? REBEW T HELS
sg.m. sq.m. % sg.m. %
K K % TR %
Saleable oHE
e Residential and o FERM
commercial area HER 10,288,300 2,956,214 28.7 7,332,086 71.3
o Industrial area o EXR 9,205,500 3,702,782 40.2 5,502,718 59.8
Subtotal of saleable land A H B e 19,493,800 6,658,996 34.2 12,834,804 65.8
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o JERK 4,431,300 N/ATEA NATEA NATER NATEA
e Greenery space o Kbz 4,074,900 NATEA NATEA NATEA NATEA
Subtotal of non-saleable  FEH:E+ 1
land /Net 8,506,200 N/ANEAE NATEA NATBEA NATEA
Total st 28,000,000 6,658,996 N/A 7iEA 12,834,804 N/A FHEHA
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Notes:

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local

government.

(2)  Percentages are calculated as the site area sold by the local governments
through public auction, tender or listing for sale process as a portion of the
total saleable site area under the same land classification.

The table below sets forth details regarding land sold by the local
government, the relevant average selling price, land premium and a
breakdown of our fee income for the year ended 31 December 2019.

it

(1) REMEMETEDEREERM T RATHE
B EIMESE -

(2 BB ABTEBARMAE - BIEX
0 L S R T S (MR E e T
AT (AR — L) B — 55
it -

TREFINEE2019F12A31MH IEFEEM
EOFT i ey L 1S - FERA I B (E -
b B RS AR BP0 B AU A RIRB AR ©

Land sold  ASP sold our fee income/
by local by local Land percentage of
government government premium land premium
WABAE  EBUNN REWERKRA
HEMNLT FHHEE IHHES HrHES
sg.m.  RMB/sg.m. RMB'000 RMB’000 %
AR/
TR K ARETT AREBTT %
Year ended HE2019F
31 December 2019 12A3MBIEFE
Residential and FEREELM
commercial land 490,203 8,736 4,282,200 1,837,720 42.9
Industrial land T4 203,879 686 139,800 108,103 77.3
Total st 694,082 6,371 4,422,000 1,945,823 44.0

PEEGEEMAZEEABR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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() Longhe Resort () EHETEEREERE
The table below sets forth selective information about the classification TREFFNMN 2019512 A31 B B30 g 1%
of land and planned site area of Longhe Resort as of 31 December 2019. KEERELEE LD ERRE (L bE
TEMEEER -

Classification 2 Planned site area®

HENLHEED
sg.m.

Saleable oHE

* Residential and commercial area  FERNKEHER 4,525,200

e |ndustrial area o R 1,162,000

Subtotal of saleable land A s et 5,687,200

Non-saleable FEHE

e Roads o ERR 563,700

e Greenery space o GR{b 2R 3,249,100

Subtotal of non-saleable land Bl F 3,812,800

Total Fe 9,500,000

Note: Mz -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local (1) REUEHEBTYENES @ BT E

government. BFREIMETE ©

Annual Report 2019 %
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(Il Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park

During the year 2019, we continued our communication with people’s
government of Langfang and people’s government of Guangyang District
of Langfang in respect of the Guangyang Technology Regeneration
Park. As of 31 December 2019, the industrial positioning and service
scope of the park were still subject to adjustment as the detailed
planning for the surrounding area of Beijing Daxing International Airport
has not been released, thus no development work had been carried
out in respect of the park. The Company will continue to communicate
with people’s government of Langfang and people’s government of
Guangyang District of Langfang in respect of the Guangyang Technology
Regeneration Park and strive to commence land consolidation and
facility construction as soon as possible.

(IV) Yongging VAST Industrial Town Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Yongging VAST Industrial Town Park as at 31
December 2019.

() EEREECE
20195/ - HAFER R T A RBUT K& BB
ShEBEARBRFERESRERCE
HEEBRFER - HZE2019F12A31
B - AR K BB RS FE i A R
BMABH - ZEENHEZETLNRRBEH
BNAE/FER  WARRERERE - AF
HBHEE R T A RBUT RS &R E
ARBASRESR B CEER REHE
B FERREE LRI R R

(V) KERZREETHER
TREINN2019F12 AN BHRBEEREE
TEREAE LS ERREE M EEN
EEER o

Classification Wik | Planned site area®
BB EED
sg.m.
oK
Saleable oHE
¢ Residential and commercial area o FERNMEHER 3,660,100
e Industrial area o EXR 3,533,900
Subtotal of saleable land A 3B £ /N5 7,194,000
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o JERK 2,266,400
e Greenery space o 47{rz=Ef 4,299,000
e Supporting facilities o BEENERIE 250,800
Subtotal of non-saleable land JEHEE /et 6,816,200
Total st 14,010,200
Note: FiE -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

M
o

R S MR E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

(1) REEWEBDERRMEXTEBLT
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(V) VAST zZhangjiakou City New Industrial Park (V) RXOTHEEREXE

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and TREFHIN2019F12A3NBRRATHE

planned site area of VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park as at 31 RREEXEREEB I MY B MREGMEE

December 2019. HETEE R

Classification o] Planned site area®
HENLHEED

sg.m.

Saleable AHE

* Residential and commercial area  FERNKEHER 360,832

e |ndustrial area o R 1,130,865

Subtotal of saleable land A E AN at 1,491,697

Non-saleable FHE

e Roads o ERR 82,303

Subtotal of non-saleable land FJEHE b/ N5t 82,303

Total F 1,574,000

Note: BiE

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local (1) HAEMEHEBESERRMEZRFHE BT

government by us for approval. AT AVER LR IR E -

Annual Report 2019 %
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(V1) Zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park (V) REROMTHREREXEE

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and TREHIFR2019F 12 A31MHERAWRA

planned site area of Zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park as at 31 EXEERARE T MY BANBEEREED

December 2019. EEERS o

Classification 2 Planned site area®
REUE B EFD

sg.m.

Saleable ATHE

¢ Residential and commercial area s TERRHERE 3,685,200

o Industrial area o E¥E 1,266,900

Subtotal of saleable land A HE b/ at 4,952,100

Non-saleable FHE

e Roads o JHEK 2,111,600

o Greenery space o Fx b2 1,041,700

e Agriculture, regional traffic municipal o B¥ . BRIFBETH 9,082,300

¢ Supporting facilities o EHBNRIE 108,300

Subtotal of non-saleable land E Sk b 12,343,900

Total et 17,296,000

Note: B & -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local (1) REMEHEBHERRMZZTFTEBHS

government by us for approval. AT AVER LB AR B ©

PEEGEEMAZEEABR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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(Vi) Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park
as at 31 December 2019.

(VI)ERHEBEAMEZERTHEER
TRMFIN2019612 31 B ARHEBBH
mEEREEARLSE KRB
B IR AR «

Classification V] Planned site area™
FENEHEED
sg.m.
Saleable HHE
* Residential and commercial area  FERMKHER 5,313,000
o Industrial area o EXE 6,347,000
Subtotal of saleable land A s et 11,660,000
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o ERR 3,668,900
e Greenery space o 4Lz 2,716,200
e Supporting facilities o SENRIE 1,954,900
Subtotal of non-saleable land FJEHE b/ N5t 8,340,000
Total @st 20,000,000
Note: BiE -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

As at 31 December 2019, the accumulated area of land preparation
started in Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park was
approximately 1,650,000 sg.m. In 2019, the Group recognised income
from land preparation and investment services of RMB25.8 million
and income from industrial development service of RMB18.6 million,
calculated using the cost plus method and with reference to 45% to the
amount of investment in park establishment respectively.

() REGEBEBESEREMZ2XTERELS
B AR LA R B -

2019F12A318 » ARFBAMEESE
MEREREE RSN T RTmEN A
1,650,000 F 77 K ° 120194 - AREE LR
BN DA SABE R LI B IR IR A RIS LA A
R¥E25.8E BT R IZRE R & I A 5845%
REEZERRBEBAAREI186EETT -
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(v shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park
The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park as

at 31 December 2019.

(Vi) EREBERREFTEEE

TEREIN2019F12AN A ERERHE
FEXRTEEE A LD B RRE G
EEA TR AR o

Classification x| Planned site area™
REMEHEE
sq.m.
Saleable oHE
¢ Residential and commercial area s FEREKEHER 9,497,900
e |ndustrial area o R 4,582,900
Subtotal of saleable land B HEE /N 14,080,800
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o iEHPK 3,905,900
o Greenery space o Fx b2 2,850,000
e Supporting facilities o BRI 6,234,800
Subtotal of non-saleable land e s/ NEt 12,990,700
Total Wt 27,071,500
Note: B2F -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local

government by us for approval.

As at 31 December 2019, the accumulated area of land preparation
started in Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park was
approximately 780,000 sg.m. In 2019, the Group recognised income
from land preparation and investment services of RMB89.2 million,

calculated using the cost plus method.

PEEGEEMAZEEABR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

(1) REEWEBDHDERBRMEXTEBLS
B AV L RO AR B -

PR2019F12A310 - ARHEREREE
THEERDEN LR RHEEN S
780,000°F 52K © 720194F » ANEE LB
KINBERER T BB ARG BAAR
#892HE T °
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(IX) VAST Ezhou Industrial Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of VAST Ezhou Industrial Park as at 31 December

39

(IX) ZRPMNEXEE
TREFIN2019F12 A3 B EH=PMEZE
BB S EREE L EENERE

2019. o
Classification o] Planned site area™
HENLHEED
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
* Residential and commercial area  FERNKEHER 749,300
e |ndustrial area o R 2,228,600
Subtotal of saleable land A s et 2,977,900
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o ERR 630,700
o Greenery space o Fx b2 502,600
e \Water space o JK 18 F i, 200,700
Subtotal of non-saleable land e /N5 1,334,000
Total Wt 4,311,900
Note: B

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local

government by us for approval.

As at 31 December 2019, the accumulated area of land preparation
started in VAST Ezhou Industrial Park was approximately 740,000 sq.m.
In 2019, the Group recognised income from land preparation and
investment services of RMB174.1 million, calculated using the cost plus

method.

M

RENEWEEDERBEME2RX TAEBLT
B LAEE A AR B -

2019F 12 A318 » EEMBIMNEZE DK
B ) 1 b B 3 25T E TR 49 5 740,000 F 5
K o R2019F AN BIR R AL A DA A TE
R BB EREBAARE174158

JT ©
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(X) Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation (X) REHREEMEXFRSTERE
Industry Comprehensive Demonstration Zone

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land TEREFHIR2019F12ANBRER R E
and planned site area of Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation MEEFA NS BAERB LMD LB
Industry Comprehensive Demonstration Zone as at 31 December 2019. WERERENIEER -
Classification 2H Planned site area®
FENEHEED
sg.m.
K
Saleable ATHE
¢ Residential and commercial area s FERMHER 909,700
e Industrial area o EXR 3,401,000
Subtotal of saleable land Al /N 4,310,700
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o EER 628,500
e Greenery space o 47z 201,800
e \Water space o JK I8 A 47,300
Subtotal of non-saleable land JEH b/ Nat 877,600
Total st 5,188,300
Note: BeE
(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local (1) BEEHEBIERERMASSTEELT
government by us for approval. BFAEERL R E

FRZREEEMEZEREAR QT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Property Development

As at 31 December 2019, we had 25 projects at various stages of
development, mainly concentrating on development of residential,
commercial and industrial projects with a wide range of products including
residence, apartment, villa, retail stores and office buildings. We had
residential, commercial and industrial land reserves of gross floor area of
1,629,950 sg.m. remain unsold as at 31 December 2019.

We classify our projects into three categories according to the stages of
development:

. Completed properties. Completed properties represent properties
for which we have received the certified construction completion
report from the relevant government construction authorities. As at
31 December 2019, our completed properties consisted of Mingren
Garden, Foxconn City Phase |, Foxconn City Phase I, Hongtai
Meishuguan Phase |, Hongtai Meishuguan Phase I, Yihejiayuan Block A,
Hongtai Longdi Phase I, Hongtai Longdi Phase I, Chuangye Plaza Phase
Il, Longhe Park — Talent Home, Yishujia, Yulong Bay Phase |, Electronic
Information Industrial Park Phase | and Foxconn Technology Complex
A11.

. Properties under development. Properties under development represent
properties for which we have received the requisite construction work
commencement permit with respect to all or a part of our projects
before completion of the entire projects. As at 31 December 2019,
our properties under development consisted of Electronic Information
Industrial Park Phase I, Tanghai Project (Plot 3 Yuehu Bay) and Hubei
Changjiang Zhihui Port Innovation Startup Base Phase |.

. Properties planned for future development. Properties planned for
future development represent properties for which we have received
the relevant land use rights certificates but have not yet received the
requisite construction work commencement permit. As at 31 December
2019, our properties planned for future development consisted of
Foxconn City Phase Ill, Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase II,
Hongtai Commerce Plaza, Qingnianhui, Yulong Bay Phase II, Yulong
Bay Phase Ill, Huahang Apartment and Tanghai Project (Plot 1 and Plot
2), Ezhou Zhanyao Project, Ezhou Huineng Project, Wuhan Hangfuju
Technology Project, Wuhan Hangyaohong Technology Project and
Hubei Changjiang Zhihui Port Innovation Startup Base Phase II.

Some of our projects comprise multiple-phase developments on a rolling
basis. One project may include different phases at various stages of
development, i.e., completed properties, properties under development and
properties planned for future development.

MERR

2019612 A318 - BB 2518 & A TR 5
BWBMIEE  TEERHEREE BE - EX
BE ERELAEEE A JIE - TEH
SRPTAESE - FR2019F 128318 » BAMEE -
HMENEEMENHAIELHEEREERA
1,629,950 F 75K e

HPMRIEFEERSIEE D R=(EEH :

o ERIYE - BRIWEEKIEHEEF
TR#ESHNRTIRBIREOME - KB
2019F 12 A31H BB RIMESR
BEANE  BLEE—8 BLEH-
B REERE—H - RREME-8
BEAELAR - REEB—H - ZREL
“H - AIEXEZH - EAsHEATR
CBRBIR - HEE—H BT EEEXE
BE—H R E T ERHEAT -

o EEAPYE - BRPMER  RNEMEIER
B TR 2PN BB WEIFMERET
i TEFARE A E - 7R2019F12 A 31
B BMNERTYERLEEFEEESE
BE—H - EAEE GHRiine) ik
TR ES R A2 E —H -

o RBIERRHEEMWE - REERKHE
M ERRE AR F AEE - BRI
FFERETIRBIFENDE - »©
20194124318 - BPIREMERKFHA R
MEBRREETER=H BEFELEXE
—H - RRBEEES - SFE - fHEE=
H - MBEE=H - EMAE - BEEEAO
SR - 25%h) - SBINRIBIBE - SBMERE
BE  REMBEREIER - RUEMRA
BEER Mt RITEIEB A A EEi
—H-

HM®ETIEE BENHERN S HERIEAR -

HMWIERFTEERFEERT - BRPSMEME
ARFEETRERERNDE -
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The following map shows the geographical locations and key data of our LA T B8 RMA2019E12 431 B R MY £ a9 IE
properties as at 31 December 2019. UEREZHIE -

GFA Langfang GFA

Type EEid]) BEER R Type ki) BEER
Foxconn City &+ B3

Completed B®T 181,000 Completed BE%RT 252,000

Under construction e - Under construction 1EE -

For future development  AR2RF% 118,000 For future development  RIRFAEE -

Chengde

Completed BE®T 29,000 ° Completed B®T -

Under construction e - Under construction 12 -

For future development ~ RZRFIZE - Beijing ® o Tangshan For future development  AR2RFA%E 11,000

b & Huahang Apartment Efi A E

Completed B¥%T 351,000 Completed B®T =

Under construction e - Under construction G -

For future development  SRZRBIZE - For future development  k2RFA% 10,000

gy

completed BT - Completed BRI 159,000

Under construction i3 = Under construction i -

For future development  RRBA% 186,000 For future development  ARZRFI% 472,000
Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe Park —_—
RIEFEEFEEEXE Completed B®RT -

Completed BRI 61,000 . Under construction 1w 16,000

Under construction pezt= 4 10,000 Be 1Jing- For future development ~ R2RFEZE 188,000

For future development 5k ZRBIEE 127,000 Tianjin'Hebei
Foxconn Technology Complex A11 E_e\g IS:,] Completed B®RT -

- >$ = iﬂ‘” & Under construction 2 -

Completed B%L 18,000 For future development  ARZEFAZE 112,000

Under construction e = Hubei Province

For future development sk 7RRIZE - s

Completed B%T -
;ggﬁgjh%e;fag: T'fr"%me Under construction 1 -

Completed 23T 22,000 For future development  AR3RFA% 87,000

Under construction e -

For future development A ZRFIEE - Wuhan

=g Completed BRT =

22 Under construction EE 24,000

SolmplEes BRT 1£0:000 Ezhou For future development  R2RFAZE 64,000

Under construction e - o

Forfuture development  RZRFZEE - Wouhan Hangfuju Technology Project

REMRBRRKER

Completed BT -

Completed BT 85,000 Under construction fi33 -

Under construction g - For future development  AR2KBI3¢ 18,000

For future development A ZRFEE -

!Vuhan Hangyaohong Technology Project
Mingren Garden & A/NE REMBANEER

Completed B®T 64,000 Completed B%T -
Under construction wiE - Under construction pexte S -

For future development ~ RZRFAZE - For future development  R2EFI% 15,000
PRI ZRE ¥ iR E AR A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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The following table shows the saleable area remaining unsold for our

43

AR RARE RN 2019512 A 31 B R AP E A 1% 7]

properties as at 31 December 2019: EHEE
Gross The Saleable Area
Floor Group's Remaining
Site Area Area Land-use Purpose  Interest Unsold®
£8
Project Name and Location HREBRLE EHEE BERE AR FrbRE  HUEERY
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAK)  (FAK) (%) (FAK)
Langfang B
Foxconn City (Phases I to ETERM(—HZE=H) 126,545 299,000  Residential and commercial 100% 140,300
39 Fukang Road, Langfang AT & FR B39 FEREE
Chuangye Plaza (Phase Il BIEAE—H 8,820 29,000 Commercial 100% 23,000
39 Nanlong Road, Langfang B R RIEI9H G
Hongtai Longdi (Phases I and ) TRES(—5 - =) 126,929 351,000  Residential and commercial 100% 39,100
259 South Yinhe Road, Langfang BRI B 259%: FEREE
Hongtai Commerce Plaza LRBEES 47486 186,000 Commercial 100% 171,000
West Chuangye Plaza, Nanlong Road, Langfang ~ Bsim@se@al¥AER FSES
Electronic Information Industrial Park in ETefRETEEELE 187,815 198,000 Industrial 100% 173,000
Longhe Park (Phases I and 1) (-8 =8) E¥
89 Fukang Road, Langfang AT & FR BRI
Foxconn Technology Complex A11 ELERRIEA 9,263 18,000 Commercial 100% 17,000
East of Jianshenan Road and South of BomRIRNRERER S
Erhao Road, Longhe Park, Langfang M 8BRS
Longhe Park - Talent Home BIRHE-ATRE 12,666 22,000 Residential 100% 21,000
125 Furao Road, Langfang AT BB 1255, i
Yishujia BER 94,829 160,000 Residential and commercial 100% 600
155 Guangyang Road, Langfang BB ERE 1555 FEREE
Yihejiayuan (Block A) FAREER (AR ) 35,430 85,000  Residential and commercial 100% 3,000
300 Xichang Road, Langfang [t R 8 32 300%% FEREE
Mingren Garden EININ 29141 64,000  Residential and commercial 100% 250
76 Heping Road, Langfang BHmRTE76% FEREE
Hongtai Meishuguan (Phases | and Il THEHEH - =8) 120,739 252,000 Residential and commercial 100% 17,900
28 Huaxiang Road, Development Zone, Langfang BB B 24/ 2 1 R 085 FEREE
Qingnianhui EEE 4,279 11,000  Residential and commercial 100% 9,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang EsshT B RRIE175%; FEREE
Huahang Apartment ERLE 10,557 10,000 Residential 100% 10,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang BHmERRE7SH =

Annual Report 2019 %
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Gross The Saleable Area
Floor Group's Remaining
Site Area Area Land-use Purpose  Interest Unsold®
£F
Project Name and Location BREERNE EHEE BEEE AR FrERE  HTEERY
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAK)  (FAXK) (%) (FAX)
Chengde RE
Yulong Bay (Phase I to ll) HEE(—HE=H) 142,301 631,000 Residential and commercial 100% 479,800
Junction of Southwest of Wuwei Road and EETHE AR AN - TEREE
Siliujing Road, New District, Chengde v
Tangshan Bl
Tanghai Project (Plot 1t0 3) EER (1-35%5) 665,935 204,000 Residential 100% 204,000
North Shore, Caofei Hu, Qi Nongchang, EUMELELES e
Caofeidian District, Tangshan EiMitE
Ezhou M
Ezhou Zhanyao Project PN ERIER 55753 112,000 Residential and commercial 100% 112,000
South of Desheng Road, East of Xingye YiRoad, % —KEfA - FEREE
Ezhou (et
Ezhou Huineng Project BMELEIEE 87,350 87,000 Industrial 100% 87,000
North of Xuejiagou, East of Xuguang Avenue, MK RERE EX
Ezhou EREILR
Hubei Changjiang Zhihui Port Innovation W RIRES 81,870 89,000 Industrial 100% 89,000
Startup Base BIFTAIERY EX
North of Yanghu Road-Central West, SIHmREABRE
East of Wu Chu Road, Ezhou BARTRRILA
Wuhan RE
Wuhan Hangfuju Technology Project REMBEREIES 17,969 18,000 Industrial 100% 18,000
South of Xingcheng Avenu, REMERRYEHERD EX
East of Xingfu Zhong Lu, Shamao Street, BOR - B AL
Hannan District, Wuhan
Wuhan Hangyaohong Technology Project REMELRHER 14,760 15,000 Industrial 100% 15,000
South of Xingcheng Avenue, REMEREYBEERT E¥
East of Xingfu zhong Lu, Shamao Street, BOR - B AELE
Hannan District, Wuhan
Total Bt 1,880,977 2,841,000 1,629,950
Note: BffsE

(1)  Remaining saleable area includes area completed but not yet sold, area under (1
construction, area for future development and area pre-sold but not yet

recognised as revenue.

PEEGEEMAZEEABR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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The following table sets forth the revenue, gross floor area (“GFA")/unit sold, — T&R#HHIEZE2019E12 831 B I EERESESE
and average selling price (“ASP”) for each of our revenue-generating property  WAMIZEBRA - B ERERE([BERE]),/
for the year ended 31 December 2019. HE RFHEGE(FHEE]D -

Year ended 31 December 2019

BZ2019F12A31HILFE
Project EHA Revenue GFA sold ASP
WA CEEREEE FHEE
RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
AREFIT Tk AT 5K
Foxconn City Phase Il (Longhefengjing) =+ B — Bige ml il =
Residential *= 113,528 8,699 13,051
Ccommercial [SHES 3,240 334 9,701
116,768 9,033 12,927
Hongtai Longdi Phase | LA BE R —HA
Residential F= 1,308 182 7,187
commercial [GE3 6,497 425 15,287
7,805 607 12,858
Hongtai Longdi Phase Il REERe il —HA
Residential *=E 8,490 2,941 2,887
Ccommercial [GES 11,037 518 21,307
19,527 3,459 5,645
Hongtai Meishuguan Phase Il IR R — A
Residential *=E 9,444 601 15,714
9,444 601 15,714
Yulong Bay Phase | Tl BE & —ER
Residential x= 681 143 4,762
Ccommercial [GE3 6,953 588 11,825
7,634 731 10,443
Electronic Information Industrial Park &1z BEE
Plant il 5,810 496 11,714
5,810 496 11,714
Sub-total /Nt 166,988 14,927 11,187
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Year ended 31 December 2019

BZE2019F12831HILEE
Project Ancillary Area HEHPE Revenue GFA sold ASP
'ON CEEEEE THEE
RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
ARETTT FHK AREIT A ERK
Foxconn City Phase Il (Longhefengjing) &+ Bz — & 253 993 255
Underground Chamber EAES N E
Hongtai Meishuguan Underground TERERIEM T E 353 384 919
Chamber
Hongtai Longdi Underground Chamber Z=Z=ge&fith N = 156 168 929
Yulong Bay Phase | Underground HEE—HiTE 401 184 2,179
Chamber
Sub-total Net 1,163 1,729 673
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F128318LLFE
Revenue Unit sold ASP
'ON cEHE THEE
RMB'000 unit RMB/unit
ARETTT 1 AR,/ (A
Foxconn City Phase Il (Longhefengjing) =+ 3 — Hf 37,114 439 84,542
Underground Car Park Unit BEAAM S i BT
Hongtai Meishuguan Underground R ERHEH T &L 6,957 103 67,544
Car Park Unit
Hongtai Longdi Underground Car FRZEpe Bp i N B AL 16,660 227 73,392
Park Unit
Yulong Bay Phase | Underground g e — ity N B 1,986 22 90,273
Car Park Unit
Sub-total /NE 62,717 791 79,288
Total 1At 230,868
Less: Tax and surcharges A Bie KM e (16,169)
Total revenue after tax Fiig @l A 214,699

R RZREE MBI R AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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() FOXCONN CITY PHASE Il (LONGHEFENGJING) IN LONGHE PARK

SN EE T B8 (FEmEsR)

Foxconn City Phase I, also known as Longhefengjing Project, is located 1,000 meters south of
the intersection of Nanlong Road and Jianshe South Road, providing property units of various
sizes to satisfy different housing demands. The Project is along the routes of Buses No. 11, 15,
16 and 33, while Jianshe South Road closely connects to Xinkai Road, Yinhe Road and Heping
Road of the downtown area. From the Project, there is a 15-minute drive to reach Wanda
Plaza, Mingzhu Commercial Building and other properties in the core business circle, and
only a 5-minute drive to Langfang High-speed Railway Station. The Project is well equipped
with nearby facilities, including Anci District Central Hospital under planning in the south, No.5
Middle School, No.14 Primary School and Anci District No.1 Kindergarten in close vicinity, and
Longhe Park First Primary School under planning in the surrounding area. As such, the Project
provides a complete range of access to medical, education, leisure and shopping facilities.

In 2019, the sales income recognised (including underground) and commercial and
residential area recognised of Foxconn City Phase Il project amounted to RMB154,135,000
and 9,033 sg.m., respectively. As at 31 December 2019, the total GFA and remaining
future saleable GFA of Foxconn City Phase Il project were 148,000 sg.m. and 27,000 sg.m.,
respectively.

ELTEA_HMXEARTAS
BB AR B R R
X HFETT1,0000K - PAIZE
£ meREEEESRK 11
15~ 16 K 338 MO 16T R SR 48
HE - RANZREEETRRH
FIBE ~ SRR S - MNP R E AR
BN EEEBEES B
KRESEZLEE  EBYS
HULERSHEFHE  HE S
EEZZ2 BARIRZIESR
OB - BiERF -
ZRE—4  REEATSHE
F—NBEBE HE K
H - BY—EEz -

R2019F © B T RHM = 5
HEERABEBRARBARE
154,135,0007C (& # T &5 ) -
$HE AT EE A9,033F
FK e B2019F 128310 » &
THREW _HIEHRAEEMER
148,000 73K  Flgp KK A&
B 427,000 5K o
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(I1) ELECTRONIC INFORMATION INDUSTRIAL PARK IN LONGHE PARK
ETEHEEFEEERE

The Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe Park, Langfang is a high-end office
building industrial project located in the center of the high-tech industrial cluster in Longhe
Park, Langfang. Given such location, the project provides easy access to transportation, as it
is 5 minutes away from Langfang High-speed Railway Station from which it takes 20 minutes
to reach downtown Beijing and Tianjin by high-speed railway. The project also adjoins
Beijing-Shanghai, Beijing-Hong Kong-Macao and Beijing-Taipei Expressways. Featuring single
buildings for businesses, the Industrial Park is an integrated industrial project which serves for
business, office, exhibition, communication and training.

In 2019, the sales income recognised and area delivered of the Electronic Information
Industrial Park project amounted to RMB5,810,000 and 496 sg.m., respectively. As at 31
December 2019, the total GFA and remaining future saleable GFA of the Electronic Information
Industrial Park project amounted to 198,000 sg.m. and 173,000 sg.m., respectively.

R RZREE MBI R AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

EBOENSHREEFERESR
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R2019F - EFEREXE
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(1) CHUANGYE PLAZA (PHASE II) IN LONGHE PARK
ENEHfERIRARE =M

]

Chuangye Plaza is currently the most well-established large-scale office building in the south
of Langfang. Located at the center of Longhe Park and next to Anci Administrative Service
Center, Chuangye Plaza is a landmark of Longhe Park. With Nanlong Road on the north and
Changfu Road on the east, Chuangye Plaza provides direct access to the high-speed railway
station from which it takes 20 minutes to reach Beijing and Tianjin by high-speed railway.
Also close to Yinhe Road and Jianshe Road, the project enjoys a road network extended to all
directions with smooth transportation access across the south of Langfang. Inside the project,
one single floor covers an area of 60 sg.m. to 1,870 sg.m. without indoor columns, enabling
an open and practical space with sufficient access to sunshine.

As at 31 December 2019, the total GFA and remaining future saleable GFA of Chuangye Plaza
(Phase Il) project were 29,000 sg.m. and 23,000 sg.m., respectively.

49
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DRHE - BREASTROE
iR - LhREERE - REE
B BESEY  200ES
AT EZEILR - R - BRI
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(IV)HONGTAI LONGDI IN LANGFANG, HEBEI PROVINCE
A 3t H BB i R 2R BE B

SEEEEEEESEEEES

Hongtai Longdi, as a residential and commercial complex,
is located in Longhe Park, a hub in Langfang's southern
expansion. Longhe Park not only enjoys proximity to the
Capital Economic Circle, but also occupies a strategic
position of Langfang in respect of its function in the Beijing-
Tianjin region. It is also a smart eco-city characteristic of its
modernization and integration of production and municipal
functions in southern Langfang. With Nanlong Road on the
north and Yinhe Road on the west, the project is conveniently
located within two kilometers from Langfang Station of
Beijing-Shanghai High-speed Railway.

In 2019, the sales income recognised (including
underground) and commercial and residential area
recognised of Hongtai Longdi amounted to RMB44,148,000
and 4,066 sq.m., respectively. As at 31 December 2019,
the total GFA and remaining future saleable GFA of Hongtali
Longdi project amounted to 351,000 sg.m. and 39,100
Sq.m., respectively.

EEEBREIZTRBERS
B R BT B R RO
B —-EIEME  SRE2
B DA P B (B (B s e R R
& - RS T RE L
O EIE 202 - R BRI MO R
B R—ERAEN  ER
—RMERESHM - |A L
SErgEEE - TUESERONER - BERE
TR = 8B 5 W A B E
W ZEEE -

20194 » RHRELERHEE
WA B ARYA4,148,0007C (&
HTED) - HEAEEIEE
A4,066F 75K - R2019F12 A
3NA - EHREMBBEARER
& 5351,000F /52K » Fgghk ok
A& B 1A 439,100 5 K o

(V) HONGTAI MEISHUGUAN IN LANGFANG, HEBEI PROVINCE
A 36 & BR Y T & R A B

Hongtai Meishuguan is a residential complex project
comprising residence, apartment, villa and garden houses
which is located in the center of Langfang Economic and
Technological Development Area, Hebei Province. Located
in northeastern Langfang, north to Oriental University
City and south to the Langfang Financial and Recreational
Center, the project enjoys a well-established transportation
network, with only 500 meters away from the Langfang
exit of Beijing-Tianjin-Tanggu Expressway and a 50-minute
drive from Beijing CBD Business Circle.

In 2019, the sales income recognised (including
underground) and commercial and residential area
recognised of Hongtai Meishuguan amounted to
RMB16,754,000 and 601 sg.m., respectively. As at 31
December 2019, the total GFA and remaining future
saleable GFA of Hongtai Meishuguan project amounted to
252,000 sg.m. and 17,900 sg.m., respectively.

R RZREE MBI R AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

T 2R E RO AT E BB T
MEFTREERZODMIE - 2
—EF=EHEEE BEE
2B BIERERFERAK -
HEHLERAB MRS
M - bR KBy - mABER
BFRERSMREF L - BBR
ISR Y O 2500 ¢ 5
B0 E R EI R CBDE A -
RIBAAELE o

20194 » R ERERERE
EWA A ARH16,754,000 7T
(BT & 5)  HEAERE
HTEA601F 5K 72019412
A31H ' ZHEMEHEE AR
SETE S A252,0005F 75K - Fgh
RO A& B EEMIE A17,900F
Fk o



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

(VI)YULONG BAY PHASE | IN CHENGDE, HEBEI PROVINCE
Wb B AR HEEE -3

ALRARARN ALTALLRARR AR

ARURRY
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Yulong Bay project is a development project with a mixture
of residential and commercial properties in Chengde,
Hebei province. Located in the south part of Shuanggiao
District, Chengde, the project provides easy access to
transportation, as it is less than two kilometers away from
the Beijing-Chengde Expressway and only six kilometers
away from Chengde Station of Beijing-Shenyang High-
speed Railway. The project adjoins Chengde University
City with well-equipped facilities nearby and a huge
development potential for future real estate projects.

In 2019, the sales income recognised (including
underground) and commercial and residential area
recognised of Yulong Bay Phase | amounted to
RMB10,021,000 and 731 sg.m., respectively. As at 31
December 2019, the total GFA and remaining future
saleable GFA of Yulong Bay Phase | project were 159,000
sg.m. and 28,600 sg.m., respectively.
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Property Leasing

As of 31 December 2019, we had five completed investment properties,
namely, Chengxiang Building, Meishu Complex, Jinyue Building, Tianfu Center,
Phase | and Phase Il of SME Entrepreneurial Base, and two investment
properties planned for future development, including Foxconn Technology
Complex C10 and Phase Ill of SME Entrepreneurial Base.

The following table shows the key data of our investment properties as of 31
December 2019.

MERE

2019 12A318 « BMEBRBRTIREAY
¥ DRIAMBAE - EEGEE - SUUBE
KRS - P EREAIZEE—H8 - ZH - DRk
MIERBNEARRFAZHRENE - BIEE TR
BIECIOMAp/ MR =] -

AT RIBERN2019F12 A3 B R MR E Y ER
T28E -

Gross Floor The Group's Land
Area  Existing use Interest lease term
Project Name and Location BEAZBRAE BE¥EE BARR EEfERE IHEEER
(sq.m) (Year)
(FAK) (%) (%)
Phase 181 of SME Entrepreneurial Base M ERIE RN 8 5 126395 Partial leasing - Industrial 100% 50
No. 29 Ruixue Street, Anci District, Langfang B R ABREE9% HARE-TI%
Chengyiang Building WHAE 11,365 Leasing - Commercial and office 100% 50
building
No. 66 Xinhua Road, Guangyang District, Langfang BRI ERE R # %665 BE-BERENE
Jinyue Building EANiLS 2,094 Leasing - Residential and commercial 100% 70
Northwestern comer of the junction of HepingRoad R ERE NI TR BB ERERALA HE-FEREE
and Guangyang Road, Guangyang District,
Langfang
Tianfu Center KEAL 8,895 Leasing - Commercial 100% 40
South of South Outer Ring, North of Longhe, By R S ERIMER R ML - HE-H%
East of Yinhe Road and West of Changfu Road, BARNE - REBBIE
Longhe Park, Langfang
Meishu Complex kA 9362 Leasing - Commercial 100% 40
South of Yunpeng Road and East of linyunRoad, BB ERMFERERENE - HE-E%
Langfang Economic and Technological SERIE
Development Zone, Langfang
Phase Il of SME Entrepreneurial Base fpE |J¥§im 5 64,489 T0be developed - Industrial 100% 50
No. 29 Ruixue Street, Anci District, Langfang BT R ERSEDT ARE-I¥
Foxcoon Technology Complex C10 ETEREECIO 104,588 Tohe developed - Commercial 100% |
East of Jianshenan Road and South of ErhaoRoad,  BiFE BB RAMBIE - —HRNIE e
Longhe Park, Langfang
Total L 327,188

R RZREE MBI R AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, our property leasing income was
RMB54.3 million. In the future, we will consider the synergies created by
the property development business, to determine the input of resources on
property investment.

Impact of COVID-19 and Response

Since January 2020, the novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19") was widely
spread. The Directors expect that COVID-19 will have a short-term impact on
the operation of the two industrial town projects in Hubei Province. However,
the revenue from the related industrial town projects is relatively small
compared to the overall revenue of the Group.

Facing the situation of COVID-19, the Group has, in a timely manner, put in
place numerous precautionary measures and procured essential protective
supplies to ensure the health and safety of our employees in various
regions. On the other hand, to relieve the operating pressure of tenants of
our property leasing business, the Group will offer certain temporary rental
concessions to tenants on a case-by-case basis.

The Group will continue to monitor the development of COVID-19, assess the
impact of COVID-19 on the Group's financial position and operating results,
adjust the plans and measures for epidemic prevention and control and
project operations in a timely manner, and disclose any relevant important
information in due course.

Outlook

In respect of our industrial town development, we will focus on the
development of Longhe Park and continue the foundation works of other
outbound projects (including projects in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region and
projects in Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone) in 2020. On 25 March 2020, a
piece of residential and commercial land located in Longhe Park with an area
of 74,728 sg.m. was auctioned with a land premium of RMB746.0 million. This
land parcel was originally scheduled for auction in 2019, but postponed to the
first quarter of 2020. Despite the impact of COVID-19 and fluctuations in the
economic environment, this land parcel was successfully sold, showing the
market demand for the land where our industrial town projects are located.
We will continue to work hard to complete this year's development plan.

In respect of our property development in 2020, we will focus on the
construction of Foxconn City Phase Il (& == 5z = HA) and Hongtai Commerce
Plaza (RZ=m % E%). Revenue from sales of properties during 2020 is
expected to be derived mainly from the sales of Foxconn City Phase Il and
the remaining units of Hongtai Longdi and Hongtai Meishuguan.

Taking into account our cash and future operating cash flows, and bank and
other borrowings available, we believe that we have sufficient funding to
support these development plans.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) consists of nine Directors, of whom five
are executive Directors, one is non-executive Director and the remaining
three are independent non-executive Directors.

Wang Jianjun (£ E)

Executive Director and Chairman

Mr. Wang lianjun (£3£%), aged 57, was appointed as our Chairman and
executive Director on 13 February 2014, and the chairman of nomination
committee on 6 August 2014. Mr. Wang is also the founder and the president
of our Group, responsible for our overall strategy, business development and
investment planning. Mr. Wang has 24 years of experience in the real estate
industry. Mr. Wang is the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying and the father of Ms. Wang
Wei. Mr. Wang is currently the Vice President of China Real Estate Chamber
of Commerce (2EtEHER ) and President of Park Capital Alliance (& [&
&R BB). Mr. Wang received his college diploma (B%}) in Administration
Management (fTIEE 32) from the Rural Enterprises Managers & Leaders
Institute of the Ministry of Agriculture (22 Z 40 ED E BB #HE £ ), located
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), in June 1995. He was qualified as
a Senior Engineer (& 4% T#28M) by the Title Reform Leadership Group of Hebei
Province (/b4 BkFEkE 48 &/ \4H), a governmental authority, in December
2001.

Yang Yun (1 )

Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Yang Yun (#54t), aged 46, was appointed as our executive Director on
17 March 2014. Mr. Yang is the vice president of our Group, responsible for
strategy and development, expansion of industrial town projects and property
development and overall process management of property development. Mr.
Yang has 21 years of experience in the real estate industry. He received his
bachelor's degree in real estate management (EihEAL < &) from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (T Fa814% K£2), located in the PRC, in
July 1998. He was qualified as an Assistant Economist (B3R 4% 26M) by the
Title Reform Office of Langfang Economic Development Zone (ERL FA 3% (= B
23 in October 1999.

R RZREE MBI R AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Exg

Exe((E52 DHNRESEANR  ARR/HT
B —EBRIFMTEENB T =B REILIFH
TES-

FEE

BITEERLE

TEELA 575 R2014F2R 138 LT A
B EFLATEBTN2014F8A6BESL
TARZZESEF - ThENMAAEENAI
ARBE - BERMOBERE  ¥BEEERE
BB - ThREREMESE T EERUFER -
FhRAERBBLZTHRBNEIRLZTHORE - £
EERAEHEHERSISRKEREARNE R
TE - TRAMI995F6 AREBHE ARLFE
(TR B ) BRI EDET BRI B ITIRE
BERISUR o HR20014F 12 A EBUF#E Tt 4
B e aE/ MET RS A TZA -

B

BITEFERGEH

BREaE 4657 » N2014FE3R17BEZEAR
MRPITES - BEEALIEERRE  AER
MERERE  EXETHEERERIYEREURY
XA REHEEE c BTAERBEHERXRER
2V L8 BR o 1558 EFM9984F 7 A rh BT 78 81 48
KEEIE QLB IBEAERT o 19994
10 A 7 BB H 7 2% [ B At 5 R B B A R A o



05

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEAEEE

Wang Yagang (E Za i)

Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Wang Yagang (E a5 l), aged 39, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Wang Yagang is the vice president of our Group,
responsible for overall management of industrial town projects. Mr. Wang
has 17 years of experience in the real estate industry. He graduated from
Agriculture University of Hebei (AL 2 %K), located in the PRC, majoring
in Management of Urban Economics (#8487 E 3%), in December 2004. Mr.
Wang is currently a representative of the People’s Congress in Langfang City,
Hebei Province.

Huang Peikun (E1Zi#)

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Huang Peikun (&=151#), aged 57, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Huang is the Chief Financial Officer of our Group,
responsible for our financial management and control. Mr. Huang has 16
years of experience in business management. He received his master’s
degree in Management Science and Engineering (& I2RI2262 T 72) from
Zhejiang University (#T A £2), located in the PRC, in December 1999 and his
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology (F#&%HZAS), in June 2012. He was
qualified as a senior accountant (= 4% & 1£f) by the Department of Personnel
Affairs of Guangdong Province (& A%EE) in February 2000. Mr. Huang
was the executive director of China Merchants Land Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 00978) from 2 June 2012 to 8
August 2013.

Wang Wei (£ )

Executive Director

Ms. Wang Wei (£7%), aged 28, was appointed as our executive Director on 10
November 2017. Ms. Wang is the daughter of Mr. Wang Jianjun and Ms. Zhao
Ying. Ms. Wang holds a bachelor’s degree in finance from Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics in June 2013. She worked in the Company on a
part-time basis and in an international investment institution before joining
the Company on full-time basis in July 2017. She is responsible for overseeing
the Group's corporate finance activities and mergers and acquisitions.

Zhao Ying (#58)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhao Ying (#578), aged 49, was appointed as our non-executive Director
on 13 February 2014 and a member of remuneration committee on 6 August
2014. Ms. Zhao has 11 years of experience in the real estate industry. Ms.
Zhao is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianjun and the mother of Ms. Wang Wei.
Ms. Zhao also serves as a non-executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan
(Holdings) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
06966) since January 2017.
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Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (F 7k #)

Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (£ 5k ##), aged 68, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
on 6 August 2014. Dr. Wong has approximately 24 years of experience in
accounting. He has a broad range of experience serving as directors of
various listed companies, including as an independent non-executive director
of APAC Resources Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code 01104) since July 2004, an independent non-executive director of
Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code 00757) since January 2008, an independent non-executive
director of China Merchants Land Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 00978) since June 2012, an independent non-
executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 06966) since September 2017,
an independent non-executive director of Capital Finance Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 08239) since
January 2018, an independent non-executive director of China Medical &
HealthCare Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code 00383) since December 2018, and an independent non-executive
director of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code 02019) since January 2019. Dr. Wong
was a principal consultant of KND & Co. CPA Limited between April 1994 to
December 2017. He was appointed a principal consultant of KND Associates
CPA Limited since January 2018.

Dr. Wong received a degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the Bulacan State University, Republic of the Philippines
in December 2010. Dr. Wong is member of the following institutions, including:
a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators;
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries; a
fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong; a member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute; a fellow member of Association of
International Accountants; a fellow member of Society of Registered Financial
Planners; a member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators; an associate
member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland; and a full member
of Macau Society of Certified Practicing Accountants.

Hsieh Yafang (25 %)

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Hsieh Yafang (#fg555), aged 46, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director, and a member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee on 10 November 2017. Ms. Hsieh
is currently a senior presenter and anchor for a channel of Phoenix Satellite
Television Holdings Limited. She has over 20 years of journalist experience
in the PRC and Taiwan. She currently serves on the board of the Hong Kong
alumni association of the Cheung Kong Business School as the Executive Vice
President. Ms. Hsieh received her EMBA from Cheung Kong Business School
in 2007 and her Bachelor of Art with focus in Japanese studies from Soochow
University in Taiwan in 1996.
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Wang Yijiang (£ —3I)

Independent Non-executive Director

Professor Wang Yijiang (£ —T), aged 66, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of the audit committee and nomination committee on 10 November
2017. Professor Wang is currently the Professor of Economics and Human
Resource Management and an Academic Associate Dean of Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business and a senior fellow at the National Center of
Economic Research, Tsinghua University. He served as vice president of the
Chinese Economists Society. He was also a Professor Emeritus of Human
Resource Management at the Carlson School of Management of University of
Minnesota.

Professor Wang graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and a Master’s degree in United States Economy in
1982 and 1985, respectively. He then pursued further studies and obtained a
Master’'s degree and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Economics at Harvard
University in 1989 and 1991, respectively. His research areas cover human
resource management, labour and personnel economics, comparative
international management systems, economics of transition and emerging
markets and economics of organization, and his research findings have been
frequently quoted.

Professor Wang currently serves as an independent director of Shenzhen
Zggame Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock
code 300052) since March 2014, a non-executive director of Zhejiang Red
Dragonfly Footwear Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code 603116) since September 2016, an independent non-
executive director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 00908) since August 2015, and
an independent non-executive director of TCL Electronics Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 01070) since February
2016. He was an independent director of Beijing Huatu Hongyang Education
& Culture Corp., Ltd. (@ company listed on National Equities Exchange and
Quotations in the PRC with stock code: 830858) between November 2012 and
June 2017, and an external director of XCMG Construction Machinery Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 000425)
between July 2010 and July 2017.
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Senior Management
Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of our
business.

Xu Ming (4 85)

Mr. Xu Ming (#:88), aged 53, was appointed as our vice president on 20
March 2006. He is responsible for our capital management and the daily
operation of Langfang VAST. Mr. Xu has over 34 years of experience in
business management. Mr. Xu graduated from Tianjin University of Finance
and Economics (K328 4% A £2), formerly known as Tianjin College of Finance
and Economics (K;E8H4EE7), located in the PRC, in master’s course on
economics (&2 E2) in June 1999. He was qualified as a Senior Economist (5
44 EE) by the Agriculture Bank of China, Hebei branch (dh Bl &2 28R 7574t
A 1T) in December 1999.

Cui Xiangxu (£ @ 8)

Ms. Cui Xiangxu (£[A1/B), aged 50, was appointed as our vice president on 3
August 2006. She is responsible for our finance, cost and legal management.
Ms. Cui has 24 years of experience in business management in the real
estate market. Ms. Cui graduated from the Lang Fang Radio & TV University
(BB EIEEEAL), located in the PRC, majoring in accounting (&:t£2), a
correspondence course, in July 1992. She was qualified as an Economist (4§
SEERD) by the Medium Level Title Assessment Committee for Langfang Rural
Enterprises (BRth T 4P 5E (> 3 FP A% FERT £ 2) in September 2001.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Wai Tsang (#¥4%), aged 36, was appointed as the company
secretary of our Group on 1 February 2018. Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree of business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
majoring in professional accountancy. He has over 13 years of experience
in audit, accounting and finance with an international audit firm and a listed
company in Hong Kong.
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The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance practices and continues to closely monitor the compliance with
the applicable requirements. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Wang Jianjun has been assuming the roles of both the
chairman of the Board and the president of the Company since the listing of
the Company’s shares on 25 August 2014. The Board believes that resting
the roles of both the chairman and the president in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. Although
these two roles are performed by the same individual, certain responsibilities
are shared with executive directors to balance the power and authority. In
addition, all major decisions are made in consultation with members of the
board as well as senior management. The Board has three independent non-
executive directors who offer different independent perspectives. Therefore,
the Board is of the view that there are adequate balances of power and
safeguards in place. The Board would review and monitor the situation on a
regular basis and would ensure that the present structure would not impair
the balance of power in the Group.

In respect of code provision A.1.3 of the Code, notice of at least 14 days
should be given of the regular board meeting to give all directors an
opportunity to attend. During the year ended 31 December 2019, one Board
meeting was convened with less than 14 days’ notice to enable the Board
members to react timely and make expeditious decision making in respect of
transactions which were of significance to the Group’s business. As a result,
the aforesaid regular Board meeting was held with a shorter notice period
than required with the consent of all the Directors for that time being. The
Board will do its best endeavours to meet the requirement of code provision
A.1.3 of the Code in the future.

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders.
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Due to other pre-arranged business commitments which must be attended,
Ms. Zhao Ying, being a non-executive director of the Company, was not
present at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 June 2019
(the “AGM"). However, Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert, Ms. Hsieh Yafang and
Professor Wang Yijiang, being independent non-executive directors and
members of the audit committee of the Company, were present at the AGM
to ensure an effective communication with the shareholders thereat.

Code provision E.1.2 provides that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Wang Jianjun, the Chairman of the
Board, was unable to attend the AGM due to other pre-arranged business
commitments which must be attended. Mr. Huang Peikun, an executive
director and the chief financial officer of the Company who took the chair
of the AGM, together with other members of the Board who attended the
AGM, were of sufficient calibre for answering questions at the AGM and had
answered questions at the AGM competently.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as the guidelines for the directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all directors of the Company and all
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the applicable
standards set out in the Model Code throughout year ended 31 December
2019.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The Board holds
regular meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses and operations. The
Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group to the management team. The delegated functions are reviewed
by the Board periodically to ensure that they accommodate the needs of the
Group.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Board consists of nine Directors, of whom five
are executive directors, one is non-executive director and the remaining
three are independent non-executive directors. The table below sets out the
roles of each member of the Board and their relationships:

Position
Executive Director, Chairman of
the Board and President of the Company

Directors
Wang Jianjun
(spouse of Zhao Ying
and father of Wang Wei)
Yang Yun
Wang Yagang
Huang Peikun

Executive Director and Vice President
Executive Director and Vice President
Executive Director and

Chief Financial Officer
Wang Wei (daughter of Executive Director

Wang Jianjun and Zhao Ying)

Zhao Ying Non-executive Director

(spouse of Wang Jianjun and

mother of Wang Wei)
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent Non-executive Director
Hsieh Yafang Independent Non-executive Director
Wang Yijiang Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 54 to 58. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company'’s last published annual
report.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all of
the independent non-executive directors and the Board is of the view that all
the independent non-executive directors are independent in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

All Directors (including non-executive directors) are appointed for a specific
term of three years which may be extended as each and the Company
may agree, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting (“AGM") in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company provides
that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.
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Attendance at Meetings of the Board, Shareholders EZee%  RESEREZZSee

and Board Committees

B

During 2019, the Board held 4 regular board meetings, 2 audit committee 20194 « EEHE BT ATHESS 23
. s

meetings, 2 remuneration committee meetings and 2 nomination committee

=
HEE

MREZZEERH - MAFME

FRHRE

meetings. As regards general meetings, the Company held the AGM on 27  WiE&ZEee% - BREASM S » AX TR

June 2019.

The table below sets out the attendance of each Director at the relevant

20196 427 ABITIREAF KD -

TREFISEENEHGHEN L ERCE

meetings:
Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend for the year ended 31 December 2019
HZ2019512A31ALFEHE AERLENESEYA
General Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board meeting Committee Committee Committee
Ezg REAE ERZEEE FMzEg REZEE
Executive Director HiTE=x
Wang Jianjun TEE 3/4 0N N/A N/A 212
T TiEA
Yang Yun B 4/4 01 N/A N/A N/A
TER TEA TiEA
Wang Yagang T 4/4 on N/A N/A N/A
TiEA TEA TER
Huang Peikun et 4/4 "N N/A N/A N/A
A TiEA A
Wang Wei I% 3/4 7 N/A N/A N/A
NER TEA A
Non-executive Director FHTES
Zhao Ying izt 4/4 0N N/A 2/2 N/A
T A
Independent Non-executive Director By E#TES
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Foxig 4/4 111 212 N/A N/A
TEA TiER
Hsieh Yafang HEF 4/4 11 2/2 2/2 2/2
Wang Yijiang - 4/4 "N 22 22 22
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
has arranged trainings and recommended Directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All the Directors
understand the importance of continuous professional development and are
committed to participating in any suitable training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Directors are also continually updated with legal
and regulatory requirements, and business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities through various Board meetings and
resolutions. The table below sets out the individual training records of each
Director received for the year ended 31 December 2019:

Read materials
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Attending seminar(s)/programme(s)/
conference(s)/training(s) relevant to

the Group’s business or directors’ duties
HEARASEELRESHEN

B R g R g8 1L
Wang Jianjun FTEE v v
Yang Yun B v v
Wang Yagang F 2l v v
Huang Peikun E I v v
Wang Wei F55 v v
Zhao Ying b=l v/ v
Wwong Wing Kuen, Albert ok v v
Hsieh Yafang EIEED:3 v v
Wang Yijiang T v v

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company, consisting of three independent non-
executive directors, namely Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (chairman), Ms.
Hsieh Yafang and Professor Wang Yijiang, was established with specific
written terms of reference and is responsible for the review and supervision
of the Group's financial reporting process and internal controls, and
recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee has met twice to review
the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2019 and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, the risk management and internal control system of the Group, and
the effectiveness of the Group's internal audit function and discuss with
the management and the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices which may affect the Group and financial reporting matters.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 comply with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and all other applicable legal
requirements. The Audit Committee therefore recommended for the Board’s
approval of the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, consisting of two independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director, was established with specific
written terms of reference, and is responsible for making recommendations
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all the
Directors and senior management of the Company including making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy
for approval by the Board. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Remuneration Committee met twice to review the remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management of the Company and assess performance
of the executive directors. The remuneration for the Directors and senior
management comprises basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary
bonus. Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements. Members of the Remuneration Committee are Professor Wang
Yijiang (chairman), Ms. Zhao Ying and Ms. Hsieh Yafang.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, consisting of one executive director and two
independent non-executive directors, was established with specific written
terms of reference, and is responsible for considering the suitability of a
candidate to act as a director on the basis of the candidate’s qualification,
experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, and
approving and terminating the appointment of a director. A candidate to
be appointed as independent non-executive director must also meet the
independence requirement set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee met twice to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board. Members of the
Nomination Committee are Mr. Wang Jianjun (chairman), Ms. Hsieh Yafang
and Professor Wang Yijiang.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy. The Company seeks to
achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
of nine directors, of whom six are males and three are females. Three are
independent non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, nationality,
professional background and skills.
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Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established. The Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions such as
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, reviewing
and monitoring the Company's policies and practices in compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing the Company's compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs and results of the Group. In doing so, the Directors
opted for suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently and
used accounting estimates as appropriate in the circumstances. With the
assistance of the accounting and finance staff, the Directors ensured that the
financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and appropriate financial reporting standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, in relation to their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 84 to 90.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control system of the Group, and an effective risk management
and internal control system enhances the Group's ability in achieving
business objectives, safeguarding assets, complying with applicable laws
and regulations and contributes to the effectiveness and efficiency of its
operations. As such, the Group's internal control procedures include a
comprehensive budgeting, information reporting and performance monitoring
system. The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal audit function and the Group's risk management and internal control
system annually, covering all key control, including financial, operational
and compliance. The examination consisted of enquiry, discussion and
validation through observation and inspection (if necessary). The result of
review will be reported to the Board and some measures would be proposed
if there is any area for improvement. The Board has conducted reviews of
the risk management and internal control systems and is satisfied with the
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and internal control
system of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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The Company regulates the handling and propagation of inside information
according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published
by the Securities and Futures Commission and as indicated in the corporate
responsibility policy and various affiliate proceedings to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the propagation of such information is efficiently
and consistently made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors and
employees about the due compliance with all policies regarding the inside
information with the latest regulatory updates.

Auditors’ Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total fees paid/payable in respect
of services provided by the Group's external auditors are set out below:

ARAREEF IR EEBERZRERONIA
BHEWEES I REXEARKREASERERE
ARSI XER R ABARIEE - IHERAEHE
BREERENGRRE - MARESMAMNA
BRE—BARET - ARAEHIREEE R E
BRRETRESOHEEEMNMERNRTHEE
B

B AT =
HE019F12A31B 1HER - AEEINEHZE
ETIRI RIS R, B e B ARSI T

Services rendered Frid iy RS Fees paid/payable
Bt B

RMB'000

AREFT

Audit services FEEHRTE 2,200
Review services ERIR 1,650

Remuneration of Senior Management

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration of the senior
management members is set out by band as follows:

SN EE BN
HZE2019F12A31HILFE - o EEREN
FHRAERIEY T

Band of remuneration 4 Bl Number of person
AE
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 7T 2 74 %4 2,000,0007T 2

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Wai Tsang was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 1 February 2018. Mr. Lam has complied with the relevant professional
training requirement for company secretary under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders of the Company and the Board.
An AGM of the Company shall be held each year at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM").
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Right to Convene EGM

Any one or more members holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the Company's principal place of
business at Units 3707-08, 37/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and such may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company'’s branch share registrars
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary,
if the request has been verified to not be in order, the shareholders
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened as requested. If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s) concerned
at the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

- Atleast 21 clear days' notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the
Company in EGM,;

- Atleast 14 clear days’ notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) for proposal of all other EGMs.
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2. Right to Put Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary.

3. Right to Put Forward Proposals at General
Meetings
There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law (2018
Revision) of the Cayman Islands. However, shareholders are requested
to follow Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association for
including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and procedures
are set out above. Pursuant to Article 85 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, no person other than a director retiring at a meeting
shall, unless recommended by the directors for election, be eligible for
appointment as a director at any general meeting unless a notice signed
by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the notices are submitted after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodging of such notice(s) shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The
procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as director is posted on the Company’s website.

Investors Relations

The Company has maintained a continuing dialogue with the Company'’s
shareholders and investors through various channels, including, among
others, the Company’s interim reports, notices, announcements and the
Company'’s website at www.vastiud.com. The Company also holds press
conferences from time to time at which the executive directors and senior
management of the Group are available to answer questions regarding the
Group's business and performance.

Change in Constitutional Documents
For the year ended 31 December 2019, there had been no change to the
Company's memorandum and articles of association.
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The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Principal Activities and Analysis of Operations
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Group are the provision of services in the planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns in China.

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis of
the Group's performance during the year and the material factors underlying
its results and financial position as required by schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are included
in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
sections from pages 6 to 9 and pages 10 to 53 of this report, respectively. The
future development of the Group'’s business is discussed in the Chairman’s
Statement from pages 6 to 9 of this report. The Chairman’s Statement and
the Management Discussion and Analysis section form part of this Directors’
Report.

Results

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 91to 92.

Dividend

The Board has proposed to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.2 per share in cash to the shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019, representing a total payment of approximately
HK$330,247,000. The final dividend is subject to approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“"AGM") of the Company proposed
to be held on 2 June 2020.

Upon shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the final dividend
will be payable on or around 27 October 2020 to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on 12 October 2020.
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Closure of Register of Members and Record
Date

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 28 May 2020 to
2 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares of the Company accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 27 May 2020.

The period of closure of the register of members of the Company for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlements to the final dividend is
from 13 October 2020 to 15 October 2020 (both days inclusive), and during
such period, no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for the entitlement of the final dividend, all transfers of shares of
the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate
transfer forms must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 12 October 2020.

Five Year Financial Summary

Five year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 244.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings and Capitalization of Interests
Details of borrowings are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the Group's capitalized interest expenses and other
borrowing costs during the year under review are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Convertible Bonds, Notes and Senior Notes

On 27 December 2017, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Chance Talent Management Limited (the “2018 Subscriber”) and other
parties, pursuant to which the 2018 Subscriber has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, the three-
year term 6% convertible notes in the principal amount of US$50,000,000 (the
"2018 Convertible Bonds”) and the three-year term 6% notes in the principal
amount of US$110,000,000 (the “2018 Notes") (the “2018 Subscription”). The
2018 Convertible Bonds and the 2018 Notes were guaranteed by Mr. Wang
Jianjun, Ms. Zhao Ying, Profit East Limited and certain subsidiaries of the
company.

Completion of the 2018 Subscription took place on 9 January 2018 and
the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the 2018 Notes were issued to the 2018
Subscriber on the same day. Holders of the 2018 Convertible Bonds have
the right at any time during the term of the 2018 Convertible Bonds requiring
the Company to convert all or any part of the principal amount outstanding
under the 2018 Convertible Bonds into Shares of the Company at the initial
conversion price of HK$4.75 per Share, subject to adjustments according to
terms of the agreement.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a total of US$64,000,000 of the
2018 Notes had been redeemed by the Group.

On 28 June 2019, the Company issued the 13% senior notes due 2021
with a principal amount of US$180 million (the “2019 Senior Notes”). The
Senior Notes are listed and traded on the Singapore Stock Exchange.
Details of issuance of the 2019 Senior Notes are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 June 2019 and 26 June 2019. The net proceeds
after deducting the estimated expenses payable by the Group in connection
with the issuance of the 2019 Senior Notes amounted to approximately
US$175.4 million and would be used for repayment of certain of the Group’s
existing indebtedness, investment in the Group’s industrial town projects and
property development projects and general corporate purposes.

Details of the Group’s convertible bonds, notes and senior notes are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year under review
and as at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year under review are set out on page 95 in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves
The Company’s total distributable reserves as at 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB474,959,000.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks and non-bank financial institutions
which granted mortgage loans to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. As at 31 December 2019, such mortgage loan guarantees
amounted to RMB954.2 million compared to RMB966.4 million as at 31
December 2018. Such guarantees would be released upon the earlier of: (i)
the transfer of the relevant building ownership certificates to the purchasers;
or (i) the satisfaction of obligations under the mortgage loans by the
purchasers.

Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and non-bank financial institutions to secure certain loans and
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details, please refer to note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements in this report.

significant Investments, Acquisitions and
Disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has disposed of its
entire equity interests in four subsidiaries to independent third parties for
a total consideration of RMB198,522,000. The Group recognised a loss of
RMB25,795,000 in the profit or loss. These transactions did not constitute a
discloseable transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules as none of the applicable percentage ratios reached 5% or more at the
time of the entering into of such disposal agreement.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies and significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the percentages of purchases
from the Group's largest supplier and the five largest suppliers were 11.7%
and 30.3%, respectively. The percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers were 48.2% and 74.6%,
respectively.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close associates,
nor the substantial shareholders had any interest in the five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group.

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB3,052,000 (2018: RMB15,089,000).

Key Relationships with Employees,
Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets of
the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring environment
to employees and emphasise the personal development of its employees.
The Group maintains a good relationship with our customers and suppliers.
The Group aims to continue providing quality products and services to our
customers and establishing co-operation strategy with our suppliers.

Remuneration Policy and Retirement Benefits
of the Group

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 938 employees (31
December 2018: 1,148 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
also provides various training courses to enhance the employees” skills and
capabilities in all aspects.

Details of the Group's the retirement benefit plans are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to
a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 which will be valid for 10 years from the
adoption date for the primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors
and eligible employees as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the development and the growth of the Group.

/3

FTEHEBRREF
HE2019F12A31BIEFE - REBREZA#H
Rk AAHEROREREE D LD RA11.7%
5%30.3% c AREBZAEF RAREFAEHE
BEEDLE DB A48.2% K 74.6% ©

REERH REEE  FENEEHWBEALR
ITERRRAEERARTE R ERET A [

e

255
e fm.

BX
REBRFANEZIBREL B ARES,052,00070
(20184 : AR#15,089,0007T) °

BES - FFRHEEBNEEE
ARERAERERAKENEREEY — - A%
B EEARRRTIBERSAEE  LRBE
BNEARR - AEBEREP kGRS R
BIR - AEENE BRMENEPREEENE
R BRSBTS A& (AR o

2N 5% 8 37 B BUR SR AR

MR2019F12A831H - AEBEHBFIRBLIEE
(2018512 A318 : 1,148%EE) - AL AR
ERHEARFHINFINREN Y SRRESE
IR R B BNA AT E H KT Bt s B CR -
AN - ANEE TR R IR - FOUEFHE
BESEMRAEREES -

AEEHREFE BF BRI G AN ERE
GEIVR

Bt B RERT 8
ARAHREBEENRAERETINEIZE
8 - RIBAE20156F7 H21 HBBH —HRBRK
AT RE B EiRE AT I ([ 3%t &1 1) (R
AHETSRER) EARSFHARENER
MIE RSB EH M B BB 2R T -

Annual Report 2019 %



74

Director's Report

EEEHRE

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant to eligible employees including
Directors, employees, consultants, business partners or advisers, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Under the rules of the Scheme, the
Board has discretion to set a minimum period for which a share option has
to be held before it can be exercised. Such discretion allows the Board to
provide incentives to grantees to remain employed with the Group during
the minimum period and thereby enabling the Group to benefit from the
continued services of such grantees during such period. This discretion,
coupled with the power of the Board to impose any performance target as it
considers appropriate before any share option can be exercised, enables the
Group to incentivise the grantees. Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board also
has discretion in determining the subscription price in respect of any share
option.

The total number of shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of the Scheme is passed
on 21 July 2015 were 163,764,100 shares, representing 10% of the total
number of shares in issue at the date on which the Scheme as adopted.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to any participants (including
cancelled, exercised and outstanding share options), in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue,
unless (i) a circular is despatched to the shareholders; (i) the shareholders
approve the grant of the share options in excess of the 1% limit referred to in
this paragraph; and (iii) the relevant participant and his close associates (or his
associates if the participant is a connected person) shall abstain from voting.
The number and terms (including the subscription price) of share options to
be granted to such participant(s) must be fixed before shareholders” approval.

On 28 July 2015, 90,750,000 share options to subscribe for up to a total of
90,750,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted
to certain individuals under the Scheme. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 July 2015.

As at 31 December 2019, the number of shares in respect of which options
remained outstanding under the Scheme was 51,300,000, and the remaining
life of the scheme is approximately 5 years and 7 months.
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The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the

75

VAN B f BRRE TR F AL AT 8 T i R T2

year:
Price of Company's
Number of share options shares
RAHEHA ERARBUER
Date of Exercise Exercise
At1 At 31 grant of priceof  period of
January Granted Lapsed  December share share share
Name or category 2019 during during 2019 options options option At grant At exercise
of participant R2019%  theyear  theyear  R2019%F R R EE R EE date date
SMmENEERER 118 RERFE RERXX 128318 REAH e IS RREAE  ROEAH
HKS HKS HKS
B B ok
Executive directors
HTES
Yang Yun 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
BR 20158 i3l NEA
7H288
Wang Yagang 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000  28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 2.80 N/A
B 20155 fitE NEm
7A288
Huang Peikun 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000  28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 2.80 N/A
HiEH 20155 fitEE TER
7R288
13,500,000 - - 13,500,000
Other employees and 40,500,000 - (27000000 37,800,000  28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 2.80 N/A
those who have 2015%F il TER
contributed or may 7H288
contribute to the Group
HitEEREEHTHHARE
fEHERWAL
54,000,000 - (2,700,000 51,300,000
Note 1: One-third of which are exercisable during the periods from 28 July 2016 to 31 MiEE1 . =5 2 —R{H5 EIEER 201657 A28 H 2022

July 2022, from 28 July 2017 to 31 July 2022 and from 28 July 2019 to 31 July

2022, respectively.

Details of the Group’s Share Option Scheme are set out in note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this report were:

Directors Position
Wang Jianjun Executive Director, Chairman of

the Board and President of the Company
Yang yun Executive Director and Vice President
Wang Yagang Executive Director and Vice President
Huang Peikun Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Wang Wei Executive Director
Zhao Ying Non-Executive Director
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent Non-executive Director
Hsieh Yafang Independent Non-executive Director
Wang Yijiang Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 54 to 58. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company's last published annual
report.

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years which may
be extended as each and the Company may agree, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company. Article 84 of the articles of association of the
Company provides that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with any member of the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without the payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Significant Contracts
Save as disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which any Director or Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial
year or at any time during the financial year under review.
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Directors’ Rights to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year under review,
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that
would enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised
any such right.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors

As at 31 December 2019, the interest or short positions of the Directors or
the chief executive of the Company in the shares or underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company:

/7

EEREROIESFHNER

BAREREES  NRFHEEMMBR RN
O EAF E M MR L E R R AR
AEEARBEE AR A SEAEMEAB MK
DREFMER - MEEFRWFEMAEH8
BRA T F 2RI T A R A R B SR
HAit)E NERRBRA L EBEFOEN - BETE
BATE TR SR -

B3

201912318 » ARRIEEHERTHAR
RARE R EBEER(EE R E R AR
(TRB% ISR ) EXVER) e izt sk FE BE A% 1)
REFTHRERER S AT GRIEIS2GEAR
AAFEMELMACHE - SRE LR RIKT 8%
VOFFERAEST AIZE S 1T IS AN B B 2 PO
HMERBAT ¢

RARERD - HERGD REZFNITER

Number of

underlying
shares held Approximate Amount of
Number of under equity  percentage of debentures
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held derivatives shareholding held

BERA

FTETARBEN R IRAE
EEpE BRitE FrERHEE HBERHEE L ER FiiEsSE
Ms. Zhao Ying (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,208,477,664 - 73.19% US$11,500,000
Az (M) Rt ZRER 11,500,00057C
Mr. Wang Jianjun (Note 2) Interest of spouse 1,208,477 664 - 73.19% US$11,500,000
TEERE(MT2) foBiEsm 11,500,00057C
Mr. Huang Peikun Beneficial owner 220,000 4,500,000 0.29% US$3,000,000
HEIEALE BHREBA 3,000,000 T
Mr. Yang Yun Beneficial owner - 4,500,000 0.27% -
Bk BHREBA
Mr. Wang Yagang Beneficial owner - 4,500,000 0.27% -
FoRAIEE BHREBA

Ms. Wang Wei Beneficial owner - - - US$6,200,000
Fhat BRBEEA 6,200,000 T
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Notes:

(1) Ms. Zhao Ying is the sole shareholder of Profit East Limited and is deemed to be
interested in the shares and debentures held by Profit East Limited.

(2)  Mr. Wang Jianjun, the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying, is deemed to be interested in all
the shares and debentures in which Ms. Zhao Ying is interested.

Saved as disclosed above and in the sub-section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or
chief executives had registered an interest or short position in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of relevant persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or the underlying shares, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

MR -

() HEXEAMNRARIFHME—IR - RER/R
FRARRRTAE R K EFFF AR o

Q2 IREEAERBELINRE  HEARBAL
THARENEERND REST A ES

B EXX R EXT Rt BitERT &) N BRI E SN - &
BEEMA BEEEITETHRABEARFME
Al A7 S AB B AR 1 h B RS AR B E 5 M B E 1k
{FISE3521RA T AL KA RTT G HRRIOR R ©

FERR

R2019F 128318 » RGBT HEIR
BEA M E R F E336 15 BFENELMATRE
BEESRABMEBAL(ESRARREE
TTERA BBRIN R T

RAR B RAARERO TR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held shareholding
{h IR RE
RREBE EEME 5 E BHAEDL
Profit East Limited Beneficial Owner 1,208,477,664 73.19%
MEBRAA BEma A
Mr. Wang Wei (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.91%
F A () SIEHEE R
Shenzhen Minde Holding Development Limited* Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.91%
(Note 1)
AYIBREEREE AR AR (M) RiEHEE R
SF Holding (Group) Company Limited* (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.91%
EE R (B R BR AR (MEE) ZiEHEE R
SF Holding Limited (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.91%
JIE & AR BR A Al * (B ET) RiEHEE R
Celestial Ocean Investments Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 163,600,336 9.91%
RBEEFRAR () Ema A
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
hRESIRERREEAR(MIEE2) RiEHEE R
China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
PEIZRRITRD BR A B (H7E2) RIS EE R
CCB International Group Holdings Limited (Note 2)  Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%

RITRIR S EE A A IR A ) (FFE2)

iR HAE S
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Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held shareholding
1h R HE

RRERE ERME FESEE BHESL
CCB Financial Holdings Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
BT RIERAER A B (FEE2) RiEHEE R
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
FRBIRR (R B R A A (H5E2) S PEGEE R
CCBI Investments Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
ERBER R E AR AT (H7E2) RS EE R
Chance Talent Management Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 115,411,263 6.99%
Chance Talent Management Limited (f§5£2) Emia A
*  For identification only * BHER
Notes: BREE -
(1) Celestial Ocean Investments Limited was directly interested in 163,600,336 (1)  R2019F12A318 » KEREGRAGRER

shares of the Company as at 31 December 2019. Celestial Ocean Investments
Limited was directly wholly-owned by SF Holding Limited, which was, in turn,
directly wholly-owned by SF Holding (Group) Company Limited. SF Holding
(Group) Company Limited was owned as to 68.4% by Shenzhen Minde Holding
Development Limited, which was, in turn, owned as to 99.9% by Mr. Wang Wei.
Therefore, each of SF Holding Limited, SF Holding (Group) Company Limited,
Shenzhen Minde Holding Development Limited and Mr. Wang Wei was deemed
to be interested in the 163,600,336 shares in which Celestial Ocean Investments
Limited was interested.

Chance Talent Management Limited, the subscriber of the 2018 Convertible
Bonds, was directly interested in 115,411,263 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2019 (the number of shares involved will be affected by the conversion
price of the 2018 Convertible Bonds which is subject to adjustments according
to terms of the agreement). Chance Talent Management Limited was directly
wholly-owned by CCBI Investments Limited, which was, in turn, directly wholly-
owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited. CCB International (Holdings)
Limited was directly wholly-owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which
was, in turn, directly wholly-owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited.
CCB International Group Holdings Limited was directly wholly-owned by China
Construction Bank Corporation, which was owned as to 57.11% by Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. Therefore, each of CCBI Investments Limited, CCB International
(Holdings) Limited, CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, China Construction Bank Corporation and Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. was deemed to be interested in the 115,411,263 shares in which
Chance Talent Management Limited was interested.

Saved as disclosed above, so far as the directors are aware, no other persons
had registered an interest or short position in any shares or underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified.

F]163,600,336 D P A EiEER - KB
EBERARMBIELIERAERAREEESERS -
MmIEL A ARA R M IELZER (EE)RDE
RAREEZ2EHA - IBLZR(EE)RDER
NEHRRIIAEERER AR N FHEE68.4%
fRYIAEERER AR AR EALERS
99.9% ° FEIt + IBLIERBRAF - IEL A (%
E)RNBIRAR - FYIBARIERERBR AR
REFRESERBARNRBIREERARIES
TR M9163,600,336 M A% 10 R B HERS ©

720194124318 + Chance Talent Management
Limited (2018 F FI A E 5 R A ) K AR A
115411263 P HEEEER (ROBE =
X2018F A EHIREFNRRETE  MAKRES
W% E AR ) - Chance Talent Management
Limited B EERBEIF IR E AR A B EE L EHE -
s REIRIEE AR A A A EEREE(ER) A
RARIEEZEHSE - BIRER(ER)BRAA
HETERIERERARNEELEHES - MET
SRERERABNAETEREBEERERA
RIEER2EHEE - BTRBESEEERER AR H
PRIERRITROBRAREEZEHRSE - MR
Bl RIITROBERAR BT RESRERRE
ERREAS7.11% » it - ZREFIKEFR
~E - BREBEEBR)ARAR - BTERER
BIRATF - ZITEEEEZRERAR - hEIE
BRIRITROHDERAFTRPRAESKRERRAL
A A& B # 18 & K Chance Talent Management
Limited {7 /& # %5 #9115,411,263 X B 17 o #E 5 4
)

B SRS  BEERA - AL
AR IR AR BAR (5 0 B AT R i
RGOS AT RBRAT BTAEY
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Competing Interests

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors is considered
to have an interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Ms. Zhao Ying and Profit East Limited, the controlling shareholders of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”), have entered into a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company on 6 August 2014 (the “"Deed of Non-
competition”). Details of the Deed of Non-Competition have been set out in
the prospectus of the Company dated 13 August 2014. There has been no
change to the terms of the Deed of Non-competition for the year ended 31
December 2019.

During the reporting period, no written notice of any New Opportunity
(as defined in the Deed of Non-competition) had been received by the
Company. The Company has received confirmations on compliance with
their undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition from the Controlling
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Confirmation”).
Upon receiving the Confirmation, the independent non-executive directors
of the Company have reviewed the same as part of the annual review
process. In view of the above, the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any of the
Controlling Shareholders of the non-competition undertakings in the Deed of
Non-competition given by them.

Loan Agreements with Covenants relating
to Specific Performance of the Controlling
Shareholders

Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the 2018 Notes,
the Controlling Shareholders have covenanted to, until all obligations under
the 2018 Convertible Bonds or the 2018 Notes have been performed and
discharged in full by the Company and the guarantors, maintain an aggregate
beneficial ownership (directly or indirectly) of not less than (a) 51% of the
entire issued capital of the Company at all times on or prior to the date on
which all liabilities of the Company under the three-year term convertible
bonds in the principal amount of US$50,000,000 and the three-year term
notes in the principal amount of US$50,000,000 issued by the Company on 23
December 2015 have been unconditionally and irrevocably discharged in full;
and (b) 34% of the entire issued capital of the Company at all times after the
above-mentioned date. A breach of any of such covenant may constitute an
event of default pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the
2018 Notes.

The above requirements as to the maintenance of control result in the
disclosure obligation under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Profit East Limited provided three
unsecured loans of HK$6,000,000 in total to the Company at interest rates of
12% per annum for terms of six months. As the loans were unsecured and
conducted on normal commercial terms or better to the Group, the loans are
fully exempt pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

On 28 June 2019, Mr. Huang Peikun, Ms. Wang Wei and Profit East Limited
have each purchased the 2019 Senior Notes. The subscription price of the
2019 Senior Notes payable by Mr. Huang Peikun, Ms. Wang Wei and Profit
East Limited was 100% of the principal amount of the 2019 Senior Notes
respectively purchased and was the same as the subscription price payable
by the other investors of the 2019 Senior Notes. As the 2019 Senior Notes
were issued under normal commercial terms, and that the 2019 Senior Notes
were not secured by the assets of the Group, the purchase of the 2019 Senior
Notes by Mr. Huang Peikun, Ms. Wang Wei and Profit East Limited are exempt
connected transactions under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the related party transactions constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and there was no connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction of the Group that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group in the
normal course of business are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors (including all the independent non-executive Directors) have
confirmed that the connected transactions disclosed above are on normal
commercial terms and their respective terms are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Company
has complied with all the reporting, announcement and other applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
connected transactions disclosed above.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the period.
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Director's Report

EEEHRE

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, and there is no restriction against such rights
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors are entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of their duty in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director. The Company has purchased and maintained Directors’
liability insurance during the year under review, which provides appropriate
coverage for the Directors.

Environmental Policy

The Company is committed to supporting environmental sustainability. The
Company encourages environmental protection and adheres to the principle
of recycling and reducing, including encouraging double-sided printing and
copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance. The Company will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures in the
Group's business operation. The Company will publish its environmental,
social and governance report on an annual basis in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
Group’s subsidiaries are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and China. The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s
subsidiaries in China while the Group also has a corporate and administrative
office in Hong Kong. Our establishments and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, China and Hong Kong. During the year under review, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.
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Director's Report

EEEHE

Corporate Governance Practices
The Company is committed to the principles of corporate governance and
corporate responsibility consistent with prudent management. The Board has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules and the Model Code as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings
in the securities of the Company since the Listing Date.

Sufficient Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment, at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jianjun
Chairman

27 March 2020, Hong Kong
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Independent RAuditor's Report

BB R S

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA VAST INDUSTRIAL URBAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China VAST
Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 91 to
243, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by International Accounting Standard Board
(“IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
ERESEE

85

BAEEFTEE

FAsE FHEEMBERFNBEAE - ERAF
AAHENGE B RRERREREANSE
B o BUERRRMEEN G A UBRRREE
BAZEESHATKNESR  HRELEHE
FITRRHEBNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RN ETT 2N ELEERETSE

Valuation of the completed investment properties
BRI REVENGE

We identified the valuation of the completed investment
properties with the use of income capitalisation method as a
key audit matter because it requires an estimation of future
results, a set of assumptions and a determination of key inputs,
including: (i) term yields; (ii) reversionary yields; and (i) market
unit rent of individual unit, which are judgmental. Any changes
to these inputs may have a significant impact on the fair
values. Management determined the fair values of the Group’s
completed investment properties at 31 December 2019 with
the assistance of an independent qualified professional valuer.
ﬁfFﬁE&%‘JT}?ﬁHH&Z¥%ENtiﬂdﬁaﬁl&ﬁ#@%t%ﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁafk
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Details of the completed investment properties and the related
key estimation uncertainty are set out in Note 18 and Note 4,
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Bk TIREMF A RARG IREENFBE D AHNTRE
WIS SRR 18 R I 5E4 ©

Our procedures in relation to the determination of fair values
of the completed investment properties with the use of income
capitalisation method included:
FERBRABREEFE R TIREMELNTENEFEIE

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent qualified professional valuer;
o B & AR BREAEMNBERE « MBI

. Obtaining a copy of valuation report prepared by
the independent qualified professional valuer and
discussing with the independent qualified professional
valuer together with our internal valuation specialists to
understand the basis of determination of valuation; and

o ﬁ%ﬂ%’ﬁi BREEGERMRRNAERERIA - WHEE

VA BB EGERRBEMIANEEESRETNR - AT
ﬁ%’t%iﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁ 3

o Challenging the independent qualified professional valuer
on the methodologies and judgments used in valuing
the completed investment properties, such as (i) term
yields; (ii) reversionary vyields; and (iii) market unit rent
of individual unit, and obtaining the evidence that the
independent qualified professional valuer used to support
the key inputs.
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Key Audit Matters (continueq)

Key audit matter
BREEERE

BARETEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RN ETT SN ELERETEE

Valuation of the trade receivables at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")
BRAFEFABRE((ZQAFEFABR ) WESERFIEN
fh{E

We identified the valuation of the trade receivables at FVTPL
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
of trade receivables at FVTPL, and the valuation is based on
a set of inputs including future sales proceeds and estimated
repayment periods and discount rates which are judgemental.
Any changes to these inputs may have a significant impact on
the fair values.
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21 - ARRATESABRNE HRINFIAEAMRNEE N -
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Management determined the fair values of the Group's trade
receivables at FVTPL at 31 December 2019 with the assistance
of an independent qualified professional valuer. As disclosed
in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, the
fair values of the Group's trade receivables at FVTPL were
RMB2,037 million.
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Details of trade receivables at FVTPL and the related key
estimation uncertainty are set out in Note 38(c) and Note 4,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
BATER ABRNE S RIEIE KA @B st N EE 1R
FHE D BIE P bR e B 5 SRR T E38(0) B P 34 o

Our procedures in relation to the determination of fair value of
the trade receivables at FVTPL are as follows:
EERATEFABRNE ZREGREATENEFIE

e  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent qualified professional valuer;
o GMABUAARBERMGLERMNBERE 2B

e Obtaining a copy of the valuation report prepared by
the independent qualified professional valuer and
discussing with the independent qualified professional
valuer together with our internal valuation specialists to
understand the basis of determination of valuation; and

o ENBVAERBEEMEMRRMNHERSEIA - W
VEERBEGEMRBEMOASDEESRE TR - A
THRETHENEE &

e  Challenging the independent qualified professional valuer
on the methodologies and judgments used in valuing
trade receivables at FVTPL, including future contractual
cash flows, estimated repayment periods and discount
rates, and obtaining the evidence that the independent
qualified professional valuer used to support the key
inputs.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and those
charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

37/

| &F

ﬁ\l\
RAEFRHEMENER - HtBENBEFR
EVER - (BRTEIER S PR IRR AR EED

HE o

\

=

"
5

BMERGANBRENE L TRELMER -
BT R RMEARRGOREES «

REHRASEAMBRRNET - RANEER
BEEMERNMRREBELENEEEFARM
BE MAEET P EFNENRENTHRE L
FHESERER - MREBEHMNTHE - HABA
Eﬂéﬂfﬁiﬁm?ﬁ'ﬁﬁ” SRR

7o HER bt RS BERERENS
I o

EEURERNEERENEGS
MBHRRNEF

S NRIERRABRREEYBREENRES
AGROIMEERE - REEEQ TGRS
W% TEAEZRRVENAIMEIE - LEHRE

VAR & SRR DA B ERFF Sk s AR T B 2K
WEK%%°

5

EREGE MR - EFR8EN
AL E  WEER) - ERECEREN
BH UNRERBECENGER  RIFESR

% BEEESEIRERERERENRE

E\x@

EEEMBHRERES

Annual Report 2019 44



38

Independent RAuditor's Report

BB R S

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Lam, Kam Chiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBEEkEMEHWER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220194 12531 H 1FF/E

91

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31MALEE
2019 2018
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
(= ARET R ARETT

Revenue A

Goods and services 72 om R AR 7S 2,615,703 3,941,329

Leases HE 54,304 53,895
Total Revenue FAL N 5 2,670,007 3,995,224
Cost of sales and services SHE KBRS A (799,339) (1,563,904)
Gross profit E7 1,870,668 2,431,320
Other income EAbUA 7 160,936 170,531
Other expenses Hh 7 (3,781) (59,096)
Other gains and losses E b lras R E18 8 (74,295) (16,079)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE RS THMAS (61,250) (69,911)
Administrative expenses THFRAX (366,623) (430,928)
Finance costs BB 9 (256,408) (194,431)
Impairment losses under expected credit  FEHA{E I LSBT HY

loss model, net of reversal REEIE - ?D[ﬁ?ﬁé@ 10 (13,745) (11,302)
Change in fair value of trade receivables 2 5 U RN AL (38,395) (52,208)
Change in fair value of financial assets at ~ #&AF(EE ABZEHY

fair value through profit or loss MIEEEATES 21 (6,616) (3,212)
Change in fair value of investment REMHEATEZS)

properties 56,844 (709)
Share of (losses) profits of associates FE(RES & A 7] (518 ) e (2,006) 3,623
Share of (losses) profits of joint ventures  fE(h& &R 7 (1) Yz (111) 589
Change in fair value of financial derivative #7481 7& T B A F(EE S 21,890 11,201
Profit before tax R A5 A o A 1,287,108 1,779,388
Income tax expense FriSBiR 13 (458,702) (658,041)
Profit for the year NG 11 828,406 1,121,347
Other comprehensive expense Hib2EEX
Item that will not be reclassified to TEESEEEm AL

profit or loss
Fair value loss on investment in equity BAFES AL M ARG

instruments at fair value through AT EKERNFEEE

other comprehensive income - (3,300)
Other comprehensive expense AEEMEEAS

for the year, net of income tax MRS - (3,300)
Total comprehensive income for AEZHEHRZEEE

the year 828,406 1,118,047
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Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)
e kEMEmEHkER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220194 12431 H 1FFE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018
NOTE RMB’000 RMB'000
= AR¥T T ARETT
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: REGH (EE) D
Owners of the Company NAREER A 830,423 1,110,019
Non-controlling interests eI S R e (2,017) 11,328
828,406 1,121,347
Total comprehensive income (expense) AE2E R (BB :
for the year attributable to:
Oowners of the Company ViN/NETE 2N 830,423 1,106,719
Non-controlling interests eI RS (2,017) 11,328
Total comprehensive income for AELHERRARE
the year 828,406 1,118,047
Earnings per share BRREA
Basic (RMB) EER(ARE) 15 0.50 0.67
Diluted (RMB) BE(ARE) 15 0.48 0.62

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
S A N
e AR R R
As at 31 December 2019 R20194F 12931 H
At 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
BdaE AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B MR 16 893,752 904,132
Prepaid lease payments AN TRERE = 106,138
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 190,560 -
Investment properties A 18 1,034,500 953,700
Interests in associates RELE QR RS 19 272,136 272,642
Interests in joint ventures NG E N RS 20 61,702 60,313
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEBZN
profit or loss WA E 21 149,239 34,030
Trade receivables B 5 FEWEIE 26 1,111,984 740,562
Prepayments and other receivables TEfT R E A U GRIE 27 259,576 136,441
Amounts due from related parties FE UL BB 5 R0R 45(a) 161,787 -
Restricted bank deposits SRHRITIER 28 39,000 5,100
Deferred tax assets RETRIBE B 22 78,657 69,739
4,252,893 3,282,797
Current assets MENEE
In progress land development HETHFZEIEE
arrangements 23 4,127,317 3,579,316
Properties under development for sale HFEBEDME 25 1,519,506 2,114,006
Completed properties for sale FEERTIYE 1,117,632 933,701
Trade receivables =G e 26 1,600,725 1,622,822
Prepayments and other receivables TE T R FoAth fE Y R TE 27 386,718 418,394
Contract assets EBHEE 24 86,605 51,828
Amounts due from related parties UK RaH: 5 RIE 45(a) 3,578 171,343
Restricted bank deposits ZIREHISRITIFR 28 38,756 410,860
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIE S 28 1,260,636 1,752,244
10,141,473 11,054,514
Total assets BERE 14,394,366 14,337,311
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H M FERFRIE 29 1,052,630 1,628,519
Advance from customers for rental HEEBENEFEN
business 14,801 21,784
Amounts due to related parties FE{~ BaHS: 5 5RIE 45(a) 105,597 368,308
Lease liabilities HEBE 33 22,817 -
Current tax liabilities BVERFIIE & (& 609,017 649,015
Contract liabilities AHEE 30 62,060 85,338
Bank and other borrowings $RIT R E MDA IR 31 1,679,489 1,477,701
Convertible bonds, notes and senior notes  FIEA{E %S « 23k M EEEZHE 32 = 110,075
3,546,411 4,340,740
Net current assets REBEEFE 6,595,062 6,713,774
Total assets less current liabilities BELERMEAE 10,847,955 9,996,571
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e AR R (&)

AS at 31 December 2019 7201941231 H

At 31 December

®12H318
2019 2018
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BoaE ARET T ARETFT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank and other borrowings HRITREABIER Sl 2,906,513 3,702,760
Convertible bonds, notes and senior notes  aE#A(ES - =i N ELZERE 32 1,896,744 993,696
Derivative PTERB T A 32 1,620 23,378
Lease liabilities HEBE 33 23,940 -
Deferred tax liabilities EXEFIBAE 22 229,048 173,604
Deferred income EFEUA 34 15,746 -
Contract liabilities AHBE 30 84,161 84,161
5,157,772 4,977,599
Net assets BAEFE 5,690,183 5,018,972
Capital and reserves A& AR R e
Share capital B&AR 35 13,141 13,141
Reserves bt 36 5,662,360 4,987,132
Equity attributable to RARGEE AEEERS
owners of the Company 5,675,501 5,000,273
Non-controlling interests eS| RS 14,682 18,699
TOTAL EQUITY 4R 5,690,183 5,018,972

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 243 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2020 and are

signed on its behalf by:

EEFEN202053 27 B #LE W ETIBEH R
FNABIE243AN G BIRE - XAHUATE
ERKEFEFS

Wang Jianjun T&EE
Director &%

Huang Peikun Z1%i#
Director &%

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

95

BRRALATERA
Equity
attributable
Share to non-
Share Share  Merger  Capital Statutory Revaluation  option  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve  profits  Subtotal  interest  equity
RoEE FRtER
Rx  ROEE AHEE EADE  EEDNR  EHMER i ROEAE gt EbEE  BRER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTR ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARETn ARMTn ARETR ARMTn ARMTn ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2018 R2018%141A
(restated) (&E5)) 13,031 550479 48 28,062 336,553 2400 20519 3241364 4214097 5371 4219468
Total comprehensive AF2E(BR)
(expense) income lhesats
for the year = = = = = (3,300) - 110019 1,106,719 1328 1,118,047
Conversion of convertible  WERfEAH
bonds (Note 32) (Pi3E32) 110 nn2 = = = = = = 42322 = 42302
Appropriations to RIVERRBOE
statutory reserve - - - - - - - - - - -
Dividend distribution MRS (KFE14)
(Note 14) - (420,692) = = = = = - (420,692 - (420,692
Recognition of RiEEEZ A
equity-setled TR (Msa3)
share-based payments
(Note 43) = = = = = = 51827 = 57,821 = 57827
Capital contribution by SRR ER
non-controlling interests ~ &3EE = = = = = - - - - 2000 2000
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31R 1314 171,99 IH] 28,062 336,553 20,741 78346 4351383 5000273 1869 5018972
Total comprehensive TMEEEYE
income (expense) (BR)ew
for the year - - - - - - - 830423 830423 (2,017) 828,406
Dividend distribution ARRH(FrzE14)
(Note 14) - (164,505) - - - - - - (164,505) - (164,505)
Recognition of Rgggsf
equity-setled R (43)
share-ased
payments (Note 43) = = = = . - 9300 - 9300 - 9300
Capital contribution by FEERIES
non-controling interests ~ &jiEE - - = = - - - - - 9,250 9,250
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAT
(Note 44) (Piztaa) = - - - - - - - - (11,2500 (11,250)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31A 13141 7,494 48 28,062 336,553 20,741 87,656 5,181,806 5,675,501 14,682 5,690,183
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n _\éiﬁﬁiﬁii
For the year ended 31 December 2019 220194 12431 H I F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETEMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BREADRT] 1,287,108 1,779,388
Adjustments for: AT R IE MR
Depreciation of property, W - B RERETE
plant and equipment 59,472 42,192
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREAENE 26,950 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments Ta T & S IE S - 1,577
Changes in fair value of BEYMENTES
investment properties (56,844) 709
Changes in fair value of trade receivables - 2 AFEFF ABZENE S
at fair value through profit or loss FEM I TEE 38,395 52,208
Change in fair value of financial assets BAFEABRRETE
at fair value through profit or loss BENTEES 6,616 3,212
Change in estimate of non-current BRI G IBRT A
receivables 36,833 -
Share of losses (profits) of associates FE(ERE A R ETE (k) 2,006 (3,623)
Share of losses (profits) of joint ventures FE(hA & A RIEE (UWes) 111 (589)
Impairment on other receivables H A FEUGRIR R E 10,965 11,302
Impairment on trade receivables B SR IERE 1,470 -
Impairment on amounts due FEUR BE B 5 FOER B
from related parties 1,310 -
Exchange losses b 1R 12,281 19,510
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE K&ER
plant and equipment ! = 325
Interest income FEUA (150,088) (119,616)
Finance costs BUE KA 256,408 194,431
Loss (gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAREE (W) 25,795 (3,037)
Share-based payment expenses ansEnEok-4:! 9,310 57,827
Fair value change of derivative TEMBIARNTEZS (21,890) (11,201)
Operating cash flows before movements EEECEIINLCERERE
in working capital 1,546,208 2,024,615
Increase in land development for sale & TR IR E RN (263,488) (267,813)
(Increase) decrease in properties under FERRPYEGEM) RS
development for sale (62,164) 164,438
Increase in completed properties for sale FEDBITYEEM (171,285) (85,955)
(Increase) decrease in contract assets AHEEGEM) RS (34,777) 33,276
Increase in trade receivables B 5 MW IR N (266,880) (753,509)
Increase in prepayments and other receivables — FE4s K E i FE UL R TE 12 11 (118,670) (67,933)
Increase in amount due from related parties UL B 7 ZRIEE hN = (2,991)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 & E A AL SRIEE AN 183,404 222,296
(Decrease) increase in advance HEXBHEPBERORD)EM
from customers for rental business (6,983) 3,679
Decrease in contract liabilities aHaERD (23,278) (1,065,154)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to FESRESE 5 ZoEE GRS
related parties 1,888 (19,826)
Increase (decrease) in deferred income EFEM AL AN (R 2) 15,746 (2,600)

FERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mERERERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H 1 F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BE12A310LLEE
2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 3 ARBT T ARETT
Cash generated from operations KEEHMFHEE 799,721 182,523
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid XASETEH R I ET (452,174) (302,419)
Net cash generated from (used in) KEEEATE (FTA)RE 558
operating activities 347,547 (119,896)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETEMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BUFIE 22,611 44,271
Payment for acquisition of prepaid EETEMNEE RS [ H5E
lease payments = (108,034)
Payments for acquisition of property, BEDE BERRELH
plant and equipment FIE (354,938) (220,053)
Payments for construction costs of A HE R R A FIE
investment properties (19,970) (88,402)
Payments for right-of-use assets HEREEELRIE (46,022) -
Payments for investment in associates FRE & A Rl E S MR RIE (1,500) (10,000)
Payments for investment in a joint venture  gt—fEI& L QA RHRE X
E/QE] (1,500) =
Proceed from disposal of subsidiaries L EHB A RS EUE 44 157,761 50,219
Payments for financial instruments at fair MIRA B ABROMH
value through profit or loss TASRFRIE (121,825) (37,242)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME « BE KRG
plant and equipment FT{S kI8 294 574
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits REVE R HI5R1TF R 389,824 753,038
Placement of restricted bank deposits FAXRHIHRITER (51,620) (371,045)
Placement of deposits with original FARE|E B &= @A ER
maturity over three months (453,644) (607,000)
Withdrawal of deposits with original REURZ|EA B @ = @ ANER
maturity over three months 296,000 607,500
Payments for purchase of other investments — mif8 & E (0% E S B (3,133,976) (2,578,270)
Proceeds from disposal of other investments  p= & H 3% & K FT{5 2018 3,137,179 2,581,543
Repayment of cash advance — BN T IR S BREE R
by a related party - 1,209
Net cash (used in) generated from investing & EE (FTR )54 %58
activities (181,326) 18,308
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mERERERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BE12A3MBLLEE
2019 2018
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
ft ARBT T ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings raised g ASRITER 46 1,669,821 1,784,500
New other borrowings raised HEAEMER 46 270,000 390,000
Loan from a related party w—2EHs 46 5,140 362,837
Repayment of bank borrowings IRITIEFUER 46 (1,497,182) (1,436,723)
Repayment of other borrowings HAEFUER 46 (1,033,600) (638,554)
Repayment of loans from related parties HEAE A BERRER 46 (267,977) (285,316)
Interests paid BEAIFE 46 (569,894) (481,579)
Issuance of senior notes BITEAERIE 46 1,237,446
Dividend paid EAARE (164,505) (420,692)
Issuance of convertible bonds and notes BT EIRES R EIR 46 - 1,039,488
Repayment of convertible bonds and notes AT #& #a{E 55 & Z=IEIE TR 46 (444,760) (642,455)
Repayments of leases liabilities HEABEER (21,475) -
Capital contribution by non-controlling FEFERS IR B EE
shareholder 9,250 2,000
Transaction costs paid for issuance BITBERIBAS N
of senior notes RSB 46 (31,528) =
Net cash used in financing activities RVEEBFTAR S F5 (839,264) (326,494)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBESEBYRDFE
EQUIVALENTS (673,043) (428,082)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RMA1ENRERRESEZEY
AT 1 JANUARY 1,346,244 1,710,717
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes YNV [ SR B B o 22 23,791 63,609
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R12B31BMNEESRES
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by Z£EY > NRITERRES
bank balances and cash 696,992 1,346,244

FERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

General Information

China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (the
“Company’’) was incorporated and registered as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands on 13 February 2014. The shares of the Company
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 25 August 2014.
The address of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal activity of the
Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries are primarily engaged
in industrial towns development, property development and property
leasing.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of the
Company is Profit East Limited (“Profit East”), a company which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is ultimately
controlled by Ms. Zhao Ying. Ms. Zhao Ying together with her husband,
Mr. Wang lJianjun, are collectively referred to as the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB") which is also the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand ('000) unless otherwise indicated.

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs")

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to IFRSS
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the
first time in the current year:

IFRS 16 Leases
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to IAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to IFRSs  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

—RIEEE
HERREEMRERBERAA(AAT])
1201462 A13B1RIBEFR S S R AR
EHEFMKILABREERAR « AR
AR B2014F8 A25 A RERBHER 5
PR AR ([HEAZFT ) ER £ o RARIE
S AT I = v 263t B Atk & Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands o Z~/A 7]
MEZEEAREER - KB AT EZER
BEXEMRER  MEBRRDFEEE -

RRANREZER AR RERERARR
MRARAF (TR - ER SRR
S(RERLEHS ) MK - BERK
RS - BRI RELKEREEL
EHRERAR R REIZERR

RAMBREAARE(TARE D27
ARBBRAREREWMEB AR (S A
SE)RERAMLE - BB HHEBI - B
BEREDETHRAAZSAN T -

FE R % 5] I E 8 5T B R B 1%

=22 B (T B PR B 5 3 o5 28
81
RAFERBIERBFET REESR
B PR B B 3R 5 2 B
ARERAEERERTAGEREH 2
AEFEe ((ERETENRES ) BEHLH
$rET R 53T BRI R 2

ERHHREEAF 6% HE
ERHERELEREE  HEHEENTHEEE
REERE
GlpeeR ]
FIREFT
BREHERIZORET  AHEIBAT BREURR
BRI ERENEET RBERTARAEARAN

ABRRENREIETHH

RS
EREREEAET  ERMBRSEI0EE
NTERRNERLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments 2.
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments
to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. IFRS 16 superseded IAS 17 Leases (“IAS 17"), and the related
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply IFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying I1AS
17 and IFRIC-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group
has not reassessed contracts which already existed prior to the
date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January 2019,
the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in IFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract
contains a lease.

B R ZRE E TR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

FE I #7 5] B © A2 5T Bl R Bt 3%
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2.1 BIBREBI B HRE F1655 7
g
A BB R R A e F B RS B
SRR F 1657 o BRSBTS LR
F1RBAER LS 17REE
([EE &L $175 ) REABBER
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HENER
AEBERERTRETDE © SLER
e PR B B A A RIS 7 5% e BB B 75
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

2.1 IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee
The Group has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the related
lease liabilities by applying IFRS16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits and comparative information has not
been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under IFRS 16
at transition, the Group applied the following practical expedients
to leases previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17,
on a lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within12 months of
the date of initial application;

ii.  applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with a
similar remaining terms for similar class of underlying assets
in similar economic environment. Specifically, discount
rate for certain leases of properties was determined on a
portfolio basis.

F& R 37 5] B B 18 7] Bl R Bt 75

HEER ([ EIRR M F #

EUNDIEY
2.1 B BHREEAFE165%H

=€)

fERABEA

ANEL BT 1B A AR R B 7 3R 45 2 A
F165% - MBFTFERERERBH
(BN20194E1 818 )R -

R2019F1A18 - AEEBBEA
2 B B 745 ¥ 25 2E Bl 55 16.C8(D)(i) 5% 4
B ERSESNEAEERENE
SMEEBBERFERAELE - RERE
A BENEMEZERENARDEFE
RfER - B ESF| LA -

POEER E A BRI R 2RI 16
SRIA THERTEIER - REFR
FIAHE LR EAIRBRE S FHE
A7 ARG EHEREXHEE
SHREENESRAIATAI{TEES
0

i BETHESHRNERERB
HEE 12 A NERNES
REREEENEERRE

i HREUKERS USSR
HREEMNAGEUNGES
HHERASERE R
Ko BAEWMs  ATYWEMEE
TR EARIBA ST -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments 2.

to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)
2.1 IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied incremental
borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied is 8.4%.

FE I #7 5] B © A2 5T Bl R Bt 3%
s ([ IR RS

\)

Al ) )

2.1 BIRB s EXER|IF 165570
&8
EEEBAE

RERLA D ERKEMENHEN

HERER  AEEEREXERR
HERAAEEEERNEEERA
R o e A ) INAE T AR AR IZE
fETAN K 738.4%

At 1 January
2019
A2019F181H
RMB'000
AREFIT
Operating lease commitments disclosed 201812 A31 B #FEH
as at 31 December 2018 AT E ARG 50,490
Lease liabilities discounted REBISEERF =T
at relevant incremental borrowing rates MEERE 42,410
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases T FEREA R —EHITRE (265)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 MR2019F1 A1BNHEEARE 42,145
Analysed as DR
Current RED 21,214
Non-current IERE 20,931
42,145

B R ZRE E TR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

2.1 IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

W)

Eﬁ%ﬂ&aﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ELER| ([ EPBRE IS 3R &%
Al 1) )
2.1 BB #5sR&EXER|IFE 165570
- {C-)
EBEBA(E)

As a lessee (continued)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at 1 M20195E1A1R - BEAMERESE
January 2019 comprises the following: IREEREATSIE :
Right-of-use
assets
EREEE
Note RMB’000
Hd 3 ARETT
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases & F B BR B 75 a5 ZE BI 25 1658
recognised upon application of IFRS 16 EETERELCEEER/EN
FREEE 42,145
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments BIEMEEREEN DL @) 106,138
148,283
By class: REERD ¢
Land and building T R EEY) 42,145
Leasehold lands HE T 106,138
148,283

(@ Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") were classified as prepaid lease
payments as at 31 December 2018. Upon application
of IFRS 16, the prepaid lease payments amounting to
RMB106,138,000 were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 16, the
Group is not required to make any adjustment on transition for
leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for these leases
in accordance with IFRS 16 from the date of initial application and
comparative information has not been restated.

(a) M2018F12A318 » R #E
ARZEMBE([HE])MBEEL
WIEMRIES B ABANEER
I8 - fEF BIRR BT RS 2RI S
16551% - ERBEEREARE
106,138,000 L EF D = A
A °

ERHEA

RIRBIFR A5 3R S R B 165R R0 B
R AEEBARNERRE AR E
ERHEANEEEL EFHAE - H
AR ERIER B ER AR IR B R B 75 5k
SEAFISTHZEEEAR - BT
FTEIILEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments 2.
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

2.1 IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessor (Continued)

Before application of IFRS 16, refundable rental deposits received
were considered as rights and obligations under leases to which
IAS 17 applied. Based on the definition of lease payments under
IFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right-of-
use assets and were carried at amortised cost and included in
other payables.

There is no impact of transition to IFRS 16 on retained profits at 1
January 2019.

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised

FE 75T 2 B 45 5T B B2 B 25
Eﬁ%&ﬁﬂ(rr‘%,ﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ
' 1))
2.1 BB B SR EERFE1655 5
E”“a:/;
EAHBAE)

AR BRI B3R S AL R 1657 AT
EHSZHXTL?%?ETT&%%WEHJE%I

BETERFE7RAEE R T AR R
E'EE RIRBEFR T S RN F 1655
BENRHES - AHRSIIFRGE
FAREE ERBR MR - W HAAR
AR BET AEAD R FROR

R2019%F1 818 @ BEZREREGTH
wEERIE 165 R D BEFEL EF

2o
=

N

20191 A1 RER A BB R A RER

in the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January HELECERE A TARE - KXEFT
2019. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not ZHIE B WS A o
been included.
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts
reported at under IFRS 16
31 December at 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
M2019%181H
SRR WRIE BB 75
2018%12831H WEERIFE 165
EHNEEE AE FENREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Prepaid lease payments ERNHEERE 106,138 (106,138) -
Right-of-Use assets EREEE - 148,283 148,283
Current Liabilities nEaE
Lease liabilities HEAE - 21,214 21,214
Non-current Liabilities kREBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE - 20,931 20,931
Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities Mzt - R EEHE2019F 128318 IEFE

under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019,
movements in working capital have been computed based on
opening consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January
2019 as disclosed above.

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments 2. ERHITRCEBITERETE

to International Financial Reporting WEER ([ BB RS HE

Standards (“IFRSS") (continued) Al ) )

2.2 Impacts and changes in accounting policies of 2.2 FERHEMITET & EIEET BB
application of other new and amendments to BREENNTERSTHE

IFRSS
Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“IFRS 9), including the impairment requirements, to
long-term interests in associates or joint ventures to which the
equity method is not applied that form part of the net investment
in the investee. Furthermore, in applying IFRS 9 to long-term
interests, an entity does not take into account adjustments to
their carrying amount required by IAS 28 (i.e. adjustments to
the carrying amount of long-term interests arising from the
allocation of losses of the investee or assessment of impairment
in accordance with IAS 28).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no amounts due
from joint ventures or associates that are considered as long-
term interests that, in substance form part of the Group’s net
investments in the relevant joint ventures and associates.
However, the application is not expected to have impact as the
Group's existing accounting policies are consistent with the
requirements clarified by the amendments.

g

B PR EEH E R F 28R B RT R
BEARARGEQAANWRE
5

RIETTRE - EEEERMERE
BIEORA B T A (BRI E]RE
BIZE9%E 1) (R B R EHE ) 8 AR
ERARARDAORMRST - %
SRAESERHREHRFRAN
—#5 - TEAERE - 5 BE
BRET R R B OSRE FARN R
E=E - HEREET REREERE
2857 E MR E B (R AR
BEHEAEBHRENRERDE
SRERT LM R S IRE E
)

s
e

R20195F12 8318 - REBEERR
ARAEZNERE EARIREEA
AIE  ZEREEE FEKNAEE
RIBEE & QR REEE A RIFIRER
—IH o R - ARAEEBEENE
FTBUREREFTFTEBAN ER—3 - B
LT ERATEEERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSS in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

2,

R %ﬁﬁ&aﬂgﬂ@@ﬂﬂﬁ
iﬁjjé;—’iﬁ—ﬁu ([ [ BR Bt 75 3 45 %
Al )
CEMAEERERNFITREIET
[ B2 Bt 75 4R 45 2
AEEIWLREREERTIEEMERR

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: EREFNE] REASF] RBR I H5 R 5 £ R
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’ Bl Sy ‘J%mﬁ FEREAT
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business? Bl e R R E )iz
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between B/’%,Eﬁ%i&i@ﬂw%mf& KREZHERE] A5
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint IR eS| F085E 5] RERAMEENE
Venture? E7:5-d
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or BIR eS| S8 5T Vi EE il
Non-currents iopr
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material* Bl e R 15 RE EZMHER
and IAS 8 SEPERERS B
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform¢ il e o FlEEEYE

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

PERAIEIERER
HHREERRTRE

1 202141 B1 B2 BRI FEERE A
B e

2 HURE B 818202051 A1 Ak Z R FRE
HEFERBERARZROEBAHRE
EWIBAR -

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. 3 RE B #isk 2 & s 2 S EBRAR -

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. 4 202041 A1 B 3k 2 1% 5 tA & F S B &
B e

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. 5 R2022F1 A1 B2 BB FE RS

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

B R ZRE E TR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

e
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S ERT VB TSRS B RAE LR E R 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Except for the amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business
The amendments:

o add an optional concentration test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
iS not a business. The election on whether to apply the optional
concentration test is available on transaction-by-transaction basis;

o clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs; and

o narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by focusing on
goods and services provided to customers and by removing the
reference to an ability to reduce costs.

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and provide
additional guidance with the objective of assisting entities to determine
whether a transaction should be accounted for as a business
combination or an asset acquisition. Furthermore, an optional
concentration test is introduced to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
amendments will be mandatorily effective to the Group prospectively
for acquisition transactions completed on or after 1 January 2020.

FE R ¥ 5] &R E1E 5] B BR B 7%
WEER ([ BRI iR &£
Al ) e

 fE#R1E 8 R AE MBI FET R E18ET
B R B 7 3R e 2E Bl ()
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AEEENEAS LT REETH
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BT HERREATE -

B PR Bt 75 3 5 2R R SE 3 RAS T R
HYE 25

AT -

o MMAERMMETEAR - Bk
B R NEERTBNEBDN
Al - IRERN R HEERZELE
FREZRENSEHRAR

o BBFEREBRA/EY  MREMN—A
BEBREEMBARDBEARLAIE
EHENERRERNEAREENE
i R

o EBTINAEFATRENERRR
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5 BHRBEREREERSHEEREIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSS in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS
28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures deal with situations
where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that
does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are recognised
in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and
losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that
is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are recognised
in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors' interests in the new associate or joint venture.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 (since 1 January
2019) or IAS 17 (before application of IFRS 16), and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
The principal accounting policies set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;,

. iS exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of
the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations (land
infrastructure development, marketing and promotional service and
industrial towns maintenance), the Group allocates the transaction price
to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service underlying
each performance obligation is determined at contract inception. It
represents the price at which the Group would sell a promised good
or service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not
directly observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods
or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best depict the Group's
performance in transferring control of goods or services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies continued) 3. EERHEEw

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (marketing and
promotional service), the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using either the expected value method or
the most likely amount, depending on which method better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such
an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated
transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully
the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of the time value of money if
the timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides
the customer or the Group with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the payment
terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of the
associated goods or services less than one year, the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for any
significant financing component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Existence of significant financing component
(Continued)

For advance payments received from customers before the transfer
of the associated goods or services in which the Group adjusts for
the promised amount of consideration for a significant financing
component, the Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. The relevant interest expenses during the period
between the advance payments were received and the transfer of the
associated goods and services are accounted for on the same basis as
other borrowing costs.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Group
incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an asset if it
expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all incremental
costs to obtain a contract if these costs would otherwise have been
fully amortised to profit or loss within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under IFRS16 at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative standalone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of property that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straightline basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives received,

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term
are depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term, upon exercising purchase options, the
carrying amount of the relevant right-of-use assets is transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition
of investment property or inventory as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-use assets that
meet the definition of investment property and inventory are presented
within “investment properties”, “properties under development for sale”
and “completed properties for sale” respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M (4
For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. EERHEEw

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:
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the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price
to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

8

B

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating leases. Specially, the entire consideration (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold land
and the building element in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under finance lease.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part
of the lease payments for the new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than that entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the re-translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related asset
is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the general borrowing
pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or l0ss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies continued) 3. EERHEEw

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions. Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at
the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, interests in associates and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under construction for such
puUrposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

Investment property carried at fair value is transferred to owner-
occupied property or inventory when there is a change in use evidenced
by the ending of an operating lease and the commencement of owner
occupation. The property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting is
its fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Effective 1 January
2019, a leased property which is recognised as a right-of-use asset
upon application of IFRS 16 is derecognised if the Group as intermediate
lessor classifies the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or l0ss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In progress land development arrangements
Development cost of in progress land development arrangements
which are under collaboration arrangements with the relevant local
government authority comprises the aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, capitalised staff costs, capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowing funds during the period of construction and
other costs directly attributable to such in progress land development
arrangements.

In progress land development arrangements is stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account
the Group's share of estimated proceeds derived from the sale of in
progress land development arrangements by the local government
authorities, less costs to completion and the costs to be incurred
in realising the revenue derived from the sale of in progress land
development arrangements based on prevailing market conditions.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be sold upon
completion of development and properties for sale are classified
as current assets. Except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the accounting policies of
right-of-use assets upon the application of IFRS 16, properties under
development for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to completed
properties for sale upon completion.

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined based on prevailing
market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment on tangible assets and right-of-use
assets

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the assets
belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting contractual
cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and
debt instruments/receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)
(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or l0ss.

(i)~ Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade receivables — at
amortised cost, other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances) and financial guarantee
contracts and contract assets which are subject to impairment under
IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for contract assets and trade
receivables — at amortised cost. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

() Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effect.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

3 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

3 existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk, for financial guarantee contracts, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider,

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. For a lease receivables, the cash flows used
for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with IFRS 16 (since
1 January 2019) or IAS 17 (prior to 1 January 2019).

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to
make payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the holder, the debtor or any other party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies continued) 3. EERHEEw
Financial instruments (continued) MBITAR®
Financial assets (continued) MBEE @)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment BT 52 e 1R 15 T B 5 2 2 2 I E 95 7B
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued) ETTR BRI E M IE B 6968 ()
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued) () TERFEAEXRGERER(E)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply a
discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks are taken into
account by adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the
cash shortfalls being discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognised over the guarantee period.

Except for receivables that are measured at FVTPL and financial
guarantee contracts, the Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables carried
at amortised cost and contract assets where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or l0ss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred
to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities of the Group including trade and other payables,
bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds, notes and senior notes,
and amounts due to related parties are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue Costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabilities
are either held for trading or those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with
IFRS 9; and

. the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee period.

Convertible bonds and notes

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion option
derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the
debt component of the convertible bonds and notes is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The derivative
component is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds and
notes are allocated to the debt and derivative components in proportion
to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of the debt portion
and are amortised over the period of the convertible bonds and notes
using the effective interest method. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are charged to profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or l0ss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial asset
hosts within the scope of IFRS 9 are not separated. The entire hybrid
contract is classified and subsequently measured in its entirety as either
amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not
financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single instrument that are
separated from the host contracts are treated as a single compound
embedded derivative unless those derivatives relate to different risk
exposures and are readily separable and independent of each other.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
with regards to the Group’s investment properties located in the
mainland China, the directors of the Company considered that they
are held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in these investment
properties over time. Therefore, the directors of the Company have
determined with the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties located in the mainland China measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As
a result, the Group recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair value
of the Group'’s investment properties located in the mainland China
on the basis that the entire carrying amounts of these properties are
recovered through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months.

B 52 = 5T I iy & fb 5 A B3 B
RENEERIT

RN RESATIL A S BB IR - A
ARE AR KRR IR ML E
SR EAREE R LB - i RER -
HRIAMB R RREE T SRR BHR
BIEMOEE L - ERARTLRNS
CEENTR

AEBSFHERN IS RAABMRER
EHEHERHELERIE - ERMERE
FEELGEFHETOHRE - AEE HRER
BRAERT  BERERIZEELETND
fil RO AR - RIFEE HI R R R AR R
BRAER] °

REER ST BRI E E X E
B3p R BEOHIRTSD - AT RER B
AASERHEENEER B HRE AR
BEENEERLEAREANENEE
1M -

REVEWIELERE

ST EBRARFERAAENREDER
EENEEHIREE  ARREZEEM
AEBCRHBEAMNREYE - BEZ
EWEA—ERERAAFER - MUbER
B EIRRERZSREMERME S MR
DB - Bt - ARREFERERA
RFERAGFFEURHE AR E Y E
MEREZEEBHEERENKRRKREHE
B o Hult - AREERAMCR A EAMA
REVENZHBRAERBEMAKENE
% BREMERNAFELSERETH
o

EEr T E RN EZRIT
R|ERK - BEARRERR+ @A
MAERAEREEAEEABEORRK
AREERBEEMES TANEREE
SCRET ©

Annual Report 2019 %



146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key 4.

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties
Investment properties were stated at fair values determined by
management with the assistance of an independent qualified
professional valuer. The determination of the fair values of the
completed investment properties with the use income capitalisation
method involves an estimation of future results, a set of assumptions
and a determination of key inputs, including: (i) term vyields; (ii)
reversionary yields, and (iii) market unit rent of individual unit; which
are judgmental. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of
the Company have exercised their judgment and are satisfied that
the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in
profit or loss.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2019 was approximately RMB1,034,500,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB953,700,000). More details are set out in note 18.

Fair value measurement of certain trade receivables
at FVTPL

Certain of the Group’s trade receivables amounting to
RMB2,037,290,000 (31 December 2018: RMB2,036,857,000) as at 31
December 2019 are classified as FVTPL and measured at fair values,
which were determined by management with the assistance of an
independent qualified professional valuer. Judgement and estimation
are required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and
the relevant inputs thereof, mainly including future contractual cash
flows, estimated repayment periods and discount rates. See note
38(c) for further disclosures. Changes to these assumptions would
result in changes in the fair values of these trade receivables and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key 4. B St UE R &5 FeEE
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued) HENEERRE@)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) AT THAEENEERIR(E)
Income tax expense BB

As at 31 December 2019, deferred tax assets of RMB78,657,000 (31 MR2019F 12 A318 - AR ¥ 78,657,000
December 2018: RMB69,739,000) were recognised in the consolidated L (201812 A31H + AR 69,739,000
statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets in respect of certain )M EERBEERLGS HBHRRAEXTR
tax losses of RMB419,626,000 (31 December 2018: RMB158,639,000) R o BRKREETERARKRMAER - A
and deductible temporary differences of RMB33,436,000 (31 December RA TS T HIEEE AR 419,626,000
2018: RMB145,256,000) were not recognised in the consolidated JC(20184F 12 A31H : AR # 158,639,000
statement of financial position due to the unpredictability of future profit J0) R AT RN s = %3 A KR #533,436,0007T
streams. The realisation of the deferred tax assets mainly depends (201812318 : AR®145,256,000) £
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences AR EANEREERIBEE - &
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits ERIBEAESE T EET AN RRESE S
generated are less or more than expected, a reversal or future provision BRI EMTERERE S BRES
of deferred tax assets may arise, which will be recognised in profit or HFE DRSS R - BIAT g 1 IRIEE
loss in the period in which such a reversal or further provision takes TIEE ER R SRR EE  BREROEE
place. ROl oh i — DB HARI e B P ERR o
Revenue 5. KA

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

LATF R 7K 5= B & = 20194F ) 2018412 A 31
At FERUWRADHT ©

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31MALEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARET T

Income arising from land development HE TR

arrangements IHB WA 2,401,004 2,801,516
Revenue from properties sales YIS SHE A 214,699 1,139,813
Revenue from property leasing VISR EWA 54,304 53,895
2,670,007 3,995,224
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

5. Revenue (continued) 5. WA
() Disaggregation of revenue from contract with () BEFEEBVANDE
customers

For the year ended
31 December 2019
BZE2019F12A31BLEE
Income arising
from land
development Revenue from
arrangements properties sales

FELi MEHE
RIS E A WA 'ON
Segments 2B RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R AR¥ET
Timing of revenue recognition TR WA B
A point in time R, 2,090,457 214,699
Over time EXE—ERER 310,547 -
Total revenue from contract with customers & 54 R&) 48 U A 2,401,004 214,699
For the year ended
31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31HILFE
Income arising
from land
development Revenue from
arrangements properties sales
FELi MEIHE
FEIEE WA WA
Segments Wanis RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT
Timing of revenue recognition R A B
A point in time EXE 52 1,965,918 1,139,813
Over time EE—EEA 835,598 -
Total revenue from contract with customers & F & EIg 42U A 2,801,516 1,139,813
All of the Group’s revenue is generated in the PRC based on %2 BT 6 78 5 X P IR 4 AR 7% P 72 b 51
where goods are sold or services are rendered, and substantially B AEERBRAKREFRE - A
all of the Group's identifiable assets and liabilities are located in SEBEARH BN EERAEAN
the PRC. RAE e

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

5. Revenue (ontinued) 5. WA
(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with (i) EFEANEHER
customers
Industrial towns development under collaboration BERFETHEEXTERRE
arrangements

The industrial town development agreements the Group signed
with the Longhe local government authority (“Longhe Park”) is
a kind of collaboration arrangement, under which the Group
cooperates with the local government authority to develop
and operate the industrial town, including land infrastructure
development, marketing and promotional services, and industrial
town maintenance services.

For land infrastructure development under collaboration
arrangements with above local government authority, the Group
is given the right to carry out construction and preparation works
in respect of land infrastructure within certain districts. When
the land plots are sold by the local government authority to
land buyers through public auction, tender or listing, the Group
is entitled to receive from the local government authority a
proportion of the proceeds from land sales.

The Group’s share of the proceeds from the land development is
recognised upon completion of related construction works and
when the amount of income can be measured reliably, which
occurs upon sales of land plots by the local government authority.
Accordingly, at the time of the sales of land, proceeds entitled to
be received from the local government authority by the Group are
recognised as revenue.

As consideration for its promotion and maintenance services, the
Group shares certain percent of the local government authority’s
return from the operating of Longhe Park annually.

AN B BREEA 3 77 BURT B ([ BB =
e DBRITNEXRTHEERBEL —
AEMEREE - Bt ANEE TR
FHRESFERIEBEXTE &
EL AR RERE - SR EER
% AREE ST MRS

SR _E i 7T BRATHEE A 1Ry L3t
ERREFAERE  AEBEERESE
T3l 5 POHE 7T - B SR RO R
EHTIR - SR RT RS
BARME  B1F  #EESTAHE
TLMWERE - AEBE AR TR
F 4 B URCER £ 30 3 2 B — BF 0 IR

=~

Bl

AEEN B RKENTE  EFH
MR TSR AR 77 TR AT HE A
SR A A B R SEAt BURARTETT
WA o Eib - FEHE L - ANEE
B REIAIH 77 BT 4 B TS HO MR aR FE R
A

ERERERGEERBHRE  A&E
BEAE T HOID Z 477 R E
BEH T [ O 8 (IR [ 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

5. Revenue (continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers (Continued)

Industrial towns development for other parks
The industrial town development agreements the Group signed
with the local government authorities of other industrial parks
contain three performance obligations as followings: (i) land
infrastructure development, (i) marketing and promotional service
and (iii) industrial towns maintenance.

For land infrastructure development services and
the industrial towns maintenance services (including
infrastructure maintenance and property management),
each service is recognised as one performance obligation
satisfied over time as the Group creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these construction
and maintenance services based on the stage of completion
of the contract using input method.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the
same contract, is recognised over the period in which
the construction services are performed representing the
Group's right to consideration for the services performed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group'’s future
performance in achieving specified milestones. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional.

For the marketing and promotional services, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when control of the services
has provided and the estimated amount of variable
consideration is included in the transaction price only to the
extent that is highly probable that such estimation will not
result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

5. WA

(i) EFEANBEREE®)

HitEEMNERTHEER

7 58 8 Bt 2 22 B0 #0300 75 BT
BIMEXTRAERGHEE=IARE
NEE - AEWMT : () LI0ERRIE

FE

(i) &5 88 Mo 4 R AR 7S e (i) EE 2 T

SAMEE o

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

T b B R MR AR S R E S
TSR AE AR S (B FE 2R SR e
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EREVBHEE - MAEAEA
o IRBEE TR BERZS
FERR R PRISHEITHER o

& A& E (F0kk B4E R & K948R
WENE R RETERRISH
MR AT ASERERET
RISWER R BHET - REA
ZEEFBURR A E B AR RE
RIEEERENRE - AHNE
ERRERIK AEGEHRERE
B SR GIE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

5. WA
(i) ZEFEHANBAEE®)

5. Revenue continued)
(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers (continued)

Revenue from properties sales (revenue
recognised at a point in time)

For contracts entered into with customers on sales of properties,
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
alternative use to the Group. Based on the opinion from external
legal counsel, taking into consideration of the relevant contract
terms and the legal environment, the Group concludes that the
Group does not have an enforceable right to payment prior to
transfer of the relevant properties to customers. Revenue from
sales of residential properties is therefore recognised at a point
in time when the completed property is transferred to customers,
being at the point that the customer obtains the control of the
completed property and the Group has present right to payment
and collection of the consideration is probable.

The Group receives the deposits from customers when they sign
the sale and purchase agreement. However, depending on market
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount compared
to the listed sales price, provided that the customers agree to
pay the balance of the consideration early while construction is
still ongoing. Such advance payment schemes result in contract
liabilities being recognised throughout the property construction
period for the full amount of the contract price.

The Group considers the advance payment schemes contain
significant financing component and accordingly the amount
of consideration is adjusted for the effects of the time value of
money taking into consideration the credit characteristics of
the Group. As this accrual increases the amount of the contract
liability during the period of construction, it increases the amount
of revenue recognised when control of the completed property is
transferred to the customer.

MEHEBA (RAERE -
G
RMEHERRSTINAOME -
AEBNEOLRELHAEEER
RABMEE - LIRSMEDERRRT 0
ER  EERAMS 0GR RAER
% AKERE  EEBERNET
EFR - AEEY WG RN TR
WMITHF - it - EEMEHEY
ARERTYEEE T 55 R
R EFEECRTYENLS
HETT 44 8 1 MR 1 3RO B S
AT RO (B RS R8 -

AEBRBPEZEEBARRER
WERET & » 2T - RFHHMAM - &
SEARMIISERTREN
HRFPAREERIBETRE M
REGER - ZBRENFEEBHRY
FERPREHENERERENE

f& -

AEERBAENKEEITHEERR
B e R AKRENEERA
% BEBNRREEEYEABRRE
S o AN LLERTIR B N R AR
MERNBESHE  BHRKRTYEN
THIEEEEREFR  ERAKRAS
A PTIEIN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

5. Revenue continued) 5.

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers
For sales from properties, the performance obligation of the
Group is part of a contract that has an expected duration of one
year or less as permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

(iv) Leases

L ONC)
(iii) P HMEEFSANRGELNE
EHRZEE

RUEHENS - AEENEOHEE
B 1 B % B 7% o o5 2R RI B 1557 A AT
MIERSE —F R A TR A KR —3F
D NBEZSFRERBRANNRS
BRI ARBKE

(iv) HE

Year ended

31 December
2019
BZ2019%F
12A31HLLFE
RMB’000
AR¥T

For operating leases: KEEE
Lease payments that are fixed EE A&

54,304

R R EETEEE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

6. Segment Information 6.
The executive directors of the Group are identified as the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM") of the Group for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment. The information
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment focuses specifically on respective businesses

FAOREREFERRME - AERERT
EERBERAEBENTIERLRESE
(TEEREREE]) - Ao EERKLFH
REMAEZLERAREERNERLE
EZERAKBNZEER - AEENKE

of the Group. The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as FEReED AT ¢
follows:
e Industrial towns development — Land infrastructure and industrial o EEMBETE-THEMREUKRE

towns development and maintenance XTREEREE

. Property development — Development and sale of properties o WIEBRE -WEBRNIHE
e Property leasing — Lease of properties o YHEME-HEWE
Segment revenue and results DEBUI AR 3 4E
Industrial
towns Property Property
development  development leasing Total
EEMRRR MERR MERE &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TR ARBTR AR%BTR ARBTR
For the year ended HE2019%F
31 December 2019 128310 ILEE
Segment revenue AEMA
~ External segment revenue —EINA BB 2,401,004 214,699 54,304 2,670,007
Consolidated revenue ZAalA 2,401,004 214,699 54,304 2,670,007
Segment results DEEE 1,579,249 (4,814) 50,066 1,624,501
Unallocated profit or loss items: AOEBRER
Other income HlA 29,052
Other expense Hip i (2,803)
Other gains and losses Hivlhas REE (72,883)
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSIHAY (11,493)
Administrative expenses TBEX (118,557)
Gain on fair value change of derivative 4748 T A
AT EZHKE 21,890
Finance costs BER A (177,015)
Loss on fair value change of financial BRAFET A BRI
assets at FVTPL BEATEZDEE (5,584)
Profit before tax BB B A 1,287,108
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

6. Segment Information (continue) 6.
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

SRS )
2 EBURA R SR ()

Industrial
towns Property Property
development development leasing Total
EXTHEERE MEERE MERE G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARETFT ARETT
For the year ended HZ2018%F
31 December 2018 2A31BILLEE
Segment revenue AEUA
~ External segment revenue — N EBA 2,801,516 1,139,813 53,895 3,995,224
Consolidated revenue ZAKA 2,801,516 1,139,813 53,895 3,995,224
Segment results DEEE 1,563,418 553,244 3,592 2,120,254
Unallocated profit or loss items: ROEBRER :
Other income HEllA 18,472
Other expense Hips (40,000)
Other gains and losses Hilzs R &8 (27,654)
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSBTHAX (15,445)
Administrative expenses TBREX (198,487)
Gain on fair value change of derivative ﬁ@ﬁﬂlﬂ
------- BRI 11,201
Finance costs Eﬂéﬁmi (85,741)
Loss on fair value change of BRATEFABRNED
other financial assets at FVTPL BBEERTEZEER (3212)
Profit before tax BT AR A 1,779,388

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
information are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3 to these consolidated financial statements. Segment results
represent the profit earned by each segment without allocation of
certain items incurred for central management purpose, including
certain other income, certain other expenses, certain other gains and
losses, certain selling and marketing expenses, certain administrative
expenses, gain on fair value change of derivative, loss on fair value
change of financial assets at FVTPL and certain finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance.

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. DEPER)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERSBEE
Industrial
towns Property Property
development development leasing Total
EETEERE MEERRE YMEHRE &st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AR¥TRT AR¥TRT AR¥TRT

As at 31 December R20195
2019 12831H
Segment assets DEPEE 8,748,968 3,670,812 1,366,833 13,786,613
Inter-segment elimination 7 EBEHEEH (792,378) (792,378)
Unallocated assets: ROLEE -
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - R K& B 15 377,260
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEE 78,657
Prepayments and other TER R EAth
receivables fEd kA 104,734
Amounts due from related PR R TS
parties FIE 586
Bank balances and cash IRITRB MRS 799,234
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEAERZS
MR E 39,660
Total assets BMEE 14,394,366
Segment liabilities DEPEE 5,342,782 935,740 447,144 6,725,666
Inter-segment elimination 7 EBEHEEH (438,588) (353,790) (792,378)
Unallocated liabilities: RAOMLATLE :
Other payables H b F0A 15,893
Amounts due to related parties & BEES 5 2k08 3,223
Current tax liabilities VAT IE & (& 609,017
Convertible bonds, notes AlEmES - i
and senior notes RBEERE 1,896,744
Derivative PTEMBIA 1,620
Deferred tax liabilities BT A E 229,048
Borrowings EE 15,350
Total liabilities MmEE 8,704,183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

6. Segment Information

Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

6. DEER @
PTHEERDHEEE)

Industrial
towns Property Property
development  development leasing Total
EXMHEEERE V%R YRS &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTIT ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 31 December 120185
2018 12A31H
Segment assets DEPEEE 8,406,655 4,069,631 1,245,953 13,722,239
Inter-segment elimination 7 EPEHE S (452,700)
Unallocated assets: APBEEEE ¢
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - & KR 399,161
Deferred tax assets EEFIHE EE 69,739
Prepayments and other TEfT R EAth
receivables FEWGRIE 22,599
Amounts due from related JE L At
parties A 586
Bank balances and cash RITHER RIS 541,657
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEABRS
Mg EE 34,030
Total assets BEE 14,337,311
Segment liabilities AEEE 6,152,129 1,048,500 328,092 7,528,721
Inter-segment elimination D EP R (452,700)
Unallocated liabilities: ROBALE :
Other payables H b e RIE 8,896
Amounts due to related parties & BEEg 5 2X0E 268,108
Current tax liabilities BNEATIE & & 649,015
Convertible bonds and notes AJERES KRR 1,103,771
Derivative PTEMET A 23,378
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEA F 173,604
Borrowings & 15,546
Total liabilities BEE 9,318,339

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

6. Segment Information (continue) 6. SEER )
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) SUBERDMERE
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating BT M RS BB

resources between segments:

D Other than those incurred for central management purpose, e KRUMHPAEEMEANEE(BIEE
including certain property, plant and equipment, deferred tax T BEERE BEREE
assets, certain prepayments and other receivables, certain EEFEMNREMEKZIE  &T
amounts due from related parties, certain bank balances and cash FEUS B T BOE - BT IRITAERRIR
and certain financial assets at FVTPL, all other assets are allocated S UARETIRATFEGT BRI
to segment assets; and BE)N FIEEMEESEEDH

BE &

. Other than those incurred for central management purpose, e KA EEMELANBE(BES
including certain other payables, certain amounts due to related FHALERTFRIE « & T RER RIS 5 X
parties, current tax liabilities, convertible bonds, notes and senior 12 - BEAATIRALE 3@;}@15% ==
notes, derivative, deferred tax liabilities and certain borrowings, all BREZEE  TEMBKIAR BT
other liabilities are allocated to segment liabilities. MEEEUANETER)IIN  FAIEH

wREIEEDHAR

Other segment information iy pEpER
Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ2019F128318 1L EE
Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or HADTIER D I EEN SR
segment assets
Industrial
towns Property Property Segment
development  development easing total Elimination ~ Unallocated  Consolidated
EETEER EL NERE VAL H ik k2 AOE &

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTT AERTT ARBTT ARETT ARHT 7T ARETT AERTT

Addition to non-current assets ErEEENEM 21,440 1,832 96,610 119,882 - - 119,882
Interests n associates NNl 79,206 192,930 - 212,136 - - 272,136
Interests in joint ventures REERRMER 61,702 - - 61,702 - - 61,702
Interest income FIBMA 124,500 10,171 265 134,936 - 15,152 150,088
Interest expense flegit

- Charge to the profitor loss -k 166,971 2,435 - 169,406 - 87,002 256,408

- Capitalisation v 284,513 22,441 - 306,954 - - 306,954
Loss on disposal of property, LENE  BER

plant and equipment FENER 1 (1) = - - - -
Share of osses of associates EEBENER (22910) 20,904 - (2,006) = - (2,006)
Share of losses of oint ventures ElhasniEa (1) - - (1) - - (111)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 13,694 29,743 39,940 83,377 - 3,045 86,422
Change in fair value of REMEATE

Investment properties = - - 56,844 56,844 - - 56,844
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. DEBER )
Other segment information (continued) HibpEER (&)
Year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE2018F12A31H L FE
Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or SFADERIER S DR EER S E
segment assets
Inalustrial
towns Property Property Segment
(evelopment  development leasing total Elimination Unallocated ~ Consolidated
EXMELR NEER NERE P kR AR )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT
Addition to non-current assets SR EENEN 62,003 - 9180 71183 - - 7183
Interests in associates Wﬁ ERANER 118,697 153,945 - 7264 - - 22602
Interestin a joint venture R-HAENFMER 60313 - - 60313 - - 0313
Interest income FBHA 102,388 8,089 1,004 111,481 = 8,135 119,616
Interest expense X
~Charge tothe profit or loss -BERME 108,690 - - 108,690 - 85,741 194,431
- Capitalisation -EAfl 239591 50,390 = 289981 - - 289981
Loss on disposal of property, LENE  BRR
plant and equipment FRREE (325) - - (325) - - (35)
Share of profits of associates BRI 5184 (1,51) - 3623 - - 3603
Share of profits of a joint venture EE—HALAANE 589 - - 589 - - 589
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 6,0% 14,763 4,439 25,29 - 18473 43,769
Change in fair value of Y EYNT
investment properties 29 = = (709 (709 - - 709

B R ZRE E TR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

Segment Information (continueq)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of the
Group’s revenue is as follows:

DEBER )
ERETEZEFNER

5% 5 {1 21115 75 52 [ U A 10% A #9285 8
WAL :

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Customer A? EEN 1,287,004 N/AY A3 R
Customer B2 =B 310,524 N/AT AN R
Customer C? BFEC2 N/A" R 1 875,314
Customer D? =ED? N/A" & 562,186
Customer E2 EPE? N/A" 5 A1 453,106
1,597,528 1,890,606

Notes: B 5E -

1. The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the Group's
revenue.

2. Income arising from land development arrangements.

The Group's revenue from external customers by location of operations
of the relevant group entities is derived solely in the mainland China.
Non-current assets of the Group by location of assets are all located in
the mainland China.

Other Income and Expenses

1. HERRAGEARERAI0%BAT

2. ELHMFAEEBERA -
AEBEREREBEEEREENHHA
SESESL N R [ TR S S
ERAERES BHFRDEER 2B
R B -

HW AN H

Year ended 31 December

BE12A318LLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Other income: HMWA -
Interest income on bank deposits SRITERFISWA 25,814 21,830
Interest income on trade receivables B 5 REWGRIE
FEWA 115,387 89,139
Interest income on amount due from e — 2 FaRE T IE
a related party FEUA 8,887 8,647
Government grants (note) BRI 4 B (BT %) 5,387 16,700
Others Hith 5,461 34,215
160,936 170,531
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

7. Other Income and EXpenses (ontinued) 7. EBRANEZH@®
Year ended 31 December

BZE128318LLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AR

Other expenses: Hh i -

Litigation settlement fee FAEEE = (40,000)
Donations e (3,052) (15,089)
Others HAh (729) (4,007)
(3,781) (59,096)

Note: The amounts mainly represented the grants from the local government
authority for contributions to local economic development by the Group.

8. Other Gains and Losses

Miat : Z ST ERASEME S BEERIER
BRNB BT EPIERIS AV ED ©

Hi = K 8

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283181LEE
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Net gains and losses s M Es1E

Exchange losses, net bE 5 5 ke (12,281) (19,510)

(Loss) gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBA R (EE) s
(note 44) (PfF5E44) (25,795) 3,037

Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEX

plant and equipment, net RAERF SR = (325)
Change in estimate of non-current receivables JEm By PRI SR IB A (36,833) =
Others EAh 614 719
(74,295) (16,079)

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

9.

10.

Finance Costs

9. BMERA

Year ended 31 December

HBE128318LLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Interests on bank loans IRITE AT (220,830) (169,521)
Interests on other loans HhERAF 2 (163,149) (203,453)
Interest on convertible bonds AIEIRES REBRHFE
and notes (note 32) (FI7E32) (74,483) (109,676)
Interests on related party loans RaHsE 5 BRI FLE (12,170) (1,762)
Interest on senior note (note 32) BREEAF B (H7E32) (89,877) -
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFE (2,853) =
Total borrowing costs fERA AN 4B R (563,362) (484,412)
Less: Amount capitalised in: B BRNMEEH
In progress land development FETHHZIER
arrangements 284,513 239,591
Properties under development for sale FEERTYE 22,441 50,390
(256,408) (194,431)

The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed generally is
9.28% (2018: 7.97%) per annum for the current year.

Impairment Losses Under Expected Credit

Loss Model, Net of Reversal

RENMEFHEREMMERARBLERE

%9.28% (20184 : 7.97%) °

10. BHIE AR AREEIE T AR

EHER - HIREE

Year ended 31 December

HZE12831HLLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Impairment losses recognised on: TERREREE

— Other receivables — E fh FEUGRIE 10,965 11,302
— Trade receivables — B S EGIE 1,470 =
— Amounts due from related parties — FEUR BRI 75 58 1,310 -
13,745 11,302

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 38(b).

B R ER 4R BRI HIEESS(D) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

11. Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

11. R E %R
AERHRIR GEA) FHIS BRI

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Directors’ emoluments =00
(including share-based payment expenses) (B SZNER) 15,032 26,095
Staff costs 8T RA
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREAMER 226,065 204,130
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme RNEFIETEI R 35,275 23,387
Share-based payment expenses fRipZ & A 6,832 43,370
Total staff costs BIRKAETE
(including Directors’ emoluments) (BEEEH) 283,204 296,982
Less: Amount capitalised in: B BRNMEEH
In progress land development FETMHEIER
arrangements (29,046) (21,715)
Properties under development for sale FEERPYE (1,041) (2,575)
253,117 272,692
Rental income from property leasing classified S ¥ A% & M
as investment properties YERERS WA (54,304) (53,895)
Less: Direct operating expenses for property B MERERE
leasing Y 22,072 19,244
(32,232) (34,651)
Cost of properties sold EEYIZERR A 185,946 522,228
Cost of land development arrangements 1 FAEETE B AR 591,321 1,022,432
Operating lease rental expense KERERSRAY 1,818 15,350
Auditor's remuneration Z AN S 4,634 6,365
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - BB REETE 59,472 42,192
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RELENE 26,950 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment SEANEIEN - Ot - 1,577

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

12. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive

12,85 - FETBRAEBRAN

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals &= A LT B &N
Emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company were B SRENARREZESHHINNT
as follows:
Contribution
Salaries to retirement Discretionary Share-based
and other benefits performance- payment
Fees benefits scheme related bonus expense Total
HeH RRER RAHN RAXA
He HittEH HE [ miERA A CH
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TRT ARMTn AR¥TR ARt AR¥Tx
Year ended 31 December  EZ2019512A318
2019 J12:3:5
Executive directors: HTEE:
Wang Jianjun (Note () TRE (W) - 666 45 240 - 951
Yang Yun Bh - 362 32 216 826 1,436
Wang Yagang B+ - 362 32 216 826 1,436
Huang Peikun e - 4,858 16 3,239 826 8,939
Wang Wei % = 1,165 16 - - 1,181
Non-executive director: FHTES -
Zhao Ying izs - 269 13 - - 282
Independent non-executive BVIEHTES
directors:
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Tk 269 - - - - 269
Hsieh Yafang Hm 269 - - - - 269
Wang Yijiang I 269 - - - - 269
807 7,682 154 3,911 2,478 15,032
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194 12531 H I F/Z

12. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 12.2% - FE{THAER AN

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals BEHALTNEMN @
Emoluments (continuea)
Contribution
Salaries  toretirement  Discretionary  Share-based
and other benefits  performance- payment
Fees benefits scheme  related bonus expense Total
HelE RINIER TR RiAZA
ne HiigH SRl MiETEA 2R =H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETn ARETr ARETr ARETn ARET:
Year ended 31 December BZ2018%12A31R
2018 JI2:3:5
Executive directors: HTEE:
Wang Jianjun (Note () FRE (W) - 658 52 240 - 950
Yang Yun Bi - 359 39 216 4819 5433
Wang Yagang Bl - 359 39 216 4,819 5433
Huang Peikun HiEH - 4,364 16 2910 4,819 12,109
Wang Wei % - 1,089 16 - - 1,105
Non-executive director: FHITES
Zhao Ying izz = 263 13 - - 276
Independent non-executive BUFEIES:
directors:
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Tk 263 - - - - 263
Hsieh Yafang IS 263 - - - - 263
Wang Yijiang I 263 = = = = 263
789 7,092 175 3,582 14,457 26,095
Note: Bk
(i) Mr. Wang Jianjun is also the president (regarded as chief executive) of (i) FTREFELENMANRARBE(BIEEETH

the Company and his emoluments disclosed above also include those for
services rendered by him as the president.

AB) - BB RN EERETE
BR RIS P RO o

The emoluments of directors of the Company shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

ESx N FARRESNHFHEZRRE
MEEAR R RAEENEH IR RS
B -

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's or respective subsidiaries’
performance for such financial year.

TEATIR AN B 3% MY BB 1 ) BB BRF 2
HRIETH ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

12. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 12.2% - FE{THAER AN

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals BEEHALTHEM =
Emoluments (continued)
Five highest paid individuals hfuBREHFAL

The five highest paid individuals included 3 directors of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 3). The emoluments of the
remaining 2 highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: 2) are as follows:

HE2019F12ANALEE  AfNES
FALBEEARA=ZRESE(2018F : =
&) o BE2019F12A3MBIEFE + EHW
f7(2018%F : W& )Fmar A THIEBIEA T

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31B8LLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T AERETT
Salaries and other benefits o HE AT 686 719
Discretionary performance-related bonus RIFBMATIEIEAL 432 456
Share-based payment expense nEaNE= 33! 1,653 9,638
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme RGBT EI 5K 32 39
2,803 10,852

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of
the Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

WHARBEEME T HHEENORD
FEE T ABUAT -

Number of employees

EIAH
2019 2018
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")6,000,001 to 7L ([ 7% 1)6,000,0017T
HK$6,500,000 %6,500,0007T = 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 75#51,500,0017T & 2,000,000 2 =

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, none of the directors
of the Company or the five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments.

Saved as disclosed above, the directors of the Company confirm that
no housing or other allowances, benefits in kind, contributions to
pension scheme, discretionary bonus, inducement to join the Group,
compensation for loss of any office in connection with the management
of the affairs of any member of the Group has been made to the five
highest paid individuals during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
nil).

HZE20194F 22018412 AN B ILFE - &
ARIEBEZK AN RS HATHERESRA
B REWEUT A o

Br Bl R RN RAREFHER © NE
E2019F12A3NBLEFE  MERAN
BRFATINERESEAMER - EYF)
@ RRNESF SR - BB - tEARMN
AREENFESFRERNEREMKE
AR EHE BB A ES (5 (20184 :
=) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

13.Income Tax Expense

13. FiE BB X

Year ended 31 December

HE1283181LEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Current tax: B HATIIR -
— PRC enterprise income tax — B RS (417,736) (470,038)
- Land appreciation tax — I EF = (56,863)
— Over provision in prior year — R FBRERE 5,560 4,276
(412,176) (522,625)
Deferred tax (note 22) IRIERIE (T 3E22) (46,526) (135,416)
(458,702) (658,041)

Certain subsidiaries of the Group, Langfang VAST Urban Development
Co., Ltd. (“Langfang VAST"), Langfang Hongsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. and Langfang Yonglun Property Development
Co., Ltd. were subject to the enterprise income tax of Mainland China
at a tax rate of 25% on a verification collection basis at deemed profit
which represents 10% or 15% of its revenue after adjusting the non-
deductible subsidies paid to customers (enterprises establishing their
businesses in Longhe Park) prior to 1 January 2014 in accordance with
authorised tax valuation method (#E#U&) approved by local tax
bureau pursuant to the applicable PRC tax regulations (the “Deemed
Profit Basis”). From 1 January 2014, the three subsidiaries of the Group
mentioned above no longer enjoyed the tax benefit of the authorised
tax valuation method. Certain income tax calculated on Deemed Profit
Basis of unrealised profit earned in prior years was realised in 2018 and
2019.

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (FH2& A R B 4 b 2 EF Z 1T 15471)
effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed Implementation Rules
on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT (R A R £ E + 1
EERETIEFIE AL effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights and buildings
of the Group (being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% of the appreciation of land value with an exemption provided
for property sales of ordinary residential properties (Ei@iZ#(F =) if
their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total
deductible items.

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BEARBEATS - AEEETHEBRRF
BRI AR E X TR E B R AR ([ B
&) BUYMEREHEREERAT
Mm@ EEREER AR ARZ
TEBUREAE - DAk 5 IS BB A % BB
WFiIE - AR R A (BN201441 B 1 B AT&E
X FEARTREFNAERFHTA
TN B 77 B A 218 B0 10% 3 15% U A ) ([ 3R
TE i M| BE 2 |) 32 25% F6 R 40 4 R B A 3t Y
CEREH - A2014F1518# - Lt
AL BEHNHEA R TEZEBIZE K
MFIBEE o 35 R B IARTFEERIRA K
BRI RS MNEEAENERE
20184EM20195FI] -

RIE1994F1 A1 8 BAERA R EARIEAM
B+ SR E T TIRGI([ LB ER ) &
199541 A 27 A B AEBMAICH 2E AR L MEH
THIBEREITIRGIEMEARDORE - B
4B KA R R 1B AT K N8 B 425 20% ) 8
EEFTENYEHEE  MELEREEL
SEEA T EAEREENBA(HEY
¥R RUER A BRAA R ERES H
LR E R ) B L {E #30%E60%
ST RGN T B EF o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

13.Income Tax EXpense continued) 13. FISBiM @)

Except for the above, under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The tax charge can be reconciled to profit before tax as follows:

Br bt sh - AR E AR KBS
BRUENRERERIE D) REEMERUE
EiMA - PENBARRZKMESER
TR B25% ©

BiIASZ AT B R B A A AR A TS

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283101LEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Profit before tax BRA AR A 1,287,108 1,779,388
Tax at PRC enterprise income R EREMERE
tax rate of 25% 25%=T E R IE (321,777) (444,847)
Effect on Deemed Profit Basis of enterprise TSR EERE
income tax AR R 1.764 5,708
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR S /9
tax purpose MG e (1,821) (7,363)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised as RERBIELEHBEEN
deferred tax assets TIBEBRNT G E (67,397) (18,650)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERBELEFIBEER
difference not recognised as AR ERER
deferred tax assets M e (3,736) (35,489)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not A BERERSELERIE
recognised as deferred tax assets BEMNMIEEE 1,314 32,366
Utilisation of deductible temporary AT ARERSELETRIE
difference previously not recognised & ER A
as deferred tax assets RS ERE 31,691 -
Tax effect of share of (losses) profits of FEMRE A R (BB MR
associates M E (502) 906
Tax effect of share of (losses) profits of =G
joint ventures (BHR) W B 2 (28) 147
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for YEINA R A 0EL
oversea companies ARG 2 (46,382) (51,455)
Tax effect of planned dividend distribution T2 F R B A A 5 A
out of mainland China DI BTG E (53,376) (105,655)
LAT T IS ER - (56,863)
Tax effect of LAT THIBERN TSR = 14,216
Qver provision in prior year REBRERE 5,560 4,276
Others Hh (4,012) 4,662
Income tax expense Fris itz (458,702) (658,041)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

14.

15.

Dividend

A final dividend of HK$0.2 per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2019 amounting to approximately HK$330,247,000 in
aggregate has been proposed by the directors of the Company and
is subject to the approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2019 will be paid out from the Company’s share premium
and retained profits. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
such distribution is in compliance with the Articles of Association
adopted by the Company and also the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

During the reporting period, a final dividend of HK$0.11 per share
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 amounting to
HK$181,636,000 in aggregate (equivalent to RMB164,505,000) was
declared and paid out from the Company’s share premium.

During the year of 2018, a final dividend of HK$0.25 per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 and an interim dividend
of HK$0.05 per share in respect of six month ended 30 June 2018
amounting to RMB420,692,000 in total were declared and paid out from
the Company's share premium.

Earnings per Share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

14.

15.

R E
HZE2019F12A31 B IEFENARBBRE A
FRRAB0.2TT - 4 5H4)7% 15 330,247,000
TC o ZIBRFEBEAARESRE VAR
HBFRMBRRBSE RS E AR E - &
Z2019F12AN B EFEHREBRAR
AR AE B RARDEFBESZE o KIEAR
REIEEMER  DIRFTAERRRHEMK
HEERMAINRASHESRARIEFNE
(196 1FEHPEIRS - IR ATER) -

FEREHR - B ZE20185 128318 1L
EH R B BB 0117 « BB %
181,636,0007T (1 & A K #5164,505,0007T ) -
EETIRRHAR BBRASEH AT o

20184 » B E2017F12831H ILFEH
REARG B F B #0.257T M E E201846
A308 L7518 A &+ #5834 ¥ 0.05
TT 0 T AR#420,692,000TEET IR &
AR RBRASER LA -

BRER
ARTEENEEFRELRBERFIR
ER AT RIREF R -

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12R31HLLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Earnings ZF
Profit for the year attributable to owners REREARFTE
of the Company for the purpose ViN/NGIE 2PN
of basic earnings per share FEMEARE & 830,423 1,110,019
Adjustment to the profit for the year attributable  ZtEREE RS
to owners of the Company for the purpose of ViN/NEIE Z DN
diluted earnings per share FEARZN 5% FI| A B
— impact of convertible bonds issued — N RIFTEAT
by the Company AERELRN A 11,580 50,309
Profit for the year attributable to owners of REREERFmE
the Company for the purpose of ANARER A
diluted earnings per share JEMEARE & 842,003 1,160,328
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

15. Earnings Per Share continued)

15. SR EF @)

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARETT
Number of shares R
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HERERZFMEH
for the purpose of basic earnings per share 3 A N A S 5 8 1,651,237 1,647,587
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: EBEA# T RRMTE
— Convertible bonds — A ERES 90,909 212,379
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for i &% #5822 F i 5 &9
the purpose of diluted earnings per share AR IR S8 1,742,146 1,859,966

The profit attributable to owners of the Company and the number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share
for the year ended 31 December 2019 had been adjusted assuming
that the conversion of the convertible bonds has been effective from 1

January 2019.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 does not assume the exercise of share
options because the adjusted exercise price of those options was
higher than the average market price for shares for both periods.

M EHE2019F12A3MBLEEFEER
EERNMSOARRES ARRR R
TEREE BB ERESFERE
201941 A1 R BAEBMmIEL 5% -

SFEEE 20196 K2018F 12 A31H IEF
[Z B0 3 B8 B R0 4 R 52 AR (D HAAE JE 1T
- RERFBZZERDAETEBESSRZ
MR EHA R A TR D TS (E S -

Annual Report 2019 %



170

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 220199 12531 H 1 F/Z

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. M5 - BMERRE

Furniture,
Motor fittings and
Buildings vehicles  equipment Total
xRE - #E
BEEY RE k#EE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETFIT ARETFTT ARETT
Cost P
At 1 January 2018 20181818 684,989 30,174 18,407 733,570
Additions NE 867 2,717 11,679 15,263
Transfer from investment properties @& @15 & )% 225,070 - - 225,070
Disposals k== - (987) (289) (1,276)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR = = (33) (33)
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 910,926 31,904 29,764 972,594
Additions NE 43,439 4,385 2,080 49,904
Disposals & (259) (426) (28) (713)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE A A
(note 44) (Pftzxa4) = (523) (112) (635)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12 /318 954,106 35,340 31,704 1,021,150
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2018 R2018%F1A41H (4,875) (9,673) (12,069) (26,617)
Provided for the year F R (29,402) (7,485) (5,305) (42,192)
Eliminated on disposals SRR - 210 134 344
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR = - 3 3
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H (34,277) (16,948) (17,237) (68,462)
Provided for the year FREE (47,220) (6,362) (5,890) (59,472)
Eliminated on disposals B B 6 - 398 21 419
Eliminated on disposal of HE B BB 1 R 8
subsidiaries (note 44) (PMI7E44) - 101 16 117
At 31 December 2019 R2019412 831H (81,497) (22,811) (23,090) (127,398)
Carrying amount IRMEE
At 31 December 2019 K2019%12 /318 872,609 12,529 8,614 893,752
At 31 December 2018 2018412 B31H 876,649 14,956 12,527 904,132
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 22019 12531 H I F/Z

16. Property, Plant and Equipment continued) 16. 1% - BMEREE @)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis, taking into account their residual value, at the
following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings 4.82%-4.85%
24.25%-24.45%
32.33%-32.44%

Motor vehicles
Furniture, fittings and equipment

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's property, plant and equipment
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB610,629,000 (31 December
2018: RMB42,066,000) were pledged to a bank to secure certain
mortgage loan to the Group, details of which are set out in note 31(a).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group paid off a trust
loan with outstanding principal of RMB150,000,000 which was secured
by the fixed assets with a carrying value of RMB349,453,000 as at 31
December 2018, details of which are set out in note 31(b).

btz - BB MR IR B At R ERIER
BEBRABRERATFERFTE

TG L1t 2 2 EEY) 4.82%-4.85%
B 24.25%-24.45%

b
RE - KELR 32.33%-32.44%

M2019%F 128318 - AEBEERABENAR
#610,629,0007C (2018512 A31H = AR
#42,066,0007T) KM% - BEREREEE
WTFRIT  {ERAEBEERE TIZBER
IR - FHEERHTEES)

HZE2019F 128318 ILEE - AEEEER
—E MR EEARS ARE150,000,00070H)
EREER  ZERR2018F12A31B A
B A R #349,453,0007T H [E & & E 1K
- AR IBEERRHEES(D)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

17.

18.

Right-of-Use Assets 17. FFEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HELH HEWE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARET T
At 1 January 2019 H2019%1 818 106,138 42,145 148,283
Additions NE 46,022 23,234 69,256
Disposals HeE (29) - (29)
Depreciation provided for the year FERITERE (4,153) (22,797) (26,950)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H 147,978 42,582 190,560
Expense relating to short-term leases  E45 HAFEE & H b T S 83
and other leases with lease terms INEPN RS
end within 12 months of the date ZR|ZE 16552 B8 1218 A
of initial application of IFRS 16 R IERMTEEENER 1,818
Total cash outflow for leases HER R AR 23,293
For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations. REZMEFE  AEEHEELERAE
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 10 years. HITEE - HES R EE R A1FE10
o

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
note 33.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s right-of-use assets with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB56,278,000 (2018: nil) were pledged to the
bank to secure certain mortgage loan to the Group, details of which are
set out in note 31(a).

Investment Properties

The Group leases out properties under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 20
years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the
property at the end of lease term.

18.

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

18. Investment Properties (continued)

18. REWHE o)

Investment
completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
B®T BEH
REYE BEMHE FoEy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T ARET T
Fair value AFE
At 1 January 2018 201841818 1,029,671 145,300 1,174,971
Additions NE 2,942 1,566 4,508
Transfer to properties under property, =¥ - BE K &E 8
plant and equipment S (225,070) - (225,070)
Change in fair value NEEZE) 19,657 (20,366) (709)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A831H 827,200 126,500 953,700
Additions NE 14,134 9,822 23,956
Change in fair value NTEES 18,466 38,378 56,844
At 31 December 2019 2019912 H31H 859,800 174,700 1,034,500

The fair values of the Group's investment properties were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out at the end of respective reporting
periods by Messrs Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited
(“Savills Valuation”), an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group.

In measuring the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's investment properties
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB841,600,000 (2018:
RMB598,300,000) were pledged to a bank to secure certain mortgage
loan to the Group, details of which are set out in note 31(a).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB56,900,000 (2018: nil) were
pledged to secure a certain other loan to the Group, details of which
are set out in note 31().

REBKREMEN A FERSRERARH
FE-ATEGENEEREXERERADA
(I —KFRAEHGE D) F R EE
B o (hEMAEAEERERBNBLS
B fH(ERD -

RETEBMERTER - WENRITR&E
REFBERAE

R2019F12 8318 - AEEKEEL A
A K ¥ 841,600,000 70 (2018 % : AR
598,300,0007T ) & & W EE LI FIRT * 1E
AASEERE TIRBERNIKF - 5
FEIBENMIEES () °

M20196F12A31H - AKBEREELNRA
R #56,900,0007T (20184F : 4 )i B2
BB EAREEERE TEMERN
IR - BEAFHEERHIEEID)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

18. Investment Properties (continued 18. REW X )
The following table gives information about how the fair values of these TREYZEEEYE N FLE R AREE (5
investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation Bl T B G E T R ASE ) ER
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy AR BRIE A E =8 A SIS ] B Ri2
into which the fair value measurements are categorised based on EHEALEAES BB AT EELE -
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.
At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 #2019%12A31H %2018 12A31H
Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs to fair value
AEBEERENE AHEER HERTRIERALE EXTUBRRANE ABEE\HERATENBRA
Investment properties - Completed Level3 Income capitalisation Term yield, taking into account yield generated Aslight increase in the term yield used would
REME-ERT E=R method (term and from comparable properties and adjustment to result ina significant decrease in the fair value
reversionary approach) reflect the certainty of term income Securedand  measurement of the investment properties,
WABRIE (FERESE)  tobereceived, of range from35%t0 5% (2018 and vice versa.
35%105%). (A R ERT - e BREANEATE

ERREE  ARUMSNFELONERR  FEAETR RN
RERITCIE R ARIE R
B N3 TRETR( 20185 : 35%E) «

The key inputs are Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit A slight increase in the reversionary yield used
(1) Termyield; market rental income and unit market value of the  would result in a significant decrease in the fair value
() Reversionaryyield;and  comparable properties, of range from 4%t0 5.5%  measurement of the investment properties and vice
(3)  Market unit rent of in both years. Versa.

individual unit ERRUGE HRAIENZNERENT  WARBERUEER  AeSHRENFATRE
TEG\IEA FRENAREBUTE BEFEONTME  HEARTH R4
() el 55%¢

0 ERkEE: R
() EREiemEELEE

Market unit rent, using direct market comparable A slight increase in the market unit rent used would
and taking into account time, location and other — result in a significant increase in the fair value
inalvidual factors such as size and quantum of measurement of the investment properties and vice
properties, of range from RMB0.83/sq.m./dayto  versa.

RMB2.13/sq.m./day (Q018: RMBOG/sqm/dayto  WRBmAEAESHT - AIGSHEENZAT
RMB2.1/5q.m./day) B EARLF - R2A

mEBRS - FRERTATHLBER R

R - pEAEMERNRE - BIEA R

E2 NTEASTARARBOBTEERGT

FRAREL 30185 : BRFTARARE

06T EBRBTARARKLIT) °

Investment properties - held for rental/ ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method Accommodtion value, using direct market Anincrease in the accommodation value used would
Under development E=1 The key input is: comparable and taking into account time, location  resultin an increase in the fair valug measurement
FENE SRR/ XEP () Steunitrate and individual factors stich as size and quantum ~ of the investment properties, and vice versa.
ERIRETEAAEER of properties, of range from RMBS76/sq.m. (WRREmYE LA  AIeERRANEATE
() PREmER to RMB2,418/s.m. (2018: RMB544/sq.m to ELF Rz
RMB1,240/50.m)

BEnE  RAERTTRIEVAR RARE
B #EREAER  fmnEc I RES A
FETHRARSSITEGTHRARN2618
T(20185 : EEHRARBMLESFARA
RIE1,2407t) °

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

18. Investment Properties (continued) 18. REWXE )

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages an
independent qualified professional valuer to perform the valuation
of the Group's investment properties. At the end of each reporting
period, management of the Group worked closely with the independent
qualified professional valuer to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. The
Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level
2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques
that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
management of the Group.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years.

DNHEFERMGEBRRE
EHAEEREMEN D FEMBER - K
SERBAHERNT S A BRRIER -
YEFE—FHARE  ASEEREEY
ERERBRAEMBAEENREMEE
I 1E - REMEHRE - AEEEE
BEBY A EREXMBEMZEEE - A
BN EE N MERTRATEFE
MEABE -  ARERHEEZEERRKAE
—REBARE - BAREABERA B4R
M5 ENABRBEES - MLEF K
BABE - ARERERAEEF =4k
ABIRRSERI - HWEEAFEKRE
AREH  AgRAEEEEEREEAK
PHRA -

FA - WEBASREHE=

19. Interests in Associates 19. REFE D A RIS
At 31 December
M12A31H

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Cost of investments in associates — unlisted B AR N TR B RS — 3E T 245,756 244,256
Share of post-acquisition profits FE(GURBE 1 5= 7R

net of dividends received 2 A% & 39,217 41,223

Impairment loss (note a) R EEE (FiEa) (12,837) (12,837)

272,136 272,642

Note:

a. During the year ended 31 December 2010, as requested by other equity
holders of Huayuan and agreed by the Group, Langfang VAST unilaterally
made additional cash contribution to Huayuan as further capital injection
into Huayuan amounting to RMB19,750,000 with shareholding interest in
Huayuan unchanged. An impairment loss amounting to RMB12,837,000 was
recognised by the Group based on an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the Group’s interest in Huayuan during the year ended 31 December
2010.

HZE2010F12A3MBILFE @ EEREM
[REREANERRAEERE - BHZA
REHFEURSNH RN AERBINEEA
R #19,750,0007T * [R5 22 )R /O IR 4 3 4%
BE - AEBEHE2010612A318 1LF
EERAEERERNESN T NE S
fEFHERA R 12,837,0007T AR EE1E ©

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

19. Interests in Associates (continued) 19. REE & A R ()
As of the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following HERSHR  AEBBEUTHBEQR :
associates:
Place and date of Issued and fully paid/ Equity interest
Name of company (note i) establishment/acquisition  registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ARIER(H) AL/ W SR A BRTRAR/AMER REEELER TTER
At 31 December
M2A318
2019 2018
% %
Langfang Huayuan Shengshi Heating Mainland China RMB117,000,000 35 35 Heatenergy generation
Co, Ltd. ("Huayuan") 21 Auguist 2007 (Paid-up registered capital) AT
BHTERSERNERAR(ER]) HERH AR 117,000,000
28RN (e fA)
Langfang Kaihong Furniture Mart Mainland China RMB100,000,000 30 30 Property leasing and
Co,, Ltd. ("Kaihong") 10 December 2010 (Paid-up registered capital) property development
BT EREERERAR(HZ]) FEIR, ARH100,000,00072 NERENNEEE
2010£12A108 (BRFMER)
Langfang Shengshi Zhiye Real Estates Mainland China RMB10,000,000 20 20 Property development
Development Co. Ltd. (“Shengshi Zhiye') 10 May 2017 (Paic-Up registered capita) NEYRE
Bt E XN EREARAR HEIR, AR 10,000,000
([EtEX]) 017F5A108 (BIRsHER)
Central Technology Development(Beijing) Mainland China RMB100,000,000 30 30 Technology development
Co. Lid. 27 uly 2017 (Paid-up registered capital) MEERE
PEHANEFE (LR BRAT B ARE100,000,000
N17%7A278 (fRsHHER)
Wuhan Aviclub Real Estate Development Mainland China RMB36,917,100 30 30 Property development
Co. L1d. 17 May 2017 (Paic-Up registered capital) NERE
REEREMERARERER AT HEIRi, ARE36917,1007T
2017658178 (BRFMER)
Sinosteel Metals & Resources Mainland China RMB100,000,000 46 46 Trade business
Co. Ltd. (*Sinomerco”) 1 December 2017 (Paic-up registered capital) E9%%
hfise ERERAR(hHA2]) REAL ARE100,000,0007
2017812818 (BRFMER)
Hubei Eche Supply Chain Management Mainland China RMB100,000,000 10 10 Trade business
Co,, Ltd. (note i 251uly 2018 (Paid-up registered capital) EUES
SsERERARAAN)  FEARE ARF100000 00072
A18F7A25A (BRER)

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

19. Interests in Associates (continued)

19. REE D BRER (a)

Place and date of Issued and fully paid/ Equity interest
Name of company (note i) establishment/acquisition  registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
AR ER () Y/ RS R AL BRTRAR/HMER rEEEERE TEEH
At 31 December
M2A318
2019 2018
% %
Yinchuan Suyin Industrial Park Development ~ Mainland China RMB100,000,000 30 - Consulting service
Co,, Ld. 29 March 2019 (Paid-up registered capital) AR
B HFEXREEARAR PEIRi AR 100,000,0007T
01938297 (BRFMER)
CAS Vast (Beijing) Health Technology Mainland China RMB5,000,000 49 49 Consulting service
Development Co,, Ltd. 7 March 2018 (Paid-up registered capital) AR
EREZ( R BRMHERARAR HEIRi AR 5,000,0007
2018%3A7H (BRFMER)
Shijiaznuang Airshow Co., Ltd. (note i) Mainland China RMB10,000,000 10 10 Consutting service
R SHE A R A A (K3 8 August 2018 (Paic-Up registered capital) FARE
HEIRi AR10,000,0007C
201858 A8H (BRFMER)
Hebei Aifeiou Viast Aviation Consulting Mainland China RMB300,000,000 33 33 Consulting service
Senvice Co., Ltd. 29 March 2018 (Paid-up registered capital) R AR
M ERE AR ARG ARAR HEIRi ARH300,000,0007
20184E3A29H (BRFMER)
Langfang Apex Vast Sports Service Mainland China RMB100,000 33 - Consulting service
Co,, Ltd. 29 March 2019 (Paid-up registered capital) AR
BHREREREE REARA PEIRI ARE100,0007
201943A29H (BRiHER)
Notes: B 5E

English name for identification only.

ii. The Group has significant influence on managerial decision-making of these
entities by appointing a director on its board of directors. As a result, these

entities are accounted for as investments in associates.

X ATREHRRS

AEEARZEER
= %‘IEZ%* BmE
7o Bk - %E
BE o

=

=

ENERSRME—RE
B @/%%ﬂﬁij(?/s
BIERMENRIREA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

19. Interests in Associates (continued) 19. REE & A R ()
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material BRANEEFBEA N RA 85 E Bt
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information below AT o AT RS & RHEE a5 B R B IR &
represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements BRI s g A e m RS
prepared in accordance with IFRSS for equity accounting purposes. R ISR R P TR 5 o
Huayuan Z=R

At 31 December

M12831H

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Current assets MENE EE 54,192 43,539
Non-current assets IERBEE 490,168 479,435
Current liabilities mENEE (140,722) (160,966)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE (214,823) (179,817)
Net assets BEFAE 188,815 182,191

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETT

Total revenue aUg A 103,099 109,418
Profit and total comprehensive income ARG R 2E R EE

for the year 6,624 9,474

Group's share of profit of the associate 7R 5 [ (G B 2 A R A 2,318 3,316

Dividends received from the associate B U= A Al AR B - -

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H i1 F/&

19. Interests in Associates (continued) 19. REE&E A R REER ()
Huayuan (Continued) ZER@®)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LB AR B R E AR A M S R A
the carrying amount of the interest in Huayuan recognised in these ERRERNERRABESRAT ¢

consolidated financial statements:

At 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Net assets of Huayuan IR EEFE 188,815 182,191
Proportion of the Group's ownership RE BN R A A RERE S 171
interest in Huayuan 35% 35%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in AEBERNE R ERERE
Huayuan 66,085 63,767
Kaihong BN
At 31 December
M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Current assets RENEE 33,047 48,362
Non-current assets R EE 624,916 540,716
Current liabilities ARG (24,464) (39,025)
Non-current liabilities ErRBaE (209,608) (210,500)
Net assets AEFE 423,891 339,553

Annual Report 2019 %



180

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

19. Interests in Associates (continued)

Kaihong (continued)

wn e
EENED

19. REEE DN BINER @)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Total revenue FEI PN 53,982 63,023
Profit and total comprehensive income REFH R 2k aSasE
for the year 84,338 7,120
Group's share of profit of the associate N E E(EEE AN TS 25,301 2,136
Dividends received from the associate BB N TR B - =
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LIS E R B R SR A IS R A
the carrying amount of the interest in Kaihong recognised in these RN AR R REESRAT
consolidated financial statements:
At 31 December
M®12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Net assets of Kaihong SR EEFE 423,891 339,553
Proportion of the Group's ownership R B R R A RS L 1B
interest in Kaihong 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the Group's AREE R R ESIREEE
interest in Kaihong 127,167 101,866

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s equity interest of Kaihong with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB127,167,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB101,866,000) were pledged to a non-financial institution in the
mainland China to secure certain mortgage loan to the Group, details of

which are set out in note 31(b).

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

201912 A318 » AEER =K I
AR T (E 49 A R #5127,167,0007T (2018 4E 12
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e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H i1 F/&

19. Interests in Associates (continued) 19. REEE N R ER @)
Aggregate information of associates that are not ERIEE K& A RNELRRFE
individually material

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Group's share of losses of associates NG B FE (G AN TR 1R (29,625) (1,829)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REFRZERZNTIN
interests in these associates SR a5 78,884 107,009
There is no unrecognised share of losses of any associate. A R TR FEAG (R T B i R A1 S 18 ©
There is no significant restriction on the ability of the associates to BERRNReREERES TAEEK
transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay BEAEERFTNENTEZEEARS

advances made by the Group.

20. Interests in Joint Ventures 20. REE ARINRER

Details of the Group’s investments in joint ventures are as follows: $‘§@E’\ ERANREFBNT ¢
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARBT T
Cost of unlisted investment FE_E TR E KA 61,500 60,000
Share of post-establishment profit FEAG RS 1&m A 202 313
61,702 60,313
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

20. Interests in Joint Ventures continued) 20. REE N EIMER @)

The Group had interests in the following joint ventures:

REBETIISEARRES R

Proportion of ownership

interest held by
Place of the Group as
Date of establishment  Fully paid-up/ at 31 December Principal
Name of entities establishment and operation  registered capital FEEM2A8318 activities
BRE% BRI A H RINSEREY CHE ZMER BENEEEERLA TEER
2019 2018
% %

Hubei International Aviation 8 December 2016 Mainland China RMB100,000,000 60 60 Investment,
Development Co., Ltd. 2016512588 B A AE#5100,000,0005T construction,
("Hubei International”) operation and

M EBEMEEE TR ER leasing
ARAA (AR D) BE - BR

BERNE

Hubei Vast Development Equity 12 November 2018 Mainland China ~ RMB100,000,000 50 - Investment,
Investment Management 2018118128 hE R AE#100,000,0007T Consulting
Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Vast’) RE S

AL ERERRERE
ERERAF (DHLER])

On 4 December 2016, Langfang VAST entered into a joint venture
agreement (“2016 JV Agreement”) with Shenzhen Shunfeng Airport
Investment Co. Ltd. (“Shenzhen Shunfeng”) for the establishment
of Hubei International. The principal activities of Hubei International
are investment, construction service for industrial park, operation
and leasing. Upon establishment, Hubei International is owned as to
60% by Langfang VAST and 40% by Shenzhen Shunfeng. Under the
2016 JV Agreement, unanimous approvals by the directors of Hubei
International are required for decisions on directing the relevant
activities of Hubei International. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group's interest in Hubei International is accounted for as
a joint venture.

On 12 November 2018, Langfang VAST entered into a joint venture
agreement with Hubei Hongtai Industrial Investment Fund Co., Ltd.
("Hubei Hongtai Industrial “) and Kang Mi for the establishment of Hubei
Vast. Hubei Vast is owned as to 50%, 48.5%, 1.5% by Langfang VAST,
Hubei Hongtai Industrial and Kang Mi, respectively.

FERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

2016512848 - B RFERY L #5
BREBRAB(NRINEE ) 2EE T B
S BIRR ) 3 ([ 2016 5F & & i 1) ©
HILBERNEEXBIRE  EXEER
IR~ EBEREE o KIL1R - H AL B
BB 7 72 2 45 Ik 60% S R Y11 JIE & 15 A 40% ©
RIF20165F & S - s8I BIFR AR
BREHRR AN I EREEN —BUR
B ARRESFRA - AEER LB
MDA ARIIE—HAZAH -

R2018F11 A 128 » B3I R
EEREESBRAT(HILEREE])
R ARG AL RERFT ML B ek o
A RFABHESE Mt RREEREK
D RIEEAS0% ~ 48.5% % 1.5%HES ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H i1 F/&

20. Interest in Joint Ventures continued) 20. REE N RIMRER @)
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these AL NTR L EGE AT TERE R AR E
consolidated financial statements. AER ©
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's joint BERAERSZ N AW &EE RS
venture is set out below. The summarised financial information below T U T BERBES &R FRIER
represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements BB ISR E KB GBI R RERP IS
prepared in accordance with IFRSS. 7 o
Hubei International 1t B B

At 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFIT
Current assets RENEE 101,486 102,762
Current liabilities mEIaE - (2,240)
Net assets BEEE 101,486 100,522
The above amounts of assets and N EEENEESEAIE
liabilities include the following: TF&IE :
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRNESEEY 1,486 2,762
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31MALEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Total revenue FEUON - -
Profit and total comprehensive REFH &2 EkEEE%E
income for the year 964 982
Group's share of profit of the joint venture AEBEELEE QW 579 589
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

20. Interest in Joint Ventures continuea) 20. AEE R RIER ()
Hubei International (continued) AL ERR ()
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the B E B e E R A S REA A
carrying amount of the interest in Hubei International recognised in RO B R AR E E S AR T

these consolidated financial statements:

At 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Net assets of Hubei International SRR R B E R E 101,486 100,522
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interestin -~ Zx & @7 4L B &
Hubei International 85 RERERS L 15 60% 60%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Hubei 7 £ @5 4t B BR H e 25 BR B
International 60,892 60,313
Hubei Vast it =R
At 31 December
M12831H
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Current assets EEIEE 1,610 -
Non-current assets IERBEE 13 -
Current liabilities mENAE (3) -
Net assets BEEE 1,620 =
The above amounts of assets and NEEERBESRE
liabilities include the following: BIETIIEIE
Cash and cash equivalents Re RIBELEEY 1,588 -

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H i1 F/&

20. Interest in Joint Ventures (continued) 20. AEE D RINRER @)
Hubei Vast (continued) AL =g ()

Year ended 31 December

BE12A318LFE
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Total revenue FEAL N - -
Loss and total comprehensive expense RNEFENEER A5
for the year (1,380) -
Group's share of loss of the joint venture AEE RS SN REE (690) -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the B E R R F AR A SRR A
carrying amount of the interest in Hubei Vast recognised in these RN AR R REES RO T

consolidated financial statements:

At 31 December

M12A31H

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T AEETT

Net assets of Hubei Vast ML AENEESE 1,620 -

Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEE L EZR=E

interest in Hubei Vast R EE=L D 50% -
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEFERN R RS

Hubei Vast BREE 810 -

21.Financial Assets at Fair Value through 21.%ZRAFEFABZNTBEE
Profit or Loss =3

At 31 December

M®12A31H

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AEETT

Investments in funds EeRE 149,239 34,030
The loss on fair value change of financial assets at FVTPL recognised HE2019F12 831 H It FEMERIEA
for the year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB6,616,000 (2018: FEAFABEHNNEEEATEZEHE
RVB3,212,000). BAANR6,616,0007T(20184F : AR

3,212,0007¢) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

22. Deferred Tax 22 JRIEHIA
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial AR R 16 R E AR A RIER B4R D
reporting purposes: #r

At 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Deferred tax assets BIERIHE B 78,657 69,739
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIEA E (229,048) (173,604)
The deferred tax (liabilities) assets recognised by the Group and FRAAEBRANECHEB(BBE)EEK
movements thereon during the year are as follows: FEIIAF -
Fairvalue  Accruedtax  Temporary Fair value Unrealised Profit on
changeon forplanned differences change profiton  transactions Property
investment dividend  on property Tax ontrade  Impairment  intra-group withan  revaluation Financing
properties  distribution sl and LAT losses ~ receivables  ofassets transactions associate reserve Other  components Total
a-f
HHAR  MERHER g% 58 BEME
RENE  REER  DHHER R nRRE  EAREN %

LYERS 2 URER  BAER QTER®  EEME  AEREA B EfER A RE¥D i
RMB000 RVB000 RVBO00 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RVB000 RVBO00
ARBTL  ARBTT  ARETR  ARMTT  ARETR  ARRTr  ARMTR ARETn  ARMTR  ARETR ARBTR ARMTR

A lanuary 2018 (estated)  MOBEIRIR(EER) (830 (30081 40784 301 - 6616 0457 1% 8013 12% 05 31,551
Creditcharge) toprofitorloss 3FA(IRE e 7 (75574) (2492) (2.460) 13052 (580) (320 - - 1921 BB (1354
At31 Decenoer 2018 HO1BERRYIE 8 (10565) 8292 551 13052 60% 7,53 1% 5019 18160 - (m%)
(Charge) creditto rofitorloss (FIB& )5t AR (14211) (53.376) (4572 1957 95% 34% (3%9) - - 109%!1 - (#6526
At31 Decemoer 2019 HV9E1A3NR Grol8 (159030 30 258 240 94n 2914 1% 5019 AL - ()

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

22. Deferred Tax (continued) 22 IEERLIE ()

Details of the Group’s unused tax losses and deductible temporary
differences are as follows:

REBAREATIAEE K A RNERE8H
BT

At 31 December

M12831H

2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T T ARETT

Tax losses unrecognised for deferred tax assets R ptiEIE R TH & & FERHY
TIEEE 419,626 158,639

Deductible temporary differences RELIRIERTH & E R
unrecognised for deferred tax assets AT Ry 258 33,436 145,256
453,062 303,895

The following unrecognised tax losses has fixed expiry dates, which will
expire in the following years:

THIEE EH A AR RER IR B R A 7 A
NEEERE

At 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
2019 20194 - 3,344
2020 20204F 6,924 6,924
2021 20214 24,535 24,535
2022 20224 38,887 38,887
2023 20234 66,484 71,741
2024 20244 259,194 =
Total RET 396,024 145,431

Besides, at the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB23,602,000 (2018: RMB13,208,000) available for offsetting
against future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

As at 31 December 2019, a deferred tax liability of RMB159,031,000
(2018: RMB105,655,000) for undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries
located in the mainland China has been recognised as there is a plan of
the dividends distribution out of the mainland China in the foreseeable
future by these subsidiaries.

BEoN - RIREHR - AEE AT AR EHR]
B AR R H 465 9 O R Mg M) B 1 R B R B I8
BB A A R23,602,0007T (20184 © AR
#13,208,0007T ) ° F 77 BE FRRI R 2R e A
o BB E L IR B R R I IR B
o

#2019F 12 A31H » R E ALK B A
AlFT B AT R AR 2R o B A 3t DA St [ 5
EARE - AHERZEMBRRNADIK
BATERIELER 88 & AR 159,031,000
JL(20184F : AR¥105,655,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

23. In Progress Land Development Arrangements

In progress land development arrangements mainly represent costs
incurred for land development under collaboration arrangements
with the relevant local government authority within the districts of the
development project.

Income from land development which are under collaboration
arrangements with the relevant local government authority are recognised
upon sales of related land plots by the local government authority with
the corresponding costs incurred under such arrangements recognised
as cost of sales. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the in
progress land development arrangements under collaboration contract
was RMB4,127,317,000 (2018: RMB3,579,316,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had paid off
one bank loan which was pledged with the Group’s in progress land
development arrangements with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB550,000,000 as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s in progress land development
arrangements with a carrying amount of approximately RMB338,876,000
(2018: RMB338,876,000) were pledged to a third party to secure certain
other loan to the Group, details of which are set out in note 31(b).

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

23. FE L 1hBIRIBEH

FETMAZBETEREERRIEAR
MR IR B AR & M B AT A B B (E R BERL A
B FEIA R EEMKAE o

B A% B34 B 2 IR AT RR ) & 1E R BER) £
B 2 UL A A & 1 BT M B 1 R AR B L i
BEER - MARERA AR EEE £ A
RIFER BHEERA - R2019F 128318 -
BEEHETHE T HBEER NEREE
A ANREA,127,317,0007T (20184 : AR
3,579,316,0007T) °

HE2019F12A31HLELFE - AEEEE
BEEIRITEN - ZEFRAKREER2018
12 A 318 RE &% A K #550,000,0007T
MRS T BAEETE B (R IR o

R2019%F 128318 » "EBERAEYD
A K ¥ 338,876,000 7C (2018 F : AR ¥
338,876,0007T ) KIFFE T b BB EEH
F—EZE=F ' MEARAKEEERNET
HME R - AEFBEHRHTEID)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e T HRAR MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

24. CONTRACT ASSETS

24. EHEE

At 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
construction contracts A 86,605 51,828
As at 1 January 2018, contract assets amounted to RMB85,104,000. R2018F1A1H  AHNEEAARKE

As set out in note 5(ii) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into certain land development agreements with the local
government authorities. Pursuant to these agreements, the Group is
entitled to receive income from the local government authorities by
reference to the recoverable costs incurred plus agreed profit margin.

The increase in the current year is the result of the increase in ongoing
land infrastructure development services provided for other industrial

parks.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets are set out in note

38(b).

25. Properties under Development for Sale

85,104,0007T °

P B0 15 € 9 )
FFHEBIUERUE A

AR & B $RAR P RS (NP - AN SeE 2
BHBUFHEARI A T A E RS - R
B2EH#S  AEEZ2EELANARE
Rig - BREAEHEK

REFIERT BN REMERERHENE
1T T B R 2R ARG IE IOFAER -

B RRERT A F BRI HIEESS(D) ©

25. FEBRRTU=E

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
At beginning of year =) 2,114,006 2,268,332
Additions INE 319,075 505,759
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR (648,572) (45,602)
Transfer to completed properties for sale ERRGECDRTIYE (265,003) (614,483)
At end of year FR 1,519,506 2,114,006
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

25. Properties under Development for Sale 25.13ERHEPYE »)

(Continued)
Analysis of leasehold lands: HE LD
Carry amount
BREE
RMB’000
ARBT T
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 18 872,995
Additions NE 13,412
Properties completed and transferred to D38 T B 4 O3 T e (25,804)
completed properties for sales
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H8 860,603

Effective from 1 January 2019, the carrying amount of leasehold lands
is measured under IFRS 16 at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The residual values are determined as
the estimated disposal value of the leasehold land component. Taking
into account the estimated residual values as at 31 December 2019,
no depreciation charge is made on the leasehold lands included in
property under development for sale.

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s properties under
development for sale with estimated amount of approximately
RMB862,891,000 (2018: RMB200,000,000) were pledged to banks to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group, details of which
are set out in note 31(a).

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s properties under
development for sale with an estimated amount of approximately
RMB80,000,000 (2018: RMB784,789,000) were pledged to a third party to
secure certain other loan granted to the Group, details of which are set
out in note 31(b).

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

B2019F1A18 % - HE T HIRMERE
90 % B 765 3 2 HE R 55 168 $ B AR AT (] 2
ST EREMAZFRENR - RSBEEE
EAME LB H M HEBEE - &5
2019612 A31 B Er FIsREE @ HMES
SAGEEERYENHEE T AU E
B -

R2019F12A31H - AEEE Tt e
#A R #6862,891,0007T (20184F : ARKE
200,000,00070) M & EF VX EH T
RTT - MERARERES TIRITREAN
B AR RERHIES()

201912 A318 - REME Tt &5
49 A R 80,000,000 7T (20184 : AR
784,789,0007T) WAF EBERHPMELER T
—RE=H  EAREEEENE T EM
BRI - AR IBERRHE3(D)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

25.Properties under Development for Sale 25.

26.

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, properties under development for sale
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB120,000,000 (2018:
RMB33,000,000) were expected to be completed within twelve months

from the end of the reporting period.

Trade Receivables

26.

SEERYYE W

M20196 12 A318 © FEBEBHARE
120,000,0007T (20184F : A E%33,000,000
TLRFEERRMESNREAREH12
18R ZATERK °

8 5 BWRIR

At 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
— At amortised cost — R S AN B BR

Receivables from industrial towns development 2k & E ¥ 528 R A W F R 663,873 307,430
Receivables from sales of properties REHEMERNEUKTRIE 9,444 16,270
Receivables from rental properties REREVMENERFRIAE 3,572 2,827
676,889 326,527
Less: Allowance for trade receivables BB B RGRIER S (1,470) =
Total 1R5T 675,419 326,527

— At FVTPL —RAFEFSAEBRSR
Receivables from industrial towns development 7% (5 7 ¥ 1 $H 25 & 89 JE UG IR 2,037,290 2,036,857
Total =t 2,712,709 2,363,384
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

26. Trade Receivables (continueq)

26. EZ EWHEIE @)

At 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Analysis for reporting purpose as: MBEME A
— At amortised cost — R SHAK AN B BR
— Current assets —mEEE 636,080 320,471
—Non-current assets —ERBEE 39,339 6,056
675,419 326,527
— At FVTPL — R AFEAERSER
- Current assets —mEVAE 964,645 1,302,351
- Non-current assets —ERBEE 1,072,645 734,506
2,037,290 2,036,857
Total FE
— Current assets —mEAE 1,600,725 1,622,822
- Non-current assets —ERBEE 1,111,984 740,562
2,712,709 2,363,384

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s trade receivables from
industrial towns development with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB427,650,000 (31 December 2018: RMB348,130,000) were pledged to
banks to secure certain loans to the Group, details of which are set out

in note 31(a).

B R ZRE E TR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

R2019F 128310 - AEEREAEHAR
#427,650,0007T (201812 A31H : AR
#348,130,00070) %5 T EX M HE RN E
ZEMHRIAC E IR TIRIT - ERAREEE
55 TRITERAVESR - e F IS
#£31(a) °



26. Trade Receivables (continued)

Trade receivables — at amortised cost:

At 31 December 2019, receivable from industrial towns development
is mainly due from Longhe Park in respect of the land development
collaboration arrangement as explained in note 5. Upon public auction
of the developed land, the successful land buyers would enter into
land acquisition agreements with the local government authority.
According to these land acquisition agreements, the land buyers are
usually granted a credit period ranging from 1 to 3 months to settle the
full amount of land acquisition consideration with the local government
authority. The Group would normally be able to recover the full amount
of trade receivables from the government authority shortly after
the local government authority has received the full amount of land
acquisition consideration from the land buyers.

For the receivable from other industrial towns development projects
carried at amortised costs, the Group granted a credit period ranging
from 1 to 36 months.

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables — at amortised
cost, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based on revenue
recognition date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

26. EZ EWRIE o)

IRESHPR AT BRHO B 2 I UGROR

R2019512A310 » KEEXHHEBREN
EWGKIEE B A TR A (ERBEE IR
BN = A B RO RIE - ANPTRESATERAE o 1
BT A ARIRIER - RINRIZEN T
Hh B 5K B] B2 75 BR AT ML BA 7T 32 £ b UK BB 17
o BIBEZS LB RZ  THER—
BERNT1E23I/ANEER - LMk
R BB EE N R EE R E - Rty
R AT H B B b B SR AR SR 3 U B AR
B1%  AEE—REEARERBAE BT
1 AR B B & 5 U SRIE o

SLIRB AT BRI B X T EE R
HEMEUFENS @ ARERTNF1E
36l A HIEEH] -

AEBRHERRBBERAEREHZ7
R SHR ARSI AR A0 B 5 e WOROR (F0FR R AR
B iR DTN -

At 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
0to 180 days 02180k 549,478 296,715
181 to 365 days 1812365k 1,405 1,872
1-2 years 15224 105,866 22,556
2-3 years 2E3F 15,486 926
Over 3 years HBiE3F 3,184 4,458
675,419 326,527

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB57,033,000 (2018: RMB27,941,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, RMB14,625,000
(2018: RMB5,385,000) has been past due 360 days or more and is
not considered as in default, as the payment approval process of the
debtor, which is the local government, usually takes a longer time.

M20196F12A318  sFAREEE ZEW
RIBESRBRARSE AHDBHMERmA
B AR ¥57,033,0007C (2018 F : AR
27,941,00070) B &R A o A E 8 Hi R 4584
R AR #14,625,0007T (20184 « AR¥E
5,385,0007T) B B HA360 B S A £ - B R
B A (RVE M BUR ) 1T 15 Fstt A2 @
BRNERER « MZESTEIEEL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

26. Trade Receivables (continueq)

26. EZ EWHEIE @)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REEBHE A&
2019
RMB'000
AR¥ET
At 1 January M1A1H =
Impairment losses recognised BRI (B 18 1,470
At 31 December R12A318 1,470

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables — at amortised
cost for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 38(b).

Trade receivables — at FVTPL:

Trade receivables — at FVTPL are in respect of income arising from
land infrastructure development for industrial parks other than Longhe
Park. The Group entered into service agreements with the relevant
local government authorities, according to which the Group provides
construction services and is entitled to service consideration on a cost-
plus basis. The settlements of service consideration will be made in
accordance with the terms specified in the agreements. According to
the agreements, the cash flows of the receivables could not pass the
solely payments of principal and interest testing, and were classified as
FVTPL from 1 January 2018.

The fair value change recognised for the year ended 31 December 2019
decreased the Group’s profit by RMB38,395,000 (2018: RMB52,208,000).

Included in the receivables from industrial towns development was an
amount of RMB2,037,290,000 (2018: 2,036,857,000) which was bearing
interest ranging from 6.37% to 10% (2018: ranging from 6.37% to 10%).

Details of fair value information of trade receivables — at FVTPL are set
out in note 38(c).

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BUE2019512 A31 B L F E R i A 5
ROVE 5 IR R E R A BT
38(b) °

BAFEF ABRRNE S RKFIR

BRAFEFABSNESRKRIENE M
BE 7] 1m0 30 [ DA IR 22 26 1) - ot B AR 2R e B
RATEAMUA - AL BG5BT
WRART L ARFS 1k - Bt - AEEIRHE
FRRTS - WA HEHR A AN DN AR AU ER AR B 1K
B - BERBREBIRB TR E
RER - RIBEZ S W% - BRGENES
MEAEBRBEAINEASRF S A
& ¥ H2018F1 A1 BN B AR AFE
AT ABE o

HE09F12A3NBIEFEEBERA
AFEEEZHFEAEBNRZFRDARE
38,395,0007T (20184 : A R #52,208,000
JL) ©

REEXTEERANEKZIES @ €84
AR #2,037,290,000 7T (2018 F : AR
2,036,857,0007T ) K & YL 5K T8 1= 1 F-6.37%
Z10% (20184 : N F-6.37% = 10%) K FI| =
AT e

BERZEAFEFABRGENEZEKFIAR
FEARFEHNHFESS(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

27.Prepayments and Other Receivables 27. T R H At B R IE
At 31 December
M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Prepayments: TR RUE -
— Prepayments for construction activities — RS TEN FIE 112,064 128,881
— Prepayments for taxes —TEIHIE 65,238 45,162
- Others —HAh 2,997 3,959
Other receivables: HAb RIS -
— Receivables from local authorities — 3% & 5 MR Y E YRR 220,831 255,502
- Receivables from the third parties —REFE=HHEKFIE 136,125 =
— Loan receivables (note) — R E SR (BisE) 40,000 40,000
— Deposits —5% 25,555 20,466
— Other advances —Hh#FR 11,539 22,273
— Staff advances — BT 8 11,087 10,730
- Others —HAfh 43,125 39,164
668,561 566,137
Less: allowance for other receivables B B A UG (22,267) (11,302)
646,294 554,835
Analysis for reporting purposes as: HBERBHITAOT ¢
Current assets MENVE E 386,718 418,394
Non-current assets IERBEE 259,576 136,441
646,294 554,835
Note: Loan receivables at the end of the reporting period made to independent MisE : REREHRRAB = S EL B E =
third parties were unsecured, recoverable on demand and interest-bearing AR - AT SRS U [E] K iR E R R
based on the benchmark interest rate. e .
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REE R
2019
RMB’000
AR¥TT
At 1 January MM A1 11,302
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 10,965
At 31 December ®12A318 22,267
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the year HZE2019F12 A31 8 \LFE HE b IR GRIE
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 38(b). BB R EE B E A I EE38(D) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

28.Bank Balances and Restricted Bank 28.8817&8 R IZR4IBTES

Deposits

At 31 December

M12A318
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT
Bank balances and cash in hand RITEB LTRSS 774,748 1,407,225
Time deposits TEEIER 563,644 760,979
Total bank deposits, bank balances and cashinhand  4R75752k - SRITEB KL FiFE 4
okl 1,338,392 2,168,204
Less: Deposits pledged for banking facilities S BLSRITRVE M E TR SR
(note 31(a) (Ki#E31(a)) (39,000) (354,979)
Deposits pledged for other loans e SR mE RN TR
(note 31(0)) (F45E31(b)) - (5,100)
Deposits pledged for guarantees granted to AR IERmE
customers (note) 2 (fsr) (38,756) (55,881)
1,260,636 1,752,244
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity g : REEZ S ERIHAE &= A
of three months or more when acquired kA | e BT (563,644) (406,000)
Total cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated 42 AE4EEXRRMBEL KR
statement of cash flows e Z([BY L 696,992 1,346,244
Bank deposits, bank balances and cash in LA B S He s HE Y R T 1R SR
hand denominated in: PITEMRERES
- RMB(functional currency of the relevant entities) — ARE(EETEY
e E*) 743,980 1,712,322
~ United States dollars (“US$") —=m([ZEx]) 591,493 377,088
- HK$ — B 2,875 78,636
- Singapore dollars (“SG$") — s T ([T ) 32 157
- European Monetary Unit (“EUR") — BB 1" =
- Japanese dollars (“JPY”) —RE(TEE]) 1 |
1,338,392 2,168,204
Analysis for reporting purpose as: PRIRERBR O
- Current assets —mEVAE 1,299,392 2,163,104
- Non-current assets —EmENEE 39,000 5,100
1,338,392 2,168,204

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

28.Bank Balances and Restricted Bank 28.8R{T4&t: R IR&IBITE

Deposits (continued)

Note: The amounts represented bank deposits denominated in RMB pledged to
banks as security for certain mortgage loans granted by the banks to the
Group’s customers. The restricted bank deposits will be released upon
receiving the building ownership certificate of the respective properties
by the banks from the customers as a pledge for security to the mortgage
loans granted.

Bank balances and cash were mainly denominated in RMB which
is not a freely convertible currency in the international market. The
exchange rate of RMB is regulated by the government of the PRC and
the remittance of these funds out of the mainland China is subject to
exchange restrictions imposed by the government of the PRC.

The bank deposits and bank balances carry prevailing market interest
rates as follows:

(#%)

MiaE - RERBREERRTAARERFP R A
TREERHEIRMERTEROAAR
BAHENRITER - RHEIBRTERER
RITAFPREE Y ENEErME#E(F
REBSRISE R ) B ARRR R ) ©

RITHEBERSEFEUAARKEE - MA
RETEERRMSEHLHT - ARKE
EZATERFNRE  $EHEERES
B SR BB B 5 RO SN ERR
i o

RITFRKIRITAERIZIRITH IS FIX&
S S

At 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
% %
Interest rate per annum & 0.35-2.75 0.35-2.75

29. Trade and Other Payables 29. B 5 Rk HAETFKIB
At 31 December

MA12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Trade payables B Z IR 810,991 954,041
Refundable deposits (note) AEERT & (KiFE) 63,596 184,074
Tax payables FERFRIE 50,332 47,043
Property, plant and equipment costs payable R - BE KRR 47,845 352,879
Investment properties construction costs payable {5 E& #2558 AL A 14,595 10,609
Other deposits received H BT 23,390 40,503
Accrued payroll FEEHH & 24,574 24,172
Other payables HAh (308 17,307 15,198
1,052,630 1,628,519

Note: The amounts represent refundable deposits received from interested
parties for potential investments in the land developed by the Group.

st - ZEeREAA BB EASERE LbE
REERENATREERRER]E ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

29. Trade and Other Payables (continued) 29. B R HMENSRE @)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on services/ AT ABRBRE R - BIRESRK, 8
materials received date at the end of the reporting period: HEREITHE S IENIEERER DT ¢

At 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT
Less than 1 year PIME 342,157 533,275
1-2 years 1224 238,709 54,139
2-3 years 2B3F 44,056 229,842
Over 3 years HBE3F 186,069 136,785
810,991 954,041
30. Contract Liabilities 30. 6 AaE
Contract liabilities represent the obligations to transfer properties to the AHBAEEBBRRAERBRE REK TS
customers in accordance with the revenue recognition policy and the MEFPERYERHEL -

nature of the business.

At 31 December

MW12A31H

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Sales of properties HEWZE 62,060 85,338
Deferred income FEIEUTA 84,161 84,161
146,221 169,499
Current mE 62,060 85,338
Non-current IEmED 84,161 84,161
146,221 169,499

As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities amounted to RMB1,235,670,000. MR2018F1A1H  6HNABAARKE

1,235,670,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

30. Contract Liabilities (continueq) 30. 58w

Contract liabilities, that are not expected to be settled within the
Group's normal operating cycle, are classified as current and non-
current based on the Group's earliest obligation to transfer goods or
services to the customers.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the
current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

BHEEFEHIETERAEENEREX
BEHRNETERE) RN EER TP ERRD
mERENZERERITEEDERRE R
BB °

TRINTEABSNEBEERNAFED
RUAREHE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MHLEE
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Revenue recognised that was included in the FEYEFAE A EERNE
contract liability balance at the beginning of FERUA
the year 55,370 1,151,509

The Group receives the advance when signing the contracts with
customers on sales of properties. However, depending on market
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount compared to
the listed selling price, provided that the customers agree to pay the
balance of the consideration early while construction is still ongoing.
The deposits and advance payment schemes result in contract liabilities
being recognised throughout the property construction period until the
customer obtains control of the completed property.

AEERETLPREAWHEMENE N
WENEATR « AT+ WEFPRERTEDA
ETPRREFXNRESH  AEESHR
FiigiRAE s RERRIEEREN
g - RaNaEmEENFT & RBANK
BEREEMZTEHABER  E2EPM
BB AL
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

31. Bank and Other Borrowings 31. BT REMMER

At 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Bank loans RITER
Secured (note a) AR (FzEa) 3,118,279 2,947,268
Other loans HAER
Secured/guaranteed (note b) B ER (D) 1,467,723 2,233,193
4,586,002 5,180,461
Total borrowings are repayable as follows: EREENEE AT
— Within one year ——FR 1,679,489 1,477,701
- Over 1 year and within 2 years — BB —FEMERN 1,860,458 1,540,635
- Over 2 years and within 5 years —HBRMmE R AFA 572,747 2,131,756
- Over 5 years —BBAF 473,308 30,369
4,586,002 5,180,461
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities & : BV EEE NI & 5 (1,679,489) (1,477,701)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ERBABE RS 2,906,513 3,702,760
Floating rate borrowings FEER 2,150,522 2,359,245
Fixed rate borrowings TE B 2,435,480 2,821,216
4,586,002 5,180,461
Bank and other borrowings denominated in: LATSI &R HER IR T R EAIEEK -
- RMB —ARE 4,570,652 5,164,915
- HK$ — 15,350 15,546
4,586,002 5,180,461
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

31. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes:

a. The secured bank loans of the Group were secured by certain assets of the
Group and their carrying amounts are as follows:

MM.BITREMER @

McE

a. AKENEEMRTEFUAAEEETE
BRI - HRREEDT ¢

At 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) W - BB REE(HEE16) 610,629 42,066
Investment properties (note 18) LB (Hi5E18) 841,600 598,300
In progress land development & L FAEETIE B (M5E23)
arrangements (note 23) - 550,000
Properties under development for sale (note 25) FEERPYE(H5E25) 862,891 200,000
Trade receivables (note 26) B 5 MGRE (M sE26) 427,650 348,130
Restricted bank deposits (note 28) PR FIER1 717 R (F17E28) 39,000 354,979
Completed properties for sale HEERIYE 218,838 -
Right-of-use assets (note 17) EREEE(FIEE17) 56,278 -
3,056,886 2,093,475
Except for the assets set out above, the Group has pledged its equity B EXETEEEN © AEBR2019F K

interest in a subsidiary with a net assets value of approximately RMB619

million as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The secured other loans of the Group were secured by certain assets of the

Group and their carrying amounts are as follows:

2018F 12 A3 AEHR —KHWE R r &K
7 HEEFEHNARKECI9BET °

b. AEENEMEEAEFUAAEEETE
ELERIER - HRREEDT ¢

At 31 December

M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) Y - BB KR (EE16) - 349,453

In progress land development FE L FAEIE R (523)

arrangements (note 23) 338,876 338,876
Properties under development for sale (note 25) FERRETWE (F7F25) 80,000 784,789
Restricted bank deposits (note 28) Z R BRI TR (HI7E28) = 5,100
Equity of an associate (note 19) —REEE AR AR (FEE19) 127,167 101,866
Completed properties for sale FEERIY 147,397 -
Investment properties (note 18) BEME(HizE18) 56,900 -
750,340 1,580,084

Details of the guarantees of other loans are set out in note 45(d).

B AR E RO RF IR E45(d) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

31.

32.

Bank and Other Borrowings continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowings are as
follows:

M. BITREMER @
AEEE RN EEFEHENT :

At 31 December

M12A318
2019 2018
% %
Effective interest rate per annum: ERREFEK
Floating rate borrowings ERSRI=F 4.79-8.63 4.90-8.63
Fixed rate borrowings TE B AR 5.80-12.00 5.25-12.00

Interest on borrowings denominated in RMB at floating rates is based
on the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China.
Interest on borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollar at floating
rate is based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and repriced
monthly.

Convertible Bonds, Notes, Senior Notes
and Derivative

On 30 December 2015, the Company issued a three-year term
convertible bonds of US$50,000,000 (the “2015 Convertible Bonds”)
and a three-year term secured guaranteed notes of US$50,000,000 (the
"2015 Notes”) to the same third party. The coupon rates of the 2015
Convertible Bonds and 2015 Notes are 6% and 12% respectively and the
interests will be paid semi-annually. The effective interest rate is 16.10%
per annum after considering the effect of the transaction costs.

The 2015 Convertible Bonds can be converted into a number of
125,000,000 shares of the Company at an initial conversion price
of HK$3.10 per share before maturity, which should be subject to
adjustment in certain events. The total net proceeds received by the
Company from the issues of the 2015 Convertible Bonds have been split
between a liability component and a derivative component in its initial
recognition. The conversion option component of the 2015 Convertible
Bonds is separately accounted for as derivative and measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company paid off
the 2015 Notes of US$50,000,000 and the 2015 Convertible Bonds of
US$45,000,000. The residual 10 percent of the 2015 Convertible Bonds
of US$50,000,000 were converted into 13,596,491 ordinary shares of the
company.

AR HERF SRS TR EH
BARRITAMEERNETFE - B
FHEMZ BERO N B TREEBRITR
EREEE - UFATHEE -

32. AHIRES FEE - BER
BRITEMBE IR
201512 A308 © AARAR—FH=
72174 % 5 B A50,000,0003% TH) = &
M E A ([2015F A @i E S ) &
50,000,000 L) = FHA G IKIF B B RZ
B (2015 Z4& 1) - 2015F AT SR ES K
2015 F = EAZEFED B AH6% K% 12% -
WEHFFEIA—RFL - EERRHHA
&%  BERFFNER16.10% °

20154 A EHIRE SR I HI B AT AR B OB
310 SR E (RN EEE T E 4
JEF] T 38 ) #4 £5125,000,00008 A8 2 A1k
7 ° ARARIEIT20155F Al R B H K PI1S
FIE AR F R VI IR FERR RS 45 9 47 /8 B (R AT
DROTERMFB TR D © 2015F Al (E
FEEHREE D D RARBITEN
TARRRAFEAE  MAFEZSARN
BER PR -

HE2018F12A31BILEE - AQF
& {8 #2 50,000,000 3% JT #2015 F Z i |
45,000,0003< T HU20154F Al B2 (&5 » W5
#: T 10%#950,000,00035 7T 2 201 54F A] & 2
B 513,596,491 B ANA 5] 3@A% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

32.Convertible Bonds, Notes, Senior Notes 32. W@ {E% - =i - B4 E

and Derivative (continued)

The 2015 Convertible Bonds and 2015 Notes are jointly guaranteed by
the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders and secured by the pledge of
entire equity interest of Shing Cheong Holdings Ltd. (“Shing Cheong”),
China Vast International Holdings Limited (“China Vast International”),
King Billion Corporation Limited (“King Billion”) and Sheng Shi
International (HK) Development Limited (“Sheng Shi”), all are subsidiaries
of the Company.

On 9 January 2018, the Company issued a three-year term convertible
bonds of US$50,000,000 (the “2018 Convertible Bonds"”) and issued
three guaranteed notes which will be matured in years 2019, 2020 and
2021 respectively in an aggregate principal amount of US$110,000,000
(the “2018 Notes") to the same third party. The coupon rates of both the
2018 Convertible Bonds and 2018 Notes are 6% and the interests will
be paid semi-annually. The 2018 Convertible Bonds can be converted
into a number of shares of the Company at an initial conversion
price of HK$4.75 per share before maturity, which should be subject
to adjustment in certain events including the dividend paid by the
Company prior to conversion.

The Company may redeem the 2018 Convertible Bonds and 2018 Notes
to the holders after the date falling 24 months from the issue date.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 2018 Notes, the Company
has exercised its right to redeem in full the aggregate principal amount
of US$48 million of the 2018 Notes during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: nil) (the “Redemption”) at a total redemption price (together
with accrued and unpaid interest thereon) approximately of US$49
million. Upon completion of the Redemption, the 2018 Notes due in
2020 will be fully cancelled and the Company will be discharged. The fair
value of the early redemption option of the 2018 Notes is immaterial.
Therefore, the Company does not account for the early redemption
option of the 2018 Notes. The conversion option component and the
early redemption option of the 2018 Convertible Bonds are accounted
for as derivative and measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. The effective interest rate for the 2018
Notes and the liability component of the 2018 Convertible Bonds is 8.05%
per annum after considering the effect of the transaction costs.

BRUTEBMBE T Rw

20154 A # 4 {5 % [ 20154 2 15 49 ¢ &
IR AR ST R A ER - B RRE R
AFHE]) - PEERERERER A
F(hEEREE ) - kEERAR (K
%) REERE(ES) REARAT ([
) (#9 B4R FIE KB A ) 82 SAE
Vet -

ARARR2018F1A9BME—% =1 1T
£ %85 51 450,000,0003 7T H) = 4 HA AT it
&% ([2018F rl 8155 |) R 5 Rl 2019
F ~ 2020%F K202V FFEREACHAER
110,000,000 7T H) = R B R = H (2018
FEHE|) - 2018F Al IR EH K 2018F =
BOEmAIRS A% - WiEFHEEZ—
IRF B, © 20184 A1 EFAE A TE B HA B AT AT
RERBEATSTHNLRRE(EETSE
B AERER THE  BEANARRER
AIZ T RRR B )i AE T AR ARG, -

RNRBVEEEZTT BB 2418 A & M5
B A B [0 2018 4F A $#4 (& 25 ) 2018 FF
1 - RIB2018FRIBA R MR - AR
AIREZE2019F12 431 B (EFE1T R
BHELIA DA RIBABET(20184F ¢
BINZERE(ED ) - SECEGER
HEFANAB) N RIOBEET - NE
Bl 5K 1% - 2020 4F 2 Hi /9 2018 & R & %
WAL - MANR B ERER o 20185
SEMNRENEEDREEQFELTERK -
Bt - AR E T & 2018F RIBHI R AT IE
Bl 2R AR - 20184 AJ A A M E iR
BEEE D RIEATBEIERBRARAITE
M TARBATEFE MATEES
AFMER PR - KEBERIRANTE
f&  2018F R 2018 F Al B H A
B D M ERREF K 58.05%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

32.Convertible Bonds, Notes, Senior Notes

and Derivative (continued)

The 2018 Convertible Bonds and 2018 Notes are jointly guaranteed by
the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, Profit East, Shing Cheong, China
Vast International, King Billion and Sheng Shi.

On 28 June 2019, the Company issued a two-year term senior note of
US$180,000,000 (the “2019 Senior Notes”).The coupon rate of the 2019
Senior Notes is 13% and the interest is payable semi-annually. The
effective interest rate is 14.52% per annum after considering the effect
of the transaction costs. The notes will expire on 28 June 2021, unless
redeemed in advance by the Company, the fair values of the early
redemption option of the 2019 Senior Notes are immaterial. Therefore,
the Company does not account for the early redemption options
separately.

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

32. THHES B B4R

BERITEMBE TR

20184 7 #4125 T 2018 4F B2 4 ph 3 AR 42
WIS - FIE - HE - EEREEE K
% RA R AR -

201956 28 H » ZK/A A]Z17180,000,000
ETMMERELEZR([2019FBER
&) o 2019FBARENZENER13%
W BFFX—RFE - BEBXHHAK
MFER  BEREENERI1452% - ZFER
BAEPA202156 A28 B EIER - MR AR AT
BERIN - 2019FBERIFNIRT B OER
BEATELTERXN - At - ARETE
IR EEIREED AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

32.Convertible Bonds, Notes, Senior Notes
and Derivative (continued)
The movements of the debt component and derivative component of
the 2015 Convertible Bonds, 2018 Convertible Bonds, 2015 Notes, 2018
Notes and 2019 Senior Notes for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 are set out below:

32. A/HIRAES - B - BEE
BRTEMB IR
HE2019F K2018F 12 A31H L FE -
20154F A A (E % - 20184F Al iR (E %
20155 Z 4% « 2018 F ZIE K 2019F B A E
BEREERIRITEV BT ASSNES
AT ¢

Debt
component
of 2015
Convertible
Bonds and
2018 2015 Notes 2019
Convertible Derivative and Senior
Bonds component 2018 Notes Notes
2015F AT
BE% 20184
AR ES PTEME  201556ZE 20194
8BRS TAEBS K2018FFE BEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2018 R2018F141H 324,194 59,554 337,230 =
New issuance of 2018 81720184
Convertible Bonds and AIERES K&
2018 Notes 2018F =% 317,844 28,721 692,923 —
Fair value change recognised in B HERH
profit or loss NEES = (11,201) = =
Interest charged for the year FRFERFIE 52,741 = 56,935 =
Interest paid BRFE (89,554) - (32,106) =
Conversion of the 2015 Convertible #&4#:20154
Bonds AIEIRES (32,703) 9,619) - -
Repayment of the 2015 Convertible {&14+20154F AJ &4k
Bonds and 2015 Notes BEFH R2015F K (259,026) (46,199) (337,230) =
Exchange realignment bE H FA R 33,507 2,122 39,016 -
At 31 December 2018 H2018F 124318 347,003 23,378 756,768 -
New issuance of 2019 Senior Notes #73£7720194
BEER = = = 1,237,446
Fair value change recognised in EIEE R
profit or loss NFEES) = (21,890) = =
Transaction cost RS A - - - (31,528)
Interest charged for the year FREMNFE 27,550 = 46,933 89,877
Interest paid BRI E (25,918) - (59,981) (82,249)
Repayment of the 2018 Notes B 2018 FFHE = = (444,760) =
Exchange realignment fE 5, 2 5,788 132 10,347 19,468
At 31 December 2019 R20195F 128318 354,423 1,620 309,307 1,233,014
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

32.Convertible Bonds, Notes, Senior Notes 32 . mE#ifa% - Eif - B4 E

and Derivative (continued) BROTEBE T Rw@
At 31 December At 31 December
M12A31H MR12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Analysis for reporting purpose as: ABRERBATALT
Convertible bonds, notes and senior notes AERES RERELEZE
— Current liabilities —REAE = 110,075
- Non-current liabilities —ERBEE 1,896,744 993,696
1,896,744 1,103,771
Derivative PTEMB T A
— Non-current liabilities —ERBEE 1,620 23,378
1,620 23,378
Details of valuation of the derivative component are set out in note BREAMTEMB T Ao GERN B
38(C). F+38(C) °
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33.

34.

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

Lease Liabilities 33.{HEAE
At
31 December
2019
M20194
12A31H
RMB’000
AR¥T R
Lease liabilities payable: ENEERE
Within one year —FR 22,817
Within a period of more than one year —F LA BN BIBRF R M
but not more than two years 7,193
Within a period of more than two years M LA BT R A A HIE
but not more than five years 15,026
Within a period of more than five years AFLA_ERIHAM 1,721
46,757
Less: Amount due for settlement within B RBIAEE MR 12(E A NEISREE S5
12 months shown under current liabilities (22,817)
Amount due for settlement after ERBAFEE T TM12EA A BEENSTE
12 months shown under non-current liabilities 23,940

Deferred Income

Government grants of RMB10,000,000 have been received in the
current year towards the Group’s one property development project. As
the property is still under construction, the amount of RMB10,000,000
in total will be transferred to income over the useful life of the property
upon completion.

Government grants of RMB5,746,000 have been received in the current
year towards property construction costs. The amount is transferred to
income over the useful lives of the relevant properties.

34 EEW A

RAEE - AEE—BMEHRBIEAES
T 78 B A R #510,000,0007T * B2 245
e - 45T AR$510,000,0007T 578 %
THRRMFEREATHREEEIRA -

RAREE - MERRMAESBRFEBA
R#5,746,0007T - Z e FEE BT R
EREEEERA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

35. Share Capital 35. |7

Share capital of the Group includes only issued and fully paid share
capital of the Company as set out below.

AEBRAR BIEATHIEH A2 TR
EARREPEA o

Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number of value of value of
ordinary ordinary ordinary
shares shares shares
ZER ZER HER
R HE ZEREE
HK$'000 RMB'000
BT ARETT
Authorised ordinary shares HRREEB0.017TH
of HK$0.01 each: ETE SR
As at 31 December 2018 and R2018F12A31H &
31 December 2019 201912 H31H 5,000,000,000 50,000 39,792
Issued and fully paid: BITUWHRE -
At 1 January 2018 720181 41H 1,637,641,000 16,376 13,031
Conversion of convertible bonds ER 0 EIRES 13,596,491 136 110
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018 20194 K 2018412 A31H 1,651,237,491 16,512 13,141
36.Reserves 36. &

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the reporting period are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The principal reserves of the Group consist of the following:

(i) Merger reserve
The merger reserve in these consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 represented the share
capital of Shing Cheong.

(ii) Share premium

The share premium account is governed by the Cayman
Companies Law and may be applied by the Company subject
to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and articles of
association in (a) paying distributions or dividends to members;
(b) paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to
equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares; (c) the redemption
and repurchase of shares (subject to the provisions of section 37
of the Cayman Companies Law); (d) writing-off the preliminary
expenses of the Company; and (e) writing-off the expenses of, or
the commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of shares
or debentures of the Company.

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

7 58 A2 4 S0 0 B 1 2 DA R AR PR B
28 EEARESBEPETIIR -

AEETZZNFHEE TFISA

(i) EOtRHE
20194 2018412 A31 B4R A B
BARRKP IR A GHERIENS
HARA o

(i) BARE
B EERAFAERSERRAE
# - AR AARRIRBAEBMEER
MR ABERAR MR (IE) &
AR - @ MDIERIRE TR
DR EEIT T AR FBRRAER
BRARKRETRD : OKERE
BB R RVEBI7 RIS AR T
O & BEm ALt : (d)EHAR 2 &R
2R REMEBARRERITRMNHK
BEHFNE BRI AR ME R
THEOITRE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

36. Reserves (continued) 36. @B

(i) Share premium (Continued)
No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity shareholders
out of the share premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

(iii) Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations in Mainland China,
those subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland China are
required to transfer no less than 10% of their profits after taxation,
after offsetting any prior years' losses as determined under the
relevant accounting policies and financial regulations applicable
to entities established in Mainland China, to the statutory reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before the distribution
of a dividend to equity owners of these subsidiaries located in
Mainland China. Statutory reserve is non-distributable other
than in liquidation and can be used to make good previous
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-in capital
in proportion to the existing interests of equity owners, provided
that the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

37. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern; to maintain the confidence
of creditors; to sustain future development of the group entities
and to maximize the return to the owners of the Company through
optimisation of debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, convertible
bonds and notes, net of cash and cash equivalents, and total equity of
the Group.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividend,
raise of new capital, issue of new debt or the repayment of existing
debts.

(i) BRARE (#)
BRIEA R BN ERERE S Nk
BE BRI ARELBIZDE S
ET - BRI SRR EERRA
BRI DIRKAE

(i) EEAE

REBH BN RRBR P RER - &
S B A B At B S A PR B8 12 R R 7E
HFRMEMDEE FEAR IR B AL
ERERMBEST Y BEREE
BEERE - BT DRI10%EBRTE &
NEBREEERE  EERHBERE
BEMEARHS0% - HEEFEAE
WZRAE AL P B At £ BT 8 2 B4
BmIEE ADIKIE Z BT © BRIER
HMEARBR - BANEERTENA
FIADIK = SEERE R ARERBE
FERER(NE)  RIZEEEEA
BERENLPIESRKBEER
HEFBREERTFLONEMELRD
25% ©

37. EXRABEE

REEEREBEAURRAEEERKEA
BESELE  BEEEANGD AR
FEBBLEERLED TS HEEE
BOARER - ARBRRBHEA ATE
RALHR

AEBWEARBRRNSENER - 78
BEFLREE(NRRELESFEY) N
NS AERRAAK

ARREEEHEREALRE - (ERULIA
B8  ARAREZEEERKAR
REREERR - REARBEENE
& ARERERRNEE  8KHE
A BITHEIMERRAES - AFEE
HRREARZE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

38. Financial Instruments 38. M ITA
a. Categories of financial instruments a. BT ESER

At 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Financial assets BisEE
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFESFABENTISEE
— Trade receivables — at FVTPL —RAFEAEREN
B 5 RWGE 2,037,290 2,036,857
— Other financial assets at FVTPL — R AT EAEEN
Hih @5 & 149,239 34,030
Financial assets at amortised cost IR SHAANY | BR B B RS B B
— Trade receivables — at amortised cost — I SH R AN BR A
& S W IR 675,419 326,527
- Other receivables — E fth FEUFRIR 454,908 366,103
— Amounts due from related parties — FEUR B 5 FO0B 165,365 171,343
— Restricted bank deposits — R HIRITIFR 77,756 415,960
— Bank balances and cash —RITREBR RS 1,260,636 1,752,244
Financial liabilities BEaE
Derivative financial instruments PTEMB T A 1,620 23,378
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR SER NS BRI TS B (R
— Trade and other payables — B 5 RHAEFIE 1,002,298 1,581,476
— Amounts due to related parties — FEAST RS 5 2R 105,597 368,308
— Bank and other borrowings —RIT R ELABIE K 4,586,002 5,180,461
— Convertible bonds, notes and senior notes ~ — ATEEA(ES - EE R
BERE 1,896,744 1,103,771
— Lease liabilities —HEAaE 46,757 -

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

38. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's financial instruments are set out above. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (interest rate risk and foreign currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
directors of the Company manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk mainly related
to convertible bonds and notes (note 32) and fixed-rate bank and
other borrowings (note 31) and lease liabilities (note 33).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on cash
and cash equivalents and bank and other borrowings carried at
prevailing market interest rates based on or by reference to the
interest rates promulgated by the People’s Bank of China and
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.

The Group currently does not have a specific policy to manage
their interest rate risk and has not entered into interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure, but will closely monitor its interest rate
exposure in the future.

The variable rate sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable rate
borrowings at the end of the reporting period and assumed that
the amounts outstanding at the end of reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. Bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis as the directors of the Company consider that
the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable
rate bank balances in insignificant.

38. At
b.

BIRew

MRERBEEBEREE

REE MG T AN XX - R
BT AMFHBE SRR AR
ERZEN B TANRBRBETSE
@ (M= RINERR) - EERER
MngEzmER -

ARAMAREZE R AR RER T
X ARAEEEERETEZERA
B NEREKRRAEREREE B
i

MRER
AEEREEBAWABRESRE
H(H5E32) « i BARIT REME K
(MEES) AR B E B B (33 1 A
FEFIEER -

Re MRS FEYWARBRITREME
IR TSN RGFTE - MRET5H
MEARBR 2 EHEARRITRD
MR K BB RITRIZEY S AT ERAYHI
8 - EAEE IR R E 5
TRSMAZREREN @R -

S B AT AR BURE IR A E &
B - JREERT SRS EAS R AR -
MERS ) BE R H B AR BRI R AR o

TXHFEERHRENTIDER SRS
HRFEERNMRREBRTE » LR
RESHERRHARFENSREE
EFEHHRFE - AARREER
R RRITHEBMEHNR S RER
BAEN - FbREIRITAERETE
RRE DT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

38. Financial Instruments continued) 38. M T A

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
If interest rates on borrowings had been 50 basis points (2018:
50 basis points) higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, there would have no significant impact on the Group’s
total equity apart from retained profits and the potential effect on
profit after tax (at 25% PRC statutory rate corporate income tax
rate), after taking into account the interest capitalisation effect, for
the each of reporting period is as follows:

b.

B E TR B ERBER(H)

F = @B ()

BBEAHT

A H R b % ok T B 505 B
(20184F : SOELE) T Ffi 7 o fth B 2 48
BRg - RADERFEIN - AEEH
ERREETESNEAYE Mz
BRHEEMLE B% - SREHEG
BRI (R BUR T A BT SRR =
25%) HBIE/ EI T :

Year ended 31 December

BE128318LLEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARETT
Change in post-tax profit for the year REF R & 3,670 3,551

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

38. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The carrying amount of the Group’s major foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end
of each of reporting period are as follows:

38. EJH%IE-H*

MHREREEBERBERE)
SN [ B

REENZREARIAINES BN E
ZEBEENREKBEREELT

At 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Assets BE
us$ =
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS 591,493 377,088
HK$ ki
Bank balances and cash SRITHEHR LIRS 2,875 78,636
Amounts due from related parties FE U FERSE 5 sk IR 586 586
SG$ N T
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIA S 32 157
Liabilities i=F
us$ ET
Convertible bonds, notes and senior notes ~ AJEEiAES « EER
BRER 1,896,744 1,103,771
HK$ T
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMIERK 15,350 15,546
Amounts due to a related party JE—& BEEE 5 708 = 264,599

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposure should the need arises.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in US$ against
RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2018:
5%) increase and decrease in the exchange rates of RMB
against relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2018: 5%) represents
the directors’ assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of reporting period for a 5%
(2018: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive humber
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the year where
RMB strengthens against the relevant currency. For a 5% (2018:
5%) weakening of RMB against the relevant currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit for the year.

AR ER[8] B B30 48 5 TE SNE P BOR ©
A - AEEEEE S S ERINER R
WR M EEZ EEHEAINERL

AEENEZREBIKREETHLARE
HIEERE -

TR AEEE ARE X EEINE
FER _EF K R #k5%(20184F : 5%)H)
BRKEFEIS  5%(20184F : 5%) A&
é%ﬂ&h%[ﬂfﬁﬁaé@“%ﬁaﬁﬁ
fiy o URAE D ITE BIBFAINEEHER
MASHERIEE « WRSIREHR
LAGNES B SR 585 8/ 5% (20184F : 5% ) E
FERFAE - THESHEARKEERH
NS B - ANFRI&E FIAYIE N o
AR N B BERETE55%(20184F :

5%) BF + AR 5 F S K S E A AR

REE .
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

38. Financial Instruments (continueq)

b.

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

38. BT A

RS ERBER (&)

SNGEE JEL B ()
%)

HRE DT (4

Year ended 31 December

Increase in post-tax profit for the year (US$) — ZRE 718 5% A1 hn (=T )

BE12831ALEE
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMT AREF 5
67,939 36,798

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure at the end of reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during that particular year.

Credit risk and impairment assessment
As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of financial assets
best represent the maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. The monitoring procedures
for the customer’s credit quality are in place to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of IFRS 9 financial instruments set out below. In
determining the carrying amounts of these instruments, the Group
considered various factors, such as the credit risk characteristics
in different districts, aging analysis and forward-looking
adjustment based on present and future economic conditions.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits is limited because the counterparties have high
credit ratings. The directors of the Company do not expect any
counterparty would fail to meet its obligations.

AABEERR  HRREHRNF
REBRI IR X EFENRL
B bt BURRE D AT I T RE AR R BB SN
R o

FEERRKREETE
M2019F12A318 K EERRE
BEREREREEERR - REEN
EREEEV G EEEENEERR
miFH EMEA DRI EMINREER
o

REEREEERR  AEEERE
ERRERAREERENEERE
EEd HEPEEEENEERE
ERLAL - ARER KBS SRENERAETTED
AU B8 BRI © thoh - NEE AL
AT 3C P 28R B B 75 ¥ 5 R R 2B 955
85 T ARIZTAHE IR R R ALEST
BER L - EEEZETANKREE
B AEEZEEERE - flTE
wERAEERBRER - RO EE
PER B B oK B AR A L 6 B 4 5

.

MR F T AARREENE - Bt
FHARERREEBYRRBHIRT
FRHOEERRER - ARAIEER
HmEHF IR EITERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

38. Financial Instruments continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the

following categories:

38. BT A

Trade receivables/
contract assets/
amounts due from

B E TR B ERBER(H)
EERBNREN G )

RE BB EE AR RBIEAT
IR

Internal related parties Other financial
credit rating Description (trade nature) assets/other items
E5EWE
BREE/
PE R BAEE 5 AR HtBisEE

RWEBEE TR L] (BHME) Hibig g

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL

KR e default and does not have any not credit-impaired 128 ATEERE AL
past-due amounts. FERTEHREREBAR -

HFFEARBRRIE - BHEEE(a FEERE

Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

&k in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed GFESREHEREL - FERBEHEREL -
internally or external resources FEERE FEERE

BYIRFERIAR - EEREREBARE
BUE R SN ERAE L N
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
g asset is credit-impaired. credit-impaired credit-impaired
ARBRAZEEC HREERIE ° FEEHERER— FERERERAER—
EERE EERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

38. Financial Instruments (continued) 717']’§IE<<F
b. Financial risk management objectives and ,\ﬂ‘“ﬂfiﬂ?”‘:ﬁ BERBE®)
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment FEERBRREEN M E

(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's LA SRR F A EBIRIZTBEIREAE

financial assets and other items, which are subject to ECL KA BEEREMIBEMNEE

assessment: [R\ BT A

Gross carrying Gross carrying

amount amount

12-month or lifetime ECL 2019 2018
12 FEREREREL IREAE REAE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R AREFT

Financial assets at amortised cost

REBHERAIRNMREE

Trade receivables (Note a) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 676,889 326,527

B 5 EWRIE (M) FEREREREBXGHEERE)

Other receivables (Note ) 12-month ECL 184,568 58,076

Ho A e R IE (Ff k) 12[EABHEREX

Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 292,607 319,329
FEPEHEAERACGHEERE)

Restricted bank deposits 12-month ECL 77,756 415,960

XBHIRITIFER 12{E BFEHERBX

Time deposits with maturity of 12-month ECL 563,644 406,000

over three months 2B ATEHEREX
FE R A= EA LA L& E BifFR
Cash and cash equivalents 12-month ECL 696,992 1,346,244
R RBSEEY 2B ABHEREX
Amounts due from related parties Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 2,991 2,991
(trade nature) (Note a) FERESRERBLCGHEERE)

PR BEES T IE (B 1L ) (Hizka)

Amounts due from related parties 12-month ECL 2,086 168,352
(non-trade nature) 1218 BRI A

P EEE T R IE(GEB S L)

Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 161,598 -
FERERERBEXGHEERE)

Other items

HiER

Contract assets (Note a) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 86,605 51,828

BHEE (M) FERERERBXGHEERE)

Financial guarantee contracts (Note b) 12-month ECL 954,176 966,446

IS AR A 4 (kD) 12[EABHEREX

Notes: B -

a. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied a. HESERZERED ﬁéﬁﬁ =i
the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at AR E FE A B B 5 s 22 RISE 9
lifetime ECL. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually. SRR RE(E R R ERTESRER

BRI EEBEE  AEERZS
BEMTESEREBRETERIRE -

b.  For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount b. HHMBEEREHME @ REEES
represents the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed under AEBERBESAHEERNEER
the respective contracts. KB

c. For other receivables, the directors of the Company make periodic C. HEMERHIENS  NARES
individual assessment on the recoverability of other receivables BEBAEMNTE  BELHRAR
based on historical settlement records, past experience, and also AEBABESHNOAEEEER
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and TEMEE R - E fth fE IR IE B9 AT U
supportive forward-looking information. [ R AT B AR ©

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

38. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group provided
RMB1,470,000 (2018: nil) impairment allowance for trade
receivables — at amortised cost and contract assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group provided
RMB12,275,000 impairment allowance for other receivables and
amounts due from related parties. The following tables show
reconciliation of loss allowances that has been recognised.

38. E!?H’%IEw@

AR EE R ERBEE)
=& E kR KR E A (4

HE2019F12A3NBILEE » A&
I 1R S P AN 51 AR 0 B 5 FE M T8
k& KB EFIRAR1,470,0007T
(20184 : &) MR ERE

HE2019F12A31BLLEE » AEE
L fth FE UK AR IB K FE it B Bt 5 BB AT
12 AR #12,275,000 7B B B # o LA
TRISFRE R E BB EHER -

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
FETEY
ISP S
GEEERME)
RMB’000
AR¥TT

As at 1 January 2018 R2018F1H1H

Impairment losses recognised ERERREER

11,302

As at 31 December 2018

72018512 H31H

11,302

Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE

13,745

As at 31 December 2019

72019512 H31H

25,047

Changes in the loss allowance in 2019 and 2018 for trade
receivables arose from receivables from individual customers,
and that for other receivables arose from both receivables from
private companies and local government authorities.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group performed
impairment assessment under 12-month ECL model for certain
other receivables, restricted bank deposits, time deposits with
maturity of over three months, cash and cash equivalents and
amounts due from related parties (non-trade nature) and financial
guarantee contracts, and concluded that there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Since the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings, related parties
with sound credit or secured, the probability of defaults of the
counterparties are low and accordingly, no allowance for credit
losses is provided for these financial assets.

20194 & 2018F & 5 e W IB 1 E518
BEESEL A ERTFEYE

Hi W IEN B EREESEL
B AL N B K2 3t 77 BT A R A e U R
Ig o

MNBERR - NEEZE T HBERK
R XRHRITER - BHAS=
BARENERER B RBLF
B R T RAERE S 1EE)
AR St w5 E AR & KR IR 1218 A F8 8
ERIBRRAVEITRER - R A

B AR A RS & R R AR 15
e MR FHRAARREEFRN
RIT ~ FER AR A EM

BEF TR REIERE - Bk -
BERZEVBEEIRERBRRE
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

38. Financial Instruments (continueq)

b.

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Details of
observable data evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
are set out in note 3.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 75.42% (31
December 2018: 41.65%) and 96.13% (31 December 2018: 95.22%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers within the industrial
towns development segment. Since the three largest customers
mentioned above are the local government authorities which
have good historical payment pattern and strong economic
background. The directors of the Company consider that the
exposure of the credit risk arising from customer concentration is
insignificant.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations, bank and other
borrowings and convertible bonds, notes and senior notes.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
and other borrowings with a repayable on demand clause were
included in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the lenders choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates
for other non-derivative financial liabilities and lease liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates.

b.

38. BT Am)

MEEREERERBE®)

EERRERRER G (@)

HABEERREERMNS - AEER
% B BRERERERINEE R
BB ER AT KA BB
HE#EA(BEAEE (T RAEE
FANEERR))E - BEQEMS
B o

3 R S HI TS AR (A K
Xiﬁﬁmuiﬁz_*lj Z ok o2t

- MBEELRIEERE - BN
%ﬁ?ﬁfﬁﬁ = RUE B R B R B
BH R BRI FES »

REXTHEZERS T - AEBEREKAE
SESARFRAARFHESEK
SRIAABRAT5.42% (20185 12 A318 :
41.65%) }296.13% (2018412 A318 :
95.22%) * MULEERKREF - BN
M=KREF Bt BAT#E - BR
ARFEARFREES REKN +
WARNREERE  BEEFELEN
EERBRIETERX °

RBES R
AEBUGEFRBES  BITREM
BRATSRES - FERELERE
AHLEASHERRHUES -

IREAIIAREEIOTEM G E ENME
SABEMHBREOHR - TRREA
SEAREREFRNRTE AL - R
BEBNRTRERERERT - A58
s TamERTTEERITEEERN

AN - AT R RRERIERIGETE
RITERREMETIG AR P B
MEERN - KT EMBE B NE
EaENEH BREHEENRE B

-
E °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

38. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the

38. M T A
b. BEREEEZERBEEE)

FREVE S ES (%)
TERABEENERASESHE -

extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted TR EREEE AT - AIRITES
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of reporting FE IR B MEHIRE TR o
period.
Weighted Overone  Overtwo
average  On demand, yearbut  yearshbut Total
interest orlessthan  lessthan  lessthan  More than  undiscounted carrying
rate oneyear  twoyears  fiveyears  fiveyears  cashflows amount
SR-FR -FREIR REREIR AMRRE
METIHE #E WEARE LEARE DE4RE REAT BEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETn ARETn ARETn  ARETn ARETn  ARETn
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31R
Trade and other payables BHREERNFE 1,002,298 - - - 1,002,298 1,002,298
Amounts due to related parties JE s 3R 105,597 - - - 105,597 105,597
Bak and otfier borrowings RITREMfE
- Fixed rate -8 10.26 838,165 1,302,832 235,133 470,047 2846177 2,435,480
- Floating rate -38 6.59 1,156,329 732,587 407,424 21,072 2,323,412 2,150,522
Convertible bonds and notes EAERREE 8.05 50,339 699,907 - - 750,246 663,730
Senior notes BiZk 14,52 163,243 1,337,338 - - 1500581 1,233,014
Lease liabilities HERR 8.40 21,261 8,658 22,017 3,150 55,086 46,757
Financial guarantee contracts BERAD 954,176 - - - 954,176 -
Total &t 4,291,408 4,081,322 664,574 500,269 9,537,573 7,637,398
At 31 December 2018 RO18E12A31R
Trade and other payables 25 RAMERFE 1581476 - - - 116 1581476
Amounts due to related parties JEfT B 73R 368,308 - - - 38,308 38,308
Bark and otfer borrowings RITREMIE
- Fixed rate -8 823 1,067,283 917,827 1192133 - 3171283 281,216
- Floating rate -%8 6.84 733610 844,895 1,022,600 31408 2,632,573 2,359,245
Convertiole bonds and notes ERESREE 8.05 187,804 286,239 803,332 - 1217375 1103771
Financial guarantee contracts BIBERAD 966,446 - - - 966,446 -
Total & 4,904,987 2,048 961 3,018,065 31408 10,003,421 8,234,016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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38. Financial Instruments (continueq)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for bank and other borrowings
with floating interest rate is subject to change if changes in
floating interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are
the maximum amounts on the basis of the earliest date on which
the Group could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of each reporting period, the Group considers that it is
more likely than not that such amount will not be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

38. BT A

b.

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

B E TR B ERBER(H)

REBESER®)

BZHEREHHRINREMAET
HBREEE - U RIS B R E
mﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁmﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ

A EFBERENMEENEELSE
REFHRAERARRZEEE - R
BREASEAEERERZET
WBENRT BHAENRSSMHE -
REBEESREHRNEASR - XEER
7 REARBARBLHHEEZ S
B AW bt T REER
leHEBERNAIGEIEME - MAF 5 R
Bl AREZRAFIRANERD
MR HRBRRAERBRME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

38. Financial Instruments continued)

C.

Fair values of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group determines
fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Certain of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair value of these financial
assets and liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation

38. BT A

c. HHRIENAFE
SRS R A R A R T B
AERAEODTENER -

RS EEU AT ET RN
ARBHBAERAB/OAT

=l

AEENETHHEERBEESR
EHRARTEFE - TRIEHAH
ZEIM G EE M BB A AN E
FE BV E L (R B2 P A E 7 A M &

techniques and inputs used). AEIE) o
Fair value (RMB'000)
AFEARET )
asat asat  Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
Financial assets 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 hierarchy and key inputs input(s)
BBEE R2019%12A31A R20185F128318  AVERE  RESENEZGAUE BEBENEZRAHE
Trade receivables - at FVTPL 2,037,290 2,036,857 Level3 Discounted Cash Flow Analysis 1) Future Contractual Cash Flows
RATE B @A) F=[E TRALREDH 2) Estimated Repayment Periods
B SRR (Note)
The key inputs are: 1) RRENRLRE
1) Discount Rates 2) FBEHETE(ME)
2) Future Contractual Cash Flows
3) Estimated Repayment Periods
EETUN ¢ VR
1) FEE
2 AREHEERE
3) BEHESS
Fair value (RMB'000)
AFE(AR%ET )
asat asat  Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
Financial liability 31 December 2019 31December 2018 hierarchy and key inputs input(s)
BHAE 120195124318 M2018%12A318 AFESE  REFENEZGARE EIRENEEAAYE
Conversion option derivative 1,620 23378 Level3 Binominal Tree Pricing Model  Volatility: 33.70%
AT AR T A F=E “XEEERR (2018: 40.30%)

The key inputs are:

1) USS Risk Free Rate
2) HKS Risk Free Rate
Dividend Yield
Underlying Asset Value
5) Exercise Price

6) Volatility
BERARER:

1) Z2ERBE

2) BEEERE
R

)
)
) HHAEEE
)
)

a9 s L

w o

o &

1|

6) Rl

K18 : 33.70%
(20184 : 40.30%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

38. Financial Instruments (continueq)

38. BT A

c. Fair values of financial instruments (continued) c. HBIENATE®W

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and BREEMEENAFEFEN

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a AEERKEEREBEN AT

recurring basis (continued) E#)

Note: In case the future contractual cash flows are sufficient to pay MIEE - AR KARNREME RIAITIEA
the trade receivables — at FVTPL, an extending in the estimated FEFABRNE S ENRRE - &8
repayment periods used in isolation would result in a decrease in the BERAFEAGTERSSERR
fair value measurement of accounts receivable — at FVTPL, and vice REEF A BRI ERHIEN A F
versa. 3 months extending/shortening in the estimated repayment BHERD RZIMA - 38R
periods holding all other variables constant would decrease/increase R 48 L?AIH (FEEMEE
the carrying amounts of the accounts receivable — at FVTPL by about RETE) GRS EMEATFE
RMB15,980,000 (2018: RMB18,800,000). FFABERHNRERZERAEOAR

#& 15,980,000 7T (2018 FF : AR ¥
18,800,0007T ) °
Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets: FZERNUBEEATEFENY
BE -
RMB'000
ARETT

As at 31 December 2017 R201712 318 =

Impact of new and amendments to IFRS FE] REEFT B M S R 2 1,334,869

As at 1 January 2018 (restated) 201851 A18 (E &%) 1,344,869

Increase b2l 997,675

Decrease e (253,479

Fair value change recognised in profit or loss FEREANATEEZS) (52,208)

As at 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 2,036,857

Increase 30 397,696

Decrease o (358,868)

Fair value change recognised in profit or loss EEREANA T EES) (38,395)

As at 31 December 2019 120199128318 2,037,290

B R ZRE E TR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e T HRAR MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

38. Financial Instruments continueq) 38. BT A

c. Fair values of financial instruments (continued) C.
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement of financial

METENAFE®%)
BREEEMHEELNFEFEN
AEENKEEREBENLAF
E(#)
F-ERNUBEEEAFETEMNE

liabilities: Bk :

RMB'000

AREBFT

As at 31 December 2017 20174612 HA318 59,554
New issuance of 2018 Convertible Bonds and 2018 Notes  #%1720184F A] k&% K 2018 E = 28,721
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss EERERNATHEZD (11,201)
Conversion of the 2015 Convertible Bonds EI0015F A IR ES (9,619)
Repayment of the 2015 Convertible Bonds and 2015 Notes  {& 820154 A] &4 (&5 K 2015 245 (46,199)
Exchange realignment M H SRR 2,122
As at 31 December 2018 M2018%12831H 23,378
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss EERBERANRTEES (21,890)
Exchange realignment P H SR 132
As at 31 December 2019 201912 H431H 1,620

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosure are required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values.

FA - WEEASLBHE=EAR

I FFREFE R R LD FE
BENAREMBEERMER
BUEERFEEAFE)NAF
=

AR R EERRESUBHBRE PR
KBTI A M 15 B R IR E E B
HAFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

39. Operating Lease Commitments
The Group as lessee

39. WEHE A
AEBEREBA

At 31 December
2018

#20184F
12A31H
RMB'000
ARETT

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases
during the year
Contingent rents

FARBLELEHREENH
SEBERR 45,240
CIZ=Fitkrs 5,250

50,490

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

AEBARAT BRI BUBRLZ
HERKSERENFAGE

At 31 December
2018

20184
124318
RMB'000
ARETT

Within one year
In the second to the fifth year, inclusive
After the fifth year

—EPAA 23,260
FE_ZHF(BREERMT) 21,980
FEREHR 5,250

50,490

R R EETEEE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H i1 F/&

39. Operating Lease Commitments (continued) 39. REMEAH @)

The Group as lessor
All of the properties and machineries held for rental purposes have
committed lessees for the next 1 and 10 years respectively.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

rEBEAEBEA

R+ EL T A B MW R %W 5 BRI R
RIFERNOFEBAGHEEMEA ©
MERHEREKSERENTAT

At 31 December

2019

M20194

12A31H

RMB’000

ARET T

Within one year —FLAA 39,533
In the second year F_F 37,338
In the third year F=F 32,166
In the fourth year Ejusfes 25,998
In the fifth year FRHE 24,548
After five years hER 176,012
335,595

The Group had contracted with lessees for the following future
minimum lease payments:

AREBE LA T ARR RS REATEA

BATRH

At 31 December
2018

20184
12H31H
RMB'000
AEETT

Within one year —F A

38,242

In the second to the fifth year, inclusive FEEZRF(REERERTE) 93,261

After the fifth year ERER

56,797

188,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

40. Commitments 40. &
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following REREER - RNEE A A THG ¢
commitments:
At 31 December
M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Contracted but not provided for in the ERTXBREL S MISHRE
consolidated financial statements: R
Expenditure in respect of investment BREAMENT L
properties 3,782 7,027
Expenditure in respect of property, BRI - BE &
plant and equipment R 23,769 27,568
27,551 34,595
The commitments above at the end of the reporting period are to be PA b =R AR my A GGE Y IR BB AR A TE B My ok
settled according to the progress of the future development of the REREELEE HEBENERNEEZT
underlying projects which might not be necessarily incurred within —TERMEAREN T —EARNESE -

twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

41. Contingencies M. HEEE
At 31 December
M12A831H
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Mortgage loan guarantees provided by the Group Z~&E=E A H % B 75 miRITIRE
to banks in favour of its properties buyers (note)  EIRIBERIER (MizE) 954,176 966,446
Note: In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of the WisE - A RREERE - TEIEEESTERA
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial ATEEE - AEEMPBERE QA TEER
recognition, taking into consideration the possibility of default by the TIRHERRI NEKX - M fiE B RERAK
relevant buyers and, in case of default in payments, the net realisable value H - BRAYEH A ERFENHERE
of the related properties can recover the repayment of the outstanding BEBACHENR - BEREFE KA
mortgage principals together with the accrued interest and penalty. oo At - BERZELREMBHREAR
Accordingly, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial REERIER B -

statements for these guarantees.

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



227

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

42.

43.

Retirement Benefit Plans

The employees of the Group are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government authority.
The subsidiaries located in Mainland China are required to contribute
specified rate of the employees’ salaries to the retirement benefits
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws and
regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and under the control of an independent MPF service provider. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules separately. The only obligation of the Group in respect of the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

Share-Based Payment Transactions

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to the directors of the Company and eligible
employees. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant to eligible
employees including Directors and employees, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. At 31 December 2019, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted under the Scheme was 90,750,000
(2018: 90,750,000).

42.

43.

R RAE R

AEEE T AhdERRHHAEENEE
BB I3t BIRORK B © 45 7 B ARE RV
BRAABHRESEBETNTE  BE—
5% 9 b B R SR G AR BIR KR © A
5 B IRAE AT B 0 — 0 B EBLR
A B R -

RIBBBEERGIERESHERER
AEESAMBNRGIENETER THIER
HERESE S (RAESFTE]) - Z&tE
THEEEAKREEENFFE @ LHBE
T E S IR RS o RIRSEEE
ZRA - EXEESHADIRRRAE
EMLE R AZET SR - AREERTES
&I — B ER R R & EELRE

K -

URHBAERNZNARS
AAREBERNEBESUREERET
WEH - 7£2015F7 A21 BBERH L F
T AR B R AR B ([ 25T 8l ) -
FEZFET  ARATHAEKREI(R
BANREZRER)BELARBEALA
D A EARE - HE 2019128318 © 1R
B8RS RNRGHEE &
90,750,0004% (20184F : 90,750,0008%) °

Annual Report 2019 44



228

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

43. Share-Based Payment Transactions (continueq)
Certain employees, who have been awarded share options of
39,450,000 (31 December 2018: 36,750,000), were ceased their services
with the Group as at 31 December 2019. Hence, these share options
were forfeited.

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 June 2018, the Company extends
the maturity date of the share option scheme for three years from 31
July 2019 to 31 July 2022 (the “New Scheme”), and there is no change in
exercise price.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

43. LR B AEBRNZ AR S @)
R20196F 12 A318 » B TR HD H#
H 539,450,000 19 (2018 F 12 A 31 B
36,750,00010 ) 5 TE TE AN & E

B o FELL - ZERD SRR -

#1)) - TTEETE -

AR EFFNT

BIER20184F6 A21 BB IBHIRFHE -
ARRERBDEEAESIBERRA=F - A
201947 A31HEE202247 A31H ([#at

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
RFAH 5% A TR T8
Tranche 2016 28 July 2015 28 July 2015 to 28 July 2016 to HK$3.02
20165 R 2015%7A28H 27 July 2016 31 July 2022 BE3.027T
201557288 & 201657 A28HZ
2016F7A27H 20227R31H
Tranche 2017 28 July 2015 28 July 2015 to 28 July 2017 to HK$3.02
20175 8% 201557 A28H 27 July 2017 31 July 2022 BH3.027T
2015F7R28B & 2017%7A28R %
2017674278 202257 R318
Tranche 2019 28 July 2015 28 July 2015 to 28 July 2019 to HK$3.02
20195 8% 2015%7A28H 27 July 2019 31 July 2022 BE3.027T
201557280 % 2019%7A28A %
2019%7A27H 2022%7R31H

B R ZRE E TR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

43. Share-Based Payment Transactions (continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by employees and directors during the year.

43. LI BEBRNZARZ @)
TERBESREERENSENARD T
RAH RS -

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired  Outstanding at
Options type 1/1/2019 during year during year during year during year 31/12/2019
2019%E181A R2019F12831A
i | i RATHE FRFE FRITHE FRRK FRER i RATHE
Tranche 2016 18,000,000 = = (900,000) = 17,100,000
2016F 4R
Tranche 2017 18,000,000 = = (900,000) = 17,100,000
2017F R
Tranche 2019 18,000,000 = = (900,000) = 17,100,000
20195 5tIR
54,000,000 = = (2,700,000) = 51,300,000
Exercisable at the end 51,300,000
of the year
RERAETHE
Weighted average HK$3.02
exercise price B83.027T
MEFETEE
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired  Outstanding at
Options type 1/1/2018 during year during year during year during year 31/12/2018
R2018%1A1H #2018F12A31H
HREER i RATE FRRH FRTE FRRE FRER i RATEE
Tranche 2016 20,850,000 = = (2,850,000) = 18,000,000
2016F 4R
Tranche 2017 20,850,000 = = (2,850,000) = 18,000,000
20175 8tIR
Tranche 2019 20,850,000 = = (2,850,000) = 18,000,000
20195 8R
62,550,000 = = (8,550,000) = 54,000,000
Exercisable at the end 36,000,000
of the year
RERATRITHRE
Weighted average HK$3.02
exercise price 3,027
IETFETRE

The estimated fair values of the Scheme and the New Scheme are
HK$46,581,000 and HK$81,082,000 respectively.

Zat & R FEF BRI A E R FED R
8 #46,581,0007T K& B 181,082,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

43.

44.

Share-Based Payment Transactions (continued)
These fair values were calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

43.

ZEATEER-BPEEEEIAE
SRR A BRI T

LR AERNITARS @)

o

Options
amended Options granted
on 21 June 2018 on 28 July 2015
"2018%6 A "R2015%7 B
21 B ETHRRE 28 IR HARE
Grant date share price B BERE HK$2.80 per share  HK$2.80 per share
FRB%2.80T BRE%2.80T
Exercise price 7B HK$3.02 per share  HK$3.02 per share
FRAE3.027T BRBY3.02T
Expected volatility TERT R & 40.50% 37.73%
Expected option life TREtEAE S 4.11 years 3 years
4114 3
Risk-free interest rate £ [ B ) 2 2.16% 3.00%
Dividend yield % B2 3.13% 5.36%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company's share price over the previous four years. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on the management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors of the Company’s best
estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions may result in changes
in the fair value of the options.

The Group recognised share-based payment expense of RMB9,310,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB57,827,000) in relation
to share options granted by the Company.

Disposal of Subsidiaries

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire equity interests in
Hebei Hongyu Changtai Construction Development Co., Ltd., Hebei
Hongyu Changtai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Langfang Hongtu
Taiju Property Development Co., Ltd. and Langfang Hongchang Jiatai
Property Development Co., Ltd. for a total consideration of RMB198.5
million.

TEFTR IR AR B AN X B Bl PO 4F 9 R SE AR (B
KIEEEE - REFTAME BESHE
REEEEHTIERENTZE  TER

IR 1T R BB EL B o

HE Ry Bk A AT A R 8 MR A
EERARRESNREMR - B8R

PNOPZS
BEH

VLI

(E5:

fle =

BZE2019F12A31H ILFE - AEEEAK
DA TR PEERR O XN ERAR
#9,310,0007T (20184 : A R #57,827,000

L) °
44.

HRARAT

198.5E&TT °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

44. Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued) 44. HEMRB 2 o)

Consideration received: BURE :
2019
RMB’000
ARBT T
Cash received 2lIES 188,036
Deferred cash consideration BIERSRE 10,486
Total consideration received BB RE 198,522
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control were lost: EAEEFENEEREBED
2019
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K& fE 518
Right-of-use assets EREEE 29
Properties under development for sale FEERTE 648,572
Prepayments and other receivables TE AT R B Ath & W kIR 3,988
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS 30,275
Amount due to the then parent company R ERTARIE (473,566)
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFIE (1,722)
Net assets disposed of EEEEFE 208,094
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: HEK B AR REE :
2019
RMB’000
AR®T R
Consideration received and receivable B LR E 198,522
Net assets disposed of EEEESE (208,094)
Non-controlling interests eIl A 2 11,250
Transaction cost R KA (27,473)
Loss on disposal & B 1E (25,795)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENESRAFE
2019
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash consideration RERE 188,036
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BERITEBRERES (30,275)
157,761

R202051 8 - AEEE RBUEZEREA
R #1,636,0007T © MASRELEREARE
8,850,000 T B A B E TR B K Ti&
NREEE -

The deferred consideration of RMB1,636,000 had been received
in January 2020, and the remaining deferred consideration of
RMB8,850,000 will be settled in cash by the purchaser upon the
completion of the real estate project.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

44. Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued) 44. HEWEB QT @)

In Year 2018, the Group disposed of its entire equity interests in Beijing
Wei Chuang Technology Development Co., Ltd and Zhangjiakou Tai
Chuang Gu Science and Technology Enterprise Incubator Co., Ltd. for a
total consideration of RMB51.1 million.

20184 + AN E & H N Rt 42
BEEEER AR RER AREAREE
¥R LEERARNETERS  BREB
ARES11BETT ©

Consideration received: DU :
2018
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash received BYERE 51,100
Total consideration received BB R(E 51,100
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control were lost: EREEHBNAERRBEIN
2018
RMB'000
ARETT
Property, plant and equipment Y S 30
Properties under development for sale HERRTYME 45,602
Prepayments and other receivables T R E b FE U R IE 1,586
Bank balances and cash WITHER KIS 881
Trade and other payables B 5 Ik EL M FE AT RIE (36)
Net assets disposed of EEBEFE 43,063
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HERBARNKE :
2018
RMB'000
ARETT
Consideration received and receivable Bk M FE U AR AB 51,100
Net assets disposed of EEEESE (48,063)
Gain on disposal & e 3,037
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENESRATE
2018
RMB’000
ARETT
Cash consideration RERE 51,100
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BEERITERERE (881)
50,219
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

45. Related Party Balances and Transactions  45. B A &8RS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, MRGEIERREMBETIEEIN LT A
the following is a summary of significant balances and significant AREBSEREHRREAT FEATETEKX
transactions carried out between the Group and () Ms. Wang Wei, the R HHEEA ¢ () RARIERR R Z R EMLK
daughter of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, (i) associates of T (NVAREEBE AR (IAEENERE
the Group, (iii) immediate holding company of the Group and (iv) the ZIE AT RV RARIERRARE - B %
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. The transactions with these related 5677 IR SR T7 2 B e VIR TGEST ©
parties were made on terms agreed among the parties.

BARE TS KB
EARERE 7T BV AEEASLDI AN T

(@) Related party balances (a)
Balances with related parties are set out below:
Amounts due from: FEWLAT = B8 F00E -

At 31 December

A12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Associates: i NC]IE
— Shengshi zhiye — Rt EE 161,598 166,266
- Sinomerco —mhiae 1,500 1,500
— Huayuan —E)R 2,991 2,991
166,089 170,757
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders’ daughter: H&RIEASIER AL R -
— Ms. Wang Wei —EHat 586 586
166,675 171,343
Less: allowance for receivables from related & : fEUL BaEE 5 TRIE B
parties (1,310) =
Total HRET 165,365 171,343
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REREERAE
2019
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January M1A1H -
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 1,310
At 31 December ®12A318 1,310
Analysis for reporting purposes as: MMERBNIFTOT :
At 31 December
M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Current assets mENEE 3,578 171,343
Non-current assets JEMENEE 161,787 -
165,365 171,343
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

45. Related Party Balances and Transactions

(Continued)

(a) Related party balances (continued)

The above receivables from Shengshi Zhiye, Sinomerco and Ms.
Wang Wei are of non-trade nature, while that from Huayuan is of
trade nature, all receivables are unsecured and recoverable on
demand. The receivable from Ms. Wang Wei is denominated in
HK$, while the remaining are denominated in RMB. Except for the
amount due from Shengshi Zhiye, which is bearing interest at 6%

per annum, the remaining balances are interest-free.

Details of impairment assessment of the amounts due from
related parties are set out in note 38(b).

Amounts due to:

A5. B R &R R 5 @)

(@) BABET &SER (40
bt At B - RiaE R ER
REMRABIEE S LD - MY
RERIBRRBE S IEE - FrA EAGK
B EER RN ERE WD o B E
PR R FRIRABEHE - RISRTRIA
BIAARBFHE - FREREEEE XN
FHIHRFERRO%T RN - BT R
ABERE -

A B FE YR BRI 77 SRR ERT [ AOFFS
EHTRESS(D) ©

BT 8R0S :

At 31 December

MA12A831H
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Associates: NI
— Huayuan —ER 4,887 3,296
- Shengshi zhiye — Rt EE 510 213
5,397 3,509
Joint Venture: A& AA] :
- Hubei International — 1L B 100,000 100,000
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder: EAREIRARER ¢
— Mr. Wang Jianjun —IEE%E 200 200
Immediate holding company: BHEERAT
— Profit East —FIER - 264,599
Total e 105,597 368,308
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR AR MR (8

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H i1 F/&

45. Related Party Balances and Transactions 45 BEA &8RS @)

(Continued)

(a) Related party balances (continued)
The above outstanding payables to Huayuan and Shengshi zhiye
are of trade nature, while that to Hubei International and Mr.
Wang Jianjun are of non-trade nature. As at 31 December 2019,
all these existing payables are denominated in RMB, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The payable to Profit East
in prior year, which was of non-trade nature and interest-bearing,
was fully repaid by the Group during the year ended 31 December

2019.

The following is an aged analysis of the outstanding payable with
trade nature, presented based on service or payment received
date, at the end of each of the reporting period:

(a) BBEEFHeR(®)

i A R R R B R R 2R
BESME  mEMHILERRER
BAREMKIREBHEZSHHE - B
20195128318 © FIEZFR1FEN
B IAARKEHE - BHER 28
WEREREE - ZERENFIRME
NEREBEE S HE RS - AL
BEREZE2019F12 318 ILHIREE
BEEE -

RERERR - RESRBE KB
BHIS B E 5 M E AR N RBH IR
DT

At 31 December

M12A831H
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Less than 1 year DE 5,337 3,489
110 2 years 1224 60 20
5,397 3,509
(b) Related party transactions (b) FEABAERS
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LLFE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Profit East Interest cost
FIER F B A 12,170 1,762
Shengshi zhiye Interest income
= FEWA 8,767 8,647
Huayuan Purchase of heating services
B i B HUR AR 7S 3,367 18,616
Shengshi Zhiye Provision of rental services
Bt B REAER - 296
Huayuan Provision of infrastructure services
R RS R e AR TS 1,723 34,230
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

45.Related Party Balances and Transactions 45. RS &8RS )

(Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel are those senior management
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. The
key management personnel compensation is as follows:

(d)

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

(c) EREEABHM
FEEBABRBENRBEAEE
HAERE TR ERES
EBNRREEE - TEEBARN
BT

Year ended 31 December

BZE128318LEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Fee e 806 789
Salaries and other benefits e REAEF] 8,367 7,811
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme  RIKEFIETEI 3k 187 214
Discretionary performance — related bonus — BY15 FRIFHMATEAL 4,343 4,033
Share-based payment expense B ER 4,132 24,095
17,835 36,947

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's performance for

such financial year.

Bank borrowings, convertible bonds and notes

guaranteed by related parties

TEALTYRIBEZ MR FEA LB REM

s
=L
u+rr °

(d) HEAEGIEERNEBITER 7
BREZKRE

At 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Ms. Zhao Ying fizb R 15,350 15,546
The Ultimate Controlling Shareholders ARV AR R 963,230 1,502,771
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

46.Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from 46. BEEZEBAEENABEYE
Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRV AEERRETHELENAEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. B 2heIEResRIERSEE - gEFE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows HELENEEABEXARBRRAERELSES
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated HEeRBERNSEARBEEFREHESR
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. ENRERE
Convertible
bonds,
notes, Amounts
Bank senior due to
and other notes and related
borrowings derivative parties
(note 31) (note 32) (note 45) Total
AR ES
BERE
RITR ROTE BB
Hit g™ BMETA MIE
(PfFEE31) (PFEE32) (PfizE45) et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARKETTT ARETTT AREFIT ARBTT
At 31 December 2018 R2018512H31H 5,180,461 1,127,149 364,799 6,672,409
Cash flows: REME -
Principal additions K& 1,939,821 1,237,446 5,140 3,182,407
Transaction cost R A - (31,528) - (31,528)
Principal payments YRS (2,530,782) (444,760) (267,977) (3,243,519)
Interests payments SAHA A (387,814) (168,148) (13,932) (569,894)
Non-cash items: LA :
Foreign exchange translation ~ ANE#RE 337 35,735 - 36,072
Interests accrual FEETFIE 383,979 164,360 12,170 560,509
Fair value change recognised BRI A FE
in profit or loss b=3) - (21,890) - (21,890)
At 31 December 2019 20195128318 4,586,002 1,898,364 100,200 6,584,566
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

47.Subsidiaries
As of the end of the reporting period, the Company had the following

47. KB A 7]
RBER  AAABEEATEZEHRBR

principal subsidiaries: Al
Place and date Issued and Equity interest
of incorporation  fully paid capital/ attributable
Name of company /establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
MR ERITRARNERE,/
PEEL Bt 3K B AEfER AEBEGES TEER
At 31 December
W12A318
2019 2018
% %
Shing Cheong Holdings Ltd. (notei) ~ BVI US$7,000 100 100 Investment holding
FE AR AR () EBRAHE (Ordinary shares) BEER
12 April 2007 7,000 (E@ik)
2007478128
Langfang VAST Urban Development ~ Mainland China RMB150,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Co., Ltd. (notes i and iii) HEA (Paid up capital) development of industrial
("Langfang VAST") 3 August 2005 AR #150,000,0007T town projects
B AREXMEREBRAR 20058 A3H (BREXK) HE JAREREZE
(B zidmiii) ([ Bs3h 3= 1) m#EEH
Langfang City Property Development  Mainland China RMB150,000,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (notes i and iii) REIAL (Paid up capital) MERR
("Langfang City Property”) 22 May 1995 AR #150,000,0007T
BHmHREEREERAR 199554228 (BRER)
(B i) (T BBt e 5 2 2 )
Langfang Vast Zhanyao Property Mainland China 1S$29,800,000 100 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. R (Paid up capital) MERRE
(notes i and iv) 5 June 2007 29,800,000 7T
("Langfang Vast Zhanyao") 20076 A5H (BREX)
B ERERENEREER LA
(Fzximniv) ([ BB R R ER )
Langfang Vast Zhuoyou Development  Mainland China US$6,550,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (notes i and iv) B (Paid up capital) MERR
BHEZEREHEERARRT  5lune 2007 6,550,000 7T
G 20076 A5H (BRER)
Tangshan Zhanyao Property Mainland China US$29,800,000 100 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. R (Paid up capital) MERR
(notes i and iv) 25 June 2007 29,800,000 7T
BELREFEHEREARAR 200756A25H (BREXK)

GEL)

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

47.Subsidiaries (continuea)

47. M B A Rl o)

Place and date Issued and Equity interest
of incorporation  fully paid capital/ attributable
Name of company /establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
MR ERTRBRNRE/
PGk R IR B EfER AEBEGES TEER
At 31 December
®W12A318
2019 2018
% %

Langfang Honghao Investment Mainland China RMB620,000,000 100 100 Infrastructure investment
Co., Ltd. (notes i and iii) FEI A (Paid up capital) ERR R E

BH BRI BER DA 7 July 2008 AR#620,000,0007C
(Bl 20087 A7H (BRER)

Zhangjiakou Vast Industrial Mainland China US$20,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Urban Development Co., Ltd. FEIA (Paid up capital) development of industrial
(notes i and iv) 10 December 2014 20,000,000 T town projects

RROLREXMELEBEEBRAR 20145128108 (BREX) e R RERESR
(FzEFv) mEER

Shijiazhuang Vast Urban Development  Mainland China RMB47,882,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Co., Ltd. (notes i andiii) HEIAH, (Paid up capital) development of industrial

RERTERELTEREAB AT  16December2015  AR47,882,0007T town project
(B i) 20154128168 (BREX) e R RERESR

mEER

Ezhou Vast Urban Development Mainland China RMB203,381,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Co., Ltd. (notes i andiii) HEIAH, (Paid up capital) development of industrial

BN AREEMHERERAA 25 January 2016 AR#203,381,0007¢ town project
(B i) 2016514250 (BREXK) e R RERER

mEER

Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Urban Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Development Co., Ltd. Bl (Paid up capital) development of industrial
(notes i and i) 19 August 2016 AR ®30,000,0007T town project

BEEMENEREXMAER 2016%8A19A (BRER) HE - FAREREE
AR AR (PzEiAii) mEER

Shijiazhuang Shengxin Weichuang Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 100 Construction and technology
Development Co., Ltd. Bl (Paid up capital) development
(notes i and iii) 30 August 2016 AE#20,000,0007% BERBBER

AFEMESEAEREREBAR 201658 A30H (BREX)

(B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12 31 H 1 F/&

47. Subsidiaries continued) Y N

Notes: Bt
English name for identification only. i. T ABEHBR o

ii.  Shing Cheong is directly held by the Company. Other subsidiaries are i. HMEBAREEERIEE - HtHEBRRS
indirectly held by the Company. RNAREEEEE -

iii.  These subsidiaries are domestic wholly-owned enterprises established in iii. ZEWERRRNFE ALK
Mainland China. B -

iv.  These subsidiaries are foreign wholly-owned enterprises established in v. ZEWBRRRNTE ALK EINTE
Mainland China. B o

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had issued any debt securities RATWM B AR ERFEREITEMAE

at the end of the year. 555 ©

Composition of the Group REEREBA

Place of
incorporation/
establishment Number of subsidiaries

SEMAR LB S it B HWEAREE
2019 2018
Investment holding & &R BVI 2 2
EBETES
Investment holding A& Hong Kong 2 2
BB
Property leasing FEHE Hong Kong 1 1
BB
Planning, design and development B - BRI RER Mainland China 7 7
of industrial town projects EXmiEER AR B A b,
Property development VIER Mainland China 5 7
AR A
Property development and leasing MEBENEE Mainland China 1 1
A A b
Infrastructure investment BRI E Mainland China 4 4
FR B3
Project investment, lease, consulting IHH&& - HE - #%#®  Mainland China 2 2
and asset management MEEER AR A,
Consulting and maintenance service B R EARTS Mainland China 2 2
A3
Internet information technology service Pas (s BRITRS Mainland China 3 3
FR A3
Not yet commence business ARFBEE Mainland China 43 40
HR A3
72 71
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there was no significant non- 20194 K2 201812 A31H » AEE &
controlling interest in the Group. BRI R o

R RREETEERE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

48. Financial Information of the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company as
at 31 December 2019 is as follows:

48. KRB BEHR

BB TIN2019412 A31 B BB k50
KHERAT ¢

At 31 December

MW12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets ETMBNEE
Investments in subsidiaries (note) B A r)&E (MIsE) 1,640,283 1,640,283
Amounts due from subsidiaries Al ENGIE ] 376,000 -
2,016,283 1,640,283
Current assets MENVE B
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHBRIRS 284,243 416,488
Other receivables H e zaE 2,499 963
Amounts due from subsidiaries e BT B A RIFIE 695,266 692,502
982,008 1,109,953
Total assets BEMRE 2,998,291 2,750,236
Current liabilities mEAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS BB A RIZRIA 523,436 817,019
Amounts due to related parties JE 1S RS 5 OE = 264,599
Other payables H b e k08 735 807
Convertible bonds, notes and senior notes AlEmES ERRELER - 110,075
524,171 1,192,500
Net current assets (liabilities) nBEEAE)FE 457,837 (82,547)
Total assets less current liabilities BEBERREEE 2,474,120 1,557,736
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Convertible bonds, notes and senior notes A[ERES ERRELER 1,896,744 993,696
Derivative PTHEMBTIA 1,620 23,378
1,898,364 1,017,074
Net assets BEFE 575,756 540,662
Capital and reserves IR R i
Share capital &N 13,141 13,141
Reserves s 562,615 527,521
Total equity T B RE 575,756 540,662
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #tE2019F 12 H31H 1F F/&

48.Financial Information of the Company

(Continued)
Note:

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s most important subsidiaries are Langfang
VAST and Langfang City Property, of which the principal activities are land
development and property development respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company received a Shareholder’s
Loan of US$38,270,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB234,216,000) from Profit
East. After receiving this Shareholder’s Loan, the Company immediately advanced
the full amount to Shing Cheong Holdings. In August 2014, Shing Cheong Holdings
issued new shares to the Company to fully settle this outstanding amount payable
to the Company. In addition to which, the Company also made an advance of
RMB1,096,177,000 and RMB296,640,000 to Shing Cheong Holdings during the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 respectively. Prior to the end of 2014
and 2015, the Company decided to waive for the settlement of the receivables
of RMB1,096,177,000 and RMB296,640,000, respectively, from Shing Cheong
Holdings which was accounted for as further capital contribution to Shing Cheong
Holdings by the Company. Prior to the above transactions, the deemed cost of the
Company's investment in Shing Cheong Holdings was recognised at nil as Shing
Cheong Holdings was in a net liability position on 21 February 2014, the date on
which the Company became the holding company of the Group.

Information about the statement of change in equity of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2019 is as follows:

48. KN R ER @

PR -

MN20196F 12318 » AEBSSEENMB AR R
BHEEEBIREEE  HXBEBEH A
TR KRR o

HE2014612A3NBIESE - AARBFRER
—%£38,270,0003 7t (A E R4 A R #5234,216,000
T)RBREER - WEZERRERE - AR
RIRNEF IS B ERIBRN Tl AR - R2014F
8A F MELERMARARZEITHRM + UBEK
B EREERGARRRMNKRIE - o - K
DEREBE2014% K 2015F12 4318 L EE IR
2RI R S 2R B A R #1,096,177,000 7T K&
AR #296,640,0007T ° 20144 K& 2015F F K
Al ARRFIREDRIREHEEREEARE
1,096,177,0007T K2 A R # 296,640,000 H & U 5k
1B - WHZSHIEEAARRR RGBS ERE—F
SEBARR o R B SETAT - AR E ZIRR
201462 4218 (AR B AA S EER A FH
B ERFAREMRR - BIEIERA RN S
IREVIEE R AR AT -

AR R E2019%12 A31 B ILF R
EREBENERDT -

Accumulated
Share (losses)/
Share Share option Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
Rt (ER)/
R ROEE RODERE RO EFH &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NG ARBTR ARBT T AR¥BTR N
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 818 13,031 550,479 20,519 (196,997) 387,032
Total comprehensive income FRZEYNESE
for the year - - - 474173 474,173
Conversion of convertible bonds ~ ATEIRE AR 110 42,212 = = 42,322
Dividend distribution A EERA = (420,692) - = (420,692)
Recognition of equity-settled RRIEEE T RRER
share-based payments - - 57,827 - 57,827
At 31 December 2018 #2018F 128318 13,141 171,999 78,346 277,176 540,662
Total comprehensive income FRZENESE
for the year - - - 190,289 190,289
Dividend distribution DIRRRE = (164,505) = = (164,505)
Recognition of equity-settled IR E S [ RRER
share-based payments - - 9310 - 9310
At 31 December 2019 20194124318 13,141 7,494 87,656 467,465 575,756

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F 12H31H 1 F/&

49. Event After the Reporting Period 49. BEHEREH

With the rapid spread of the novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19"), the
Group has implemented various measures to mitigate the impacts of
COVID-19 on the business and, at the same time, to ensure the health
and safety of the Group’s employees.

The Directors expect that COVID-19 will have a short-term impact on
the operation of the Group's industrial town projects in Hubei Province.
However, the revenue from the related industrial town projects is
relatively small compared to the overall revenue of the Group. On
the other hand, to relieve the operating pressure of tenants of our
property leasing business, the Group will offer certain temporary rental
concessions to tenants on a case-by-case basis.The Group will pay
close attention to the situation of COVID-19, assess its impacts on the
Group's financial position and operating results and react timely.

B & # BT AR B 5l B A I AR B ([ 2
RIS AR EL  AEBEEERSE
B ORE S E MR IEEEBNOTE
WREAEHESNRFELE -

EERFAKEAENIL A WEZETHEIEAR
MEZ S ENBMHARBERRT LR
e Rif o HEEXMAEBHKA
HEHAEEBERBUAGLRN Z—F
| ARERMYEREXZBOEP KL
BB AREFRTIER - ABEPLEMH
ETHREASES - AREBEESH
T i A R 1 O B R e R B AR SR B A TSR
AMEEREN T BN KL RE -
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFPBERBE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the — AREEZA AAMREE 2 EEREE N EEH]
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements is ~ E&ZFIA0T + JyiEsk A L BAZI 5 R o
set out below.

Results ¥E

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTrT ARETT ARETT

Revenue PN 2,670,007 3,995,224 2,935,017 1,965,181 1,423,706
Gross profit EF 1,870,668 2,431,320 1,966,076 624,395 610,983
Profit before tax R 54 AT a8 ) 1,287,108 1,779,388 1,497,530 941,317 680,964
Income tax expense FriSRiA (458,702) (658,041) (416,696) (272,945) (167,383)
Net profit for the year RS ) 828,406 1,121,347 1,080,834 668,372 513,581
Total comprehensive income for — ANEZ2E

the year 4aEE 828,406 1,118,047 1,080,834 692,413 513,581
Assets and Liabilities EERAEE

As of 31 December
M12831A
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTIL ARBTI ARBTEI ARETE

Non-current assets IEMENEE 4,252,893 3,282,797 3,106,805 2,169,583 1,217,959
Current assets MEEE 10,141,473 11,054,514 10,607,607 9,156,829 7,091,304
Total assets BERE 14,394,366 14,337,311 13,714,412 11,326,412 8,309,263
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 5,157,772 4,977,599 3,431,897 3,844,398 2,214,954
Current liabilities mEAE 3,546,411 4,340,740 5,975,280 4,097,133 3,272,986
Total liabilities AfEBE 8,704,183 9,318,339 9,407,177 7,941,531 5,487,940
Equity attributable to owners VIN/NEIE 2=

of the Company PRI R 5,675,501 5,000,273 4,301,864 3,383,535 2,821,323
Non-controlling interest FEAE I M 2 14,682 18,699 5,371 1,346 -
Total Equity W 4REE 5,690,183 5,018,972 4,307,235 3,384,881 2,821,323

B RZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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